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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 46" Annual General Meeting of members of
FIRST BANK OF NIGERIA LIMITED will be held in the Board Room, Samuel Asabia
House, 12" Floor, 35 Marina, Lagos on Thursday, April 23, 2015 at 2.00 p.m. to
transact the following:

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive the audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2014,
together with the reports of the Directors, the Auditors and the Board Audit
Committee thereon, as well as the report of the independent consultants on th
annual appraisal of the Board of Directors. -

2. To declare a dividend.

3. To elect/re-elect Directors, including Prince Ajibola A. Afonja and Mr. Ebenezer A.
Jolaoso, who are aged 72 and 71 years respectively.

4. To authorize the Directors to fix the remuneration of the Auditors.

Special Business:

5. To approve the remuneration of Directors.

Proxy

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to
appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his stead. A proxy need not also be a member.
A proxy form is attached to this Notice. All instruments of proxy should be duly stamped
at the Stamp Duties Office and deposited at the registered office of the Company not
later than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Olayiwéla-Yahaya
COMPANY SECRETARY

35 MARINA, LAGOS

Dated this 2" day of April, 2015



PROXY FORM
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2. Where the appointer is a corporation, this form may be under seal
or under the hand of any officer or attorney duly authorized.
3. This proxy will be used only in the event of a poll being directed or 5] To approve a
demanded. special resolution
authorizing the
4, In the case of joint holders, the signature of any one of them will Directors’
suffice, but the names of all joint holders should be shown. remuneration.
5. It is a legal requirement that all instruments of proxy must bear
appropriate stamp duty (currently #500.00) from the Stamp Duties Office.
Before posting the above form please tear off this part and retain it for admission to the meeting.
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Chairman’s Statement — 2014 Annual Report and Accounts

1. Introduction

In 2014, the industry’s requlatory burden weighed heavily on our operations. Whereas in the 6
years to end-2013, the regulatory focus was more concerned with the health of individual bank
players in the industry, and how this impacted overall systemic health, over the last 12 months
macroprudential regulations have been added which prioritise macroeconomic concerns in the
design of bank regulations.

However the net effect of these new regulations has been to dampen the industry’s profit outlook.
By virtue of our position in the industry we must wholly embrace these changes and continue to
work with the regulator to responsibly contribute to economic growth while continuously
delivering value to our shareholders. '

Nonetheless, a firm focus on our earlier agreed goals ensured that FirstBank closed 2014 with
much stronger balance sheet and profit numbers.

2. The Global Economy

The global economy was a mixed picture in 2014. Much of the publicity focussed on Japan, where
Abenomics began the year with great promise; rising “lowflation” worries in the euro area; and the
promise of an Indian renaissance on the back of a new government’ reforming instinct.

Given the growth needs of the global economy, only the US economy produced growth noticeable
enough to have had an effect. At 7.4%, Chinese growth was down from ‘the elevated numbers
that we have come to associate with that economy over the last 3 decades. Understandably, there
was much worry over the ripple effect to the global economy of falling output rates in China, with
most commentators linking the apparent end of the commodity super-cycle with falling demand in
China.

Emerging markets were unduly affected by lower export revenues from falling commodity prices,
with exchange rates from Brazil through Malaysia, to Nigeria reflecting these new pressure points.
While commodity exporters, including of crude oil saw threats to their finances from lower export
revenues, falling oil prices were a global net positive.

It may have contributed to the increase in US output numbers, as consumers’ disposable incomes
rose, but in the euro area, its contribution to the depressing prices, and thus to the risk of deflation
was the most remarked.

3. Domestic Economy

The rebasing of the domestic economy’s output numbers, which resulted in its re-classification as
the continent’s biggest economy, promised a number of positive externalities especially from an
anticipated flow in investments into the new driver of the economy. A larger and growing services
sector, appeared to confirm anecdotal evidence of the emergence of a growing middle class, with
enough disposable income to drive demand for new and more sophisticated service and product
offerings.
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The end of the commodity supercycle was also a net positive, as a lowering of prices across the
range for most imports promised to boost domestic consumption reinforce net welfare gains.
Consequently, in inflation-adjusted terms, the economy grew by 6.25% in 2014, a rate consistent
with that achieved by the best-performing economies in the world in the year.

Still worries remain. For despite the new size of the economy, at around N9Otn (or US$550bn)
GDP, which made it the world's 26th largest, in per capita terms, we remain 121st of 195
countries. Rising income inequalities further strengthening the need for domestic reforms that both
transfer resources to the poor and vulnerable and improve their earning capacity, including through
changes to the process of creating and accumulating social capital.

While a stronger economy is of immediate benefit to the financial services sector, through
providing a more diverse need for financial services, rising income inequalities and poor poverty
indices hurt our ability to drive higher levels of financial inclusion. Fortunately the reforms to
physical and social infrastructure required to drive productivity increases would directly benefit our
operations (through lower costs) and our markets (by increasing disposable incomes across the
population).

It mattered, therefore, that oil prices took a knock by the second half of the year, falling from a
June peak of US$107pb to US$43.14pb by year end. Whereas the larger effect of this on the
economy, giving its fiscal dependence on oil receipts would be evident in 2015, lower oil prices and
the associated pressure on the country’s external reserves have driven the naira's exchange value
down. A falling naira on the other hand, would have adverse inflation implications.

Both these new pressure points are a concern for the domestic banking industry going forward.
4. Monetary Policy

Following the mid-year drop in the oil price, and the subsequent pass-through of reduced
government revenue to the naira’s exchange rate, the focus on monetary policy during the year
was on sustaining the naira. A concern with naira liquidity (as a possible source of elevated dollar
demand), saw the Central Bank of Nigeria tighten monetary policy, at first through administrative
measures, including increases in the reserve requirements for public and private sector deposits.

By year end, however, as the demand pressure on the naira built up, the CBN raised its policy rate
by 100 basis points, and effectively devalued the naira when it moved the mid-point of the official
exchange rate peg from US$/N155 to US$/N168.

5. Our Strategy

In my report last year, | had indicated as customary the adoption of our three-year plan for the
period January 2014 to December 2016. At the heart of the new plan is the setting of segment-
specific market share aspirations over the plan period.

Accordingly, in the retail market, our intention is to grow our share of the small- and medium-sized
enterprises sector by an order of 11% to 15% over the next 3 years. Within this same period, we
should see our wallet share of the affluent segment of the market for financial services grow by
5% 10 6%, with the corporate and emerging corporate segments growing by 9% to 10% and 3%
to 5% respectively.



Given ongoing structural changes to the public expenditure management framework, we have set
rather narrow aspirations for the wholesale market, where we intend to defend our market shares
in both the public sector and institutional segments of the market. The volatility which the changes
in the public sector introduced into our model last year unintentionally validated our decision over
the last plan cycle to pursue aggressively, expansion in sub-Saharan Africa. The operational diversity
which we have now acquired is a key strength to cushioning future economic shocks from a group
perspective as we expect increased growth from these new investments going forward.

In furtherance of a more diverse operating base, over the current plan cycle, we would be
balancing our retail growth with a narrower focus on the high networth individual segment of the
market. Essentially we intend to leverage existing strengths to grow our share of this market
segment’s wallet. This “inside-out approach” involves us sweating our already diverse portfolio of
financial products and services and harnessing the accompanying synergies to serve a very
discerning segment.

We have set these targets on the basis of our position in the market as the leading retail financial
services provider, and in full cognisance of the increasingly narrow fiscal space within which the
financial services industry would play in over the medium-term. We have no doubt therefore of the
eventual success of this strategic platform within the plan horizon.

6. Board Priorities 2014 — 2015

Following the broadening of our continental footprint last year, the board agreed a set of new
short- to medium-term priorities. Basically, these priorities aim to increase the pace of the Bank's
growth across its diverse operational bases over the plan period.

Three planks support these new set of priorities. The first is a strong value proposition focussed on
meeting our clients' diverse needs for financial services. Second is the continuous search for and
the single-minded implementation of least cost solutions based on the customer’s ease of access to
and convenience of use of our different channels. Third is the sustainable return of value to our
stakeholders from all our business lines.

In specific terms, our priorities over the near-term include growing non-interest revenue, driving
service delivery excellence, optimising enterprise-wide cost, addressing market perception gap,
enhancing sales force productivity whilst continuously enhancing our corporate governance and
compliance spectrum.

The tasks facing us are far from insurmountable and equally underpinned by leading from the front
and ensuring that measures put in place are holistic and clearly communicated across the business
to galvanise our drive forward and ensure success in this regard. We remain aspirational and have
no doubt in our ability as a bank to deliver.

7. Financial Results

The uncertainties associated with the general elections and the CBN's continued efforts to hold the
floor on a domestic currency under pressure from lower oil earnings, were the main variables in our
operating environment in the period covered by my report. In result, our operating environment
was a lot more constrained last year.

Despite the downward pull of these variables, the Bank delivered robust results in the review
period. The Bank's profit before tax (PBT) closed the year at N81.36bn compared with the



N76.85bn reported over the same period last year. The Group’s PBT rose from N86.59bn reported
in the 12 months to end-December 2013 to N94.45bn in the reporting period.

8. Outlook

Current global realities put oil price at an average of US$60 per barrel this year and next. The
impact of this on the domestic economy, in the light of our dependence on oil exports for much of
our official revenue would be to constrain the fiscal space over the next 12 months. Monetary
policy would equally tighten as the CBN strives to support the naira’s exchange rate over this
period.

Reduced government spend and rising domestic prices would ultimately dampen domestic
demand. Along with a fall off in business investment, we should see domestic output growth slow
considerably in 2015. The IMF, for instance, expects growth to be lower by about 1% percentage
points in 2015.

No doubt, a more difficult macroeconomic environment would impose huge costs on our
operations. However, we have taken steps, a few of which | have enumerated here, both to guard
against these shocks, and to take advantage of the limited opportunities that will open over the
coming months.

9. Resignation

Mrs. Ibiai Ani, former non-Executive Director, resigned voluntarily with effect from March 20, 2014,
while Mr. Adebayo Adelabu, former Executive Director/Chief Financial Officer, resigned with effect
from March 28, 2014, to take up appointment as a Deputy Governor with the CBN.

10. Appointments

Dr. (Mrs.) lje Jidenma was appointed a non-Executive Director with effect from March 24, 2014;
and Dr. Adesola K. Adeduntan was appointed an Executive Director/Chief Financial Officer with
effect from July 01, 2014.

11. Acknowledgement

On behalf of the Board, | do thank our regulators and consultants for their cooperation over the
last 12 months.

To our customers, partners (local and foreign), shareholders and other stakeholders, the Bank owes
a continuing debt of gratitude. The clearest sign of our appreciation of their custom will be in the
changes we make over the next 12 months with a view to serving them better.

The Bank also specially thanks Mrs. Ibiai Ani, and Mr. Adebayo Adelabu for their immeasurable
contributions at board and committee deliberations.

I would like to place on record my appreciation to management for the clinical execution of the
bold initiatives in 2014. Special recognition is reserved for staff whose unstinting performance we
are all witnesses of today.

Last but not least, | thank the entire board for their unwavering resolve and total dedication to the
affairs of the bank in pursuit of excellence.



May God Almighty guide us through the financial year to the next AGM and beyond.

Thank you.

Yours sincerely,

Prince-Ajibola Afonja

Chairman
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Company Secretary's Department

Samuel Asabia House, 35 Marina,
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Telephone: +234 1 9050000, Ext. 2124, 9052124

Web: www.firstbanknigeria.com

FIRST BANK OF NIGERIA LIMITED
Directors' Report
For the Year Ended 31 December, 2014

The Directors present their report on the affairs of First Bank of Nigeria Limited (“the Bank")
and its subsidiaries (“the Group"), together with the financial statements and auditors' report
for the financial year ended 31 December, 2014.

4. Legal Form

The Bank which commenced operations in Nigeria on 31 March, 1894 as a branch of
Bank of British West Africa Limited (BBWA) was incorporated as a private limited liability
company in Nigeria in 1969. It was converted to a public company in March, 1970. The
Bank’s shares were listed on the floor of The Nigerian Stock Exchange by way of
introduction in March, 1971,

b.  Principal Activity and Business Review

The principal activity of the Bank is the provision of banking and other financial services
to corporate and individual customers. Such services include: granting of loans and
advances, corporate finance and money market activities.

The Bank has ten (10) subsidiaries namely: FBN Bank (UK) Limited, FBN Mortgages
Limited, First Pension Custodian Nigeria Limited, FBN Bank (Congo) Limited, FBN Bank
(Ghana) Limited, FBN Bank (Guinea) Limited, FBN Bank (Gambia) Limited, FBN Bank
(Sierra Leone) Limited, FBN Bank (Senegal) Limited and FBN Finance Company
(Netherlands) Limited. :

The Bank prepares consolidated financial statements.

¢.  Operating Results

Gross earnings of the Group increased by 22.2%, while the Profit before Tax increased
by 9.1%, and the Profit before Tax for the Bank increased by 5.9%, over the previous

year's.

The Directors recommend the approval of a final dividend of §49.79 billion (December,

2013: 439.15 billion). %

BOARD RRQIREGERRS: Chanman Prince Ajibola A. Afonja, Group Managing Director and Crief Executive Officer: Bisi O ya, Directors: Adetokunbo M. Abiru,
Adesalady Aderyniag. fukun A, Awosika, Urum £, Eke (MFR), Ambrose Feese, Tunde Hassan-Odukale, Lawal K. Ibrahim, ljsoma E. Jidenma, Ebenezer A. Jolaoso, Dauda Lawal, -1 F—
M. Macdido, Abiodun Cdubolz, Obafemi A. Otudeko, Mahey R. Rasheed (OFR), Gbenga Shabo, Khadijah A. Straub, Ibrahim D. Wazir.,




FIRST BANK OF NIGERIA LIMITED
Directors' Report
For the Year Ended 31 December, 2014

Highlights of the Group’s operating results for the period under review are as follows:

31-Dec-2014 31-Dec -2013

# million #& million
Gross Earnings 455,392 372,557
Profit Before Tax 94,452 86,585
Taxation (9,526) (21,009)
Profit After Tax from Continuing Operations 84,926 65,572
Profit/(Loss) After Tax from Discontinued Operations (84) 875
Non-Controlling Interest 15 107
Appropriations
Transfer to Statutory Reserves 12,536 9,015
Transfer to/(from) Statutory Credit Reserves 41,043 (8,114)
Transfer to Retained Earnings Reserve 84,827 66,342

d.  Directors’ Rotation

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association, Mallam Bello Maccido, Alhaji
Mahey R. Rasheed, OFR, Mrs. Ibukun A. Awosika, Mr. Ebenezer A. Jolaoso, Prince
Ajibola A. Afonja and Mr. Bisi Onasanya would retire by rotation and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Resignation / Retirement

During the year under review, Mrs. Ibiai A. Ani, a Non-Executive Director, resigned from
the Board with effect from March 20, 2014, and Mr. Adebayo Adelabu, the erstwhile
Executive Director/CFO, resigned from the Board with effect from March 28, 2014.
Appointment of Directors

Three (3) Directors were appointed in the 2014 financial year, as follows:

= Mr. Abiodun T. Odubola was appointed Executive Director/Chief Risk Officer with
effect from January 16, 2014.

= Dr. (Mrs.) lieoma E. Jidenma was appointed an Independent Non-Executive Director
with effect from January 16, 2014.

= Dr. Adesola K. Adeduntan was appointed Executive Director/Chief Financial Officer
with effect from July 1, 2014.
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FIRST BANK OF NIGERIA LIMITED
Directors' Report
For the Year Ended 31 December, 2014

g.  Directors’ interests in contracts

For the purpose of section 277 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 LFN
2004, none of the Directors had direct or indirect interest in contracts or proposed
contracts with the company during the year.

h.  Property and equijpment

Information relating to changes in property and equipment is given in Note 28 to the
Accounts. In the Directors’ opinion, the market value of the Group’s properties is not
less than the value shown in the financial statements.

i Shareholding Analysis

The Bank is 99.9% owned by FBN Holdings Pic.
/ Hurman Resources

Employment of Disabled Persons

It is the policy of the Bank that there should be no discrimination in considering
applications for employment, including those from physically challenged persons. All
employees whether or not physically challenged are given equal opportunities to
develop. As at 31 December, 2014, 25 physically challenged persons were employed by
the Bank.

In the event of members of staff becoming disabled, efforts will be made to ensure that
their employment with the Bank continues and appropriate training arranged to ensure
that they fit into the Bank’s working environment.

k.  Health, Safety and Welfare at Work

Health and safety regulations are in force within the Bank's premises and employees are
aware of existing regulations. The Bank provides subsidy to all levels of employees for
medical, transportation, housing, etc.

Fire prevention and fire-fighting equipment are installed in strategic locations within the
company's premises.

The company operates both Group Personal Accident and Workmen's Compensation
insurance covers for the benefit of its employees. It also operates a contributory pension
plan in line with the Pension Reform Act, 2004 (as amended).

First Bank af Nigera Ltd - AC 5,00
A FAN Heldings Company



FIRST BANK OF NIGERIA LIMITED
Directors' Report
For the Year Ended 31 December, 2014

/ Employee Involvement and Training

The Bank ensures, through various fora, that employees are informed on matters
concerning them. Formal and informal channels are also employed in communication
with employees through an appropriate two-way feedback mechanism.

In accordance with the Bank’s policy of continuous development, training facilities are
provided in the Bank’'s well-equipped training school, First Academy. In addition,
employees of the Bank are nominated to attend both local and international training
courses. These are complemented by on the job training.

m.  Diversity in Employment

The Bank is committed to maintaining a positive work environment and to conducting
business in a positive, professional manner by consistently ensuring equal employment
opportunity. As at December 31, 2014, the Bank had 32% females in top management
positions. The table below shows the gender distribution of top management staff by

grade:

TOP MANAGEMENT COMPLIMENT BY GENDER AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2014
Female | Male | Grand Total

Group Managing Director/Chief Executive 1
Executive Director 6 6
General Manager 3 3
Deputy General Manager 13 13 26
Assistant General Manager 7 27 34
Total 23 50 73
% Distribution 32 68 100

0.
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FIRST BANK OF NIGERIA LIMITED
Directors' Report
For the Year Ended 31 December, 2014

n.  Donations and Charitable Gifts

The Bank made contributions to charitable and non-political organizations amounting to
#1,194.51 million (December, 2013: #1,248.78 million) during the year, as shown in the

table below:
SN | Description Amount (#4)
1 Financial Markets Dealers Association's 25th Anniversary 2,000,000.00
2 Kaduna Polo 2,015,000.00
3 God's Children Got Talent season 4 2,500,000.00
4 First Bank Table Tennis Competition 2,500,000.00
5 | Nigeria Guild of Editors 2,500,000.00
6 | CIBN 8th Annual Banking Conference 2,500,000.00
7 | LEAP Africa 3,000,000.00
8 Digital Africa Sponsorship 5,000,000.00
9 2014 Lagos Heritage week 5,000,000.00
10 | The Digital Africa 2014 5,000,000.00
11 | 2014 CIBN Lagos Bankers' Nite 5,000,000.00
12 | Ajumogobia Science Foundation 5,000,000.00
13 | Young Inventors - NTA Television Programme 5,720,000.00
14 | Businessday Banking Awards 2014 10,000,000.00
15 | Nigeria Leadership Initiative - 2014 13,350,000.00
16 | World Economic Forum 18,600,000.00
17 | 2014 Nigeria Economic Summit 18,760,000.00
18 | Diamond Category Sponsorship of the 20th NESG 20,000,000.00
19 | 2014 Subvention of the FirstBank Sustainability Centre LBS 20,000,000.00
20 | Sponsorship of Ignite TV series - SME 24,000,000.00
21 | World Pension Summit - Africa Special 2014 25,000,000.00
22 | Ogun State Investors forum 25,000,000.00
23 | Crime Fighters - Police & You 25,000,000.00
24 | Calabar Carnival 170,000,000.00
25 | Nigeria Centenary Celebration 250,000,000.00
26 | Donations to Victims of Terror 250,000,000.00
27 | Others 277,065,700.00
Total 1,194,510,700.00

wst Bank of Nugeria Ltd - 8C 50U
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FIRST BANK OF NIGERIA LIMITED
Directors' Report
For the Year Ended 31 December, 2014

0. Audlitors

The Auditors, Messrs. PriceWaterhouseCoopers, have indicated their willingness to act
and continue in office as auditors. In accordance with Section 357 (2) of the Companies
and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 LFN 2004, a resolution will be proposed at the Annual
General Meeting to authorize the Directors to determine their remuneration.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

/ f
Olayiwola Yahaya
Company Secretary
Lagos, Nigeria
February, 2015

First Bank of Rigeria Ltd - AC 5730
An FEN Holdings Company
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February 27, 2015

The Director of Banking Supervision
Central Bank of Nigeria
Abuja

FIRST BANK OF NIGERIA LTD
Responsibility for Annual Financial Statements

The Companies and Allied Matters Act and the Banks and Other Financial Institutions Act,
require the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year that gives a true
and fair view of the state of financial affairs of the Bank at the end of the year and of its
profit or loss. The responsibilities include ensuring that the Bank:

i. keeps proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy, the
financial position of the bank and comply with the requirements of the Companies
and Allied Matters Act and the Banks and Other Financial Institutions Act:

ii. establishes adequate internal controls to safeguard its assets and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities; and

iii.  prepares its financial statements using suitable accounting policies supported by
reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates, that are consistently applied.

The directors accept responsibility for annual financial statements, which have been
prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent
judgments and estimates, in conformity with,

J International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS);

° Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria (FRC) Act;

. Prudential Guidelines for Licensed Banks;

o relevant circulars issued by the Central Bank of Nigeria;

*  the requirements of the Banks and Other Financial Institutions Act: and
o the requirements of the Companies and Allied Matters Act.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS: Chairman: Prince Ajibola A. Afonja, Group Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer: Bisi On Directors: Adetokunbo M. Abiru, Adesola K.
Adeduntan, bukun A. Awosika, Urum K, Eke, Ambrose Feese, Tunde Hassan-Odukale, Lawal K, lbrabim, lleoma E. Jidenma, Ebenezer A Jolaoso, Dauda Lawal, Bello M. Macrido,
Abiodun Odubola, Gbafemi A. Otudeko, Mahey R. Rasheed (OFR), Gbenga Shobo, Khadijah A. Siraub, aeahim D, Wazii,
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The directors are of the opinion that the IFRS financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of the financial affairs of the Bank and Group and of the profit for the year. The
directors further accept responsibility for the maintenance of accounting records that may
be relied upon in the preparation of financial statements, as well as adequate systems of
internal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the directors to indicate that the Bank will not remain
a going concern for at least twelve months from the date of this statement.

. C;‘g ”?’“E

esola Adeduntan Bisi Onasanya
Executive Director/CFO Group Managing Director/CEO
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR TO THE MEMBERS OF
FIRST BANK OF NIGERIA LIMITED

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying separate and consolidated financial statements of First Bank of
Nigeria Limited (“the bank”) and its subsidiaries (together “the group”). These financial statements
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2014, the income statement and the
statements of other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and with the requirements of the
Companies and Allied Matters Act and the Banks and Other Financial Institutions Act and for such
internal control, as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an independent opinion on the financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform our audit to obtain
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Chartered Accountants, 252E Muri Okunola Street, Victoria Island, Lagos, Nigeria
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Opinion

In our opinion the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the
financial affairs of the bank and the group as at 31 December 2014 and of the financial performance
and cash flows of the group for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, the Banks and
Other Financial Institutions Act and the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act.

Report on other legal requirements

The Companies and Allied Matters Act and the Banks and Other Financial Institutions Act require that
in carrying out our audit we consider and report to you on the following matters. We confirm that:

i) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

ii) the bank has kept proper books of account, so far as appears from our examination of those
books and returns adequate for our audit have been received from branches not visited by us ;

iii) the bank’s statements of financial position and comprehensive income are in agreement with
the books of account;

iv) the information required by Central Bank of Nigeria Circular BSD/1/2004 on insider related
credits is disclosed in Note 43 to the financial statements;

v) to the best of our information, there were no penalties for contraventions of relevant circulars
issued by the Central Bank of Nigeria except as disclosed in note 46 to the financial

statements. ARSTTUTE OF.CHARTEHED 520 b 4 fot
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For: PricewaterhouseCoopers

Chartered Accountants

Lagos, Nigeria

Engagement Partner: Tola Ogundipe
FRC/2013/ICAN/00000000639
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Samuel Asabia House, 35 Marina,
P.0.Box 5216, Lagos, Nigena

Telephone: +234 1 9050000, Ext. 212¢, 9052124
Web: www.firstbanknigeria.com

REPORT OF THE BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE

Based on self-regulation aligned to Section 359 of the Companies and Allied Matters
Act, Cap C20 LFN 2004, pertaining to public limited liability companies, and in
compliance with 5.5.2.5 of the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) Code of Corporate
Governance for Banks and Discount Houses in Nigeria, we have reviewed the draft
Audited Financial Statements for the Commercial Banking Group for the year ended
December 31, 2014 and hereby state as follows:

1) The scope and planning of the audit were adequate in our opinion.

2) The accounting and reporting policies of the Bank conformed with statutory
requirements and agreed ethical practices.

3) The internal control was being constantly and effectively monitored.

4) The external auditors’ Management Letter received satisfactory response from
Management. i

5) The external auditors are independent and did not engage in any of the services
prohibited for statutory auditors under the Charter of the Committee.

6) The Committee reviewed the Audit Report on insider/related party transactions
and is satisfied with their status, as required by the CBN.

Dated February 11, 2015.
Mahey R. Rasheed, OFR
Chairman,

Board Audit Committee

Members of the Committee

Alhaji Lawal K. Ibrahim
Mr. Tunde Hassan-Odukale.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS: Chairman: Prince Ajibola A. Atonja, Group Managing Directar and Chief Executive Olficer: Bisi Onasanya, Directoss: Adetokunbo M. Abiru,
Adesola K. Adeduntan, Ibukun A. Awosika, Urum £. Eke (MFR), Ambrose Feese, Tunde Hassan-Odukale, Lawsal £. Ibrahim, jeoma E. Jigenma, Ebenezer A Jolaoso, Dauda Lawai, Belo
M. Maccido, Abiodun Oguoela, Obalemi A. Olugeko. Mahey R. Rasheed (OFR), Gbenga Shobo, Khadijah A. Straub, ibrahim D. Wazisi,

First Bank of Nigeria Ltd - RC G220
An FEN Holdings Company



KPMG Advisory Services Telephone 234 (1) 271 8955

K!’MGTower 234 (1) 271 8599
Bishop Aboyade Cole Street [ 234 (1) 271 0540

Victoria Island
PMB 40014, Falomo
Lagos

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT ON THE APPRAISAL OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF FIRST BANK OF NIGERIA LTD

In compliance with the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) Code of Corporate Governance for Banks and
Discount Houses in Nigeria (“the CBN Code™), First Bank of Nigeria Ltd (“FirstBank” or “the Bank”)
engaged KPMG Advisory Services to carry out an appraisal of the Board of Directors (“the Board”) for the
year ended 31 December 2014. The Code mandates an annual appraisal of the Board with specific focus on
the Board’s structure and composition, responsibilities, processes and relationships, individual director
competencies and respective roles in the performance of the Board.

Corporate governance is the system by which business corporations are directed and controlled to enhance
performance and shareholder value. It is a system of checks and balances among the Board, management,
and investors to produce a sustainable corporation geared towards delivering long-term value.

Our approach to the appraisal of the Board involved a review of the Bank’s key corporate governance
structures, policies and practices. This included the review of the corporate governance framework and
representations obtained during one-on-one interviews with the members of the Board and management.
We also assessed the level of compliance of the Board with the CBN Code.

On the basis of our review, except as noted below, the Bank’s corporate governance practices are largely
in compliance with the key provisions of the CBN Code. Specific recommendations for further improving
the Bank’s governance practices have been articulated and included in our detailed report to the Board.
These include recommendations in the following areas: Board appointment process, whistle-blowing
activities, Board approval process and related-party transactions.

- - -

A
-
(!
Olumide Olayinka

Partner, KPMG Advisory Services
FRC/2013/1CAN/00000000427
23 April 2015

Internet www,kpmg,com/ng

KPMG Advisory Services, a Pannership established under
i f

Nigeria law, is a I i

{"KPMG International”), a swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Registered in Nigeria No BN 2145583
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First Bank of Nigeria Limited

INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December Note
Continuing operations

Interest income 7
Interest expense 8
Net interest income

Impairment charge for credit losses 9
Net interest income after impairment charge for credit losses

Fee and commission income 10(a)
Fee and commission expense 10 (b)
Net gains on Foreign exchange income 11
Net gains on investment securities 12

Net gains/(losses) from financial assets classified as held for trading 13
Dividend income

Other operating income 14
Personnel Expenses 15 (b)
Amortisation of Intangible assets 29
Depreciation of Property, plant & equipment 28
Other operating expenses 15 (a)
Profit before tax

Income tax expense 16
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Discontinued operations

(Loss)/Profit for the year from discontinued operations 26

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share for profit attributable to owners of the parent
Basic/diluted earnings per share: 49
From continuing operations
From discontinued operations

14

GROUP BANK
31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions
349,277 310,224 309,936 284,438
(109,722)  (86,409) (94,487) (77,729)
239,555 223,815 215,449 206,709
(25,730)  (20,521) (20,924) (19,838)
213,825 203,294 194,525 186,871
58,499 53,246 49,416 45,847
(6,940) (5,448) (8,574) (5,479)
43,284 6,625 41,283 4,750
837 1,383 146 2,931
541 (1,386) 541 (1,386)
1,202 905 3,716 2,079
1,837 967 1,433 661
(72,726)  (60,456) (63,011) (53,287)
(1,268) (1,517) (647) (662)
(10,531) (9,823) (9,741) (9,164)
(134,108) (101,205)  (127,727) (96,308)
94,452 86,585 81,360 76,853
(9.526)  (21,009) (6,185) (17,488)
84,926 65,576 75,175 59,365
(84) 875 4,176 -
84,842 66,451 79,351 59,365
84,827 66,344 79,351 59,365
15 107 - -
84,842 66,451 79,351 59,365
2.60 2.01 2.30 1.82
(0.00) 0.03 0.13 -
260 2.04 2.43 1.82




First Bank of Nigeria Limited

STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME GROUP BANK
31 December 31 December
For the year ended 31 December Note 2014 2013 2014 2013
N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 84,842 66,451 79,351 59,365
Other comprehensive income:
ltems that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
Net gains /(loss) on available-for-sale financial assets
-Unrealised net gains arising during the year, before tax 1,657 (15,217) 5,124 (14,104)
-Net reclassification adjustments for realised net gains /(losses),
before tax (2,466) 2,487 (2,061) 2,487
Share of other comprehensive income of associates - (259) B -
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations 5,296 434 - -
items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements on defined benefits scheme 35 (373) 1,860 (408) 1,936
Income tax relating to components of other comprehensive income 804 917 122 635
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 4,817 (9,778) 2,777 (9,047)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 89,659 56,673 82,128 50,318
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the parent 89,644 56,566 82,128 50,318
Non-controlling interests 15 107 - #
89,659 56,673 82,128 50,318
Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the
parent arises from :
Continuing operations 89,728 55,691 82,128 50,318
Discontinued operations 26 (84) 875 - -
89,644 56,566 82,128 50,318
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First Bank of Nigeria Limited

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION GROUP BANK
Restated Restated
As at 31 December 31 Decemt 31D L 3D ber 31 December 31 December
Note 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013
N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions N *millions N 'millions
ASSETS
Cash and balances with central banks 17 697,601 593,973 298,024 670,045 541,221
Loans and advances to banks 18 430,053 415,210 394,173 242,842 367,571
Loans and advances to customers 20 2,193,563 1,797,935 1,562,695 1,794,037 1,473,830
Financial assets held for trading 21 10,708 4,743 2,565 9,258 2,225
Investment securities
-Available-for-sale investments 22 442 551 451,423 353,499 404,508 359,052
-Held to maturity investments 22 156,353 283,267 330,860 140,467 278,876
Asset pledged as collateral 23 64,527 53,651 50,109 63,158 52,406
Other assets 3 39,457 44,729 39,725 29,173 36,067
Investment in associates 27 - 6,225 5,609 - 2,224
Investment in subsidiaries 24 - - - 58,986 56,307
Property, plant and equipment 28 83,404 78,489 74,474 74,782 71,895
Intangible assets 29 8,103 8,594 3.417 2,272 1.241
Deferred tax 30 2384 4,587 7,955 1.343 3,655
4,128,704 3,742,826 3,123,105 3,490,871 3,246,579
Asset held for sale 26 293 4,549 5,221 - -
Total assets 4,131,635 3,747,375 3,128,326 3,490,871 3,246,579
LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks 32 163,710 77,481 87,551 19,246 10,155
Deposits from customers 33 2,989,735 2,942 782 2,405,035 2,551,022 2,570,719
Financial liabilities held for trading 21 9,913 1,701 1,796 7,946 1,697
Current income tax liability 16 8,530 31,633 22,536 6,558 29,836
Other liabilities 38 131,704 182,542 118,290 103,556 156,989
Borrowings 34 362,978 126,302 75,541 377,950 125,363
Retirement benefit obligations 35 2,012 1,776 18,648 1,546 111
Deferred tax 30 38 10 9 - -
3,668,618 3,364,227 2,729,406 3,067,824 2,895,870
Liabilities held for sale 26 - - 819 - -
Total liabilities 3,668,618 3,364,227 2,730,225 3,067,824 2,895,870
EQuITY
Share capital 37 16,316 16,316 16,316 16,316 16,316
Share premium 38 189,241 189,241 189,241 189,241 189,241
Retained eanings 38 118,620 93,584 97,437 87,200 67,166
Other reserves 38 137,199 82,381 93,754 130,290 77,986
461,376 381,522 396,748 423,047 350,709
Non-controlling interest 1,641 1,626 1,353 - -
Total equity 463,017 383,148 398,101 423,047 350,708
Total equity and liabilities 4,131,635 3,747,375 3,128,326 3,490,871 3,246,579

The financial statements on pages 14 to 115 were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 February 2015 and signed on

its behalf by: U@ﬁ
MM& Bisl Onasanya —Adesola Adeduntan

Chairman Group Managing Director / CEQ Executive Director / Group CFO
FRC/2013/ICAN/00000002304 FRCI2013/ICAN/O0000001962 FRC/2014/ICAN/O0000010466
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First Bank of Nigeria Limited

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flow used in operations

Income taxes paid

Interest received

Interest paid

Net cash flow (used in)/generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of investment securities

Proceeds from the sale of investment securities

Cash and cash equivalent acquired from subsidiary
Additional investment in subsidiaries

Dividends received

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend paid

Proceeds from new borrowings
Repayment of borrowings

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities

Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

GROUP BANK
Note 31 December 31 December

2014 2013 2014 2013
N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions
39 (676,144) (109,278) (691,756) (31,818)
(30,276) (8,455) (27,028) (3,734)
342,481 316,263 300,537 290,527
(96,306) (83,705) (88,418) (75,025)
(460,245) 114,825 (506,665) 179,950
(405,833) (352,003) (383,723) (312,820)
406,794 368,398 388,733 355,321

25 191 5,253 - -
- - (4,850) (15,959)
1,202 905 3,716 2,079
(15,212) (12,807) (13,154) (12,699)
(2,086) (1,160) (1,896) (603)
654 396 591 886
(14,290) 8,982 (10,583) 16,205
(39,159) (32,632) (39,159) (32,632)
309,298 96,297 288,179 98,353
(71,308) (46,473) (65,545) (54,975)
198,831 17,192 183,475 10,746
(275,704) 140,999 (333,773) 206,901
18 762,421 621,422 707,290 500,389

(438) - 216 -
18 486,279 762,421 373,734 707,290
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First Bank of Nigeria Limited

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2014

24

2.2

General information

These financial statements are the consolidated financial

statements of First Bank of Nigeria Limited (the Bank), and its
subsidiaries (hereafter referred to as 'the Group').

The Registered office address of the Bank is at 35 Marina,
Samuel Asabia House, Lagos, Nigeria.

The principal aclivilies of the Bank is mainly retail and corporate
banking. Retail banking provides banking services and products
fo individuals and smallmedium scale enterprises, such as

savings account, investment savings products, loans and money
transfers. Corporate banking provides banking services and

products to multinational and local corporations, as well as
financial and governmental Institutions, such as credit facilities
and project finance.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2014 were approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 24 February 2015,

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
these financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all lhe years presented, unless
otherwise stated,

Basis of preparation

The Group's consolidated financial statements for the year 2014
have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the IASB. Additional
information required by national regulations Is included where
appropriate.

The financial statements comprise the income statement,
statement of comprehensive income, statement of financial
position, the statement of changes in equily, statement of cash
flows and the related notes for the Group and the Bank.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the going concern principle under the historical cost convention,
as modified by available-for-sale financial assets, and financial
assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at
fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS
requires the use of ceriain crilical accounting estimates. It also
requires direclors o exercise judgement in the process of
applying the accounting policies. Changes in assumptions may
have a significant impact on the financial statements in the period
the assumptions changed.

The Direclors believe that the underying assumptions are
appropriate and that the Group's financial statements therefore
present the financial position and resulls failly. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumplions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 5.

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

New and amended standards adopted by the group

The following standards have been adopted by the group for the
first time for the financial year beginning on or after 4 January
2014 and are applicable to the Group:

() Amendments to IAS 36 - Impairment of assets feffective 1
January 2014)
These amendments address the disclosure of information about the
recoverable amount of impaired assels if that amount is based on
fair value less costs of disposal. These amendments require
disclosure of the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU when an
impairment loss has been recognized or reversed; and it require
detailed disclosure of how the fair value less costs of disposal has
been measured when an impairment loss has been recognized or
reversed. The amendment did not have an impacl on the
consolidated financial statements of the group, as the group did not
reverse or recognise an impairment loss on any non-financial assets
whose recoverable amount was based on fair value less costs of
disposal.

(i) Amendments to IAS 32 - Offsetting financial assets and

financial liabilities {effective 1 January 2014)

These amendments clarify some of the requirements for offsetting
financial assets and financial fiablilities on the statement of financial
position. They do not change the cumrent offsetting model in IAS 32
but clarify that the right of set-off must not be contingent on a future
event. It also must be legally enforceable for all counterparties in the
normal course of business, as well as in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy.

(i) IFRS 13 - Fair value measurement

The amendment clarifies that the portfolio exception in IFRS 13,
which allows an entity to measure the fair value of a group of
financial assels and financial liabilities on a net basis, applies to all
contracts (including non-financial contracts) within the scope of IAS
39 or IFRS 9. When IFRS 13 was published, paragraphs B5.4.12 of
IFRS 9 and AG79 of IAS 39 were deleted as consequential
amendments. This led to a concem that entities no longer had the
ability to measure short-term receivables and payables at invoice
amounts where the impact of not discounting is immaterial. The IASB
has amended the basis for conclusions of IFRS 13 1o clarify that it
did not intend to remove the abilty to measure shor-term
bles and payables at invoice amounts in such cases.

(i) IFRIC 21 - Levies (effective 1 January 2014)

IFRIC 21, ‘Levies', sets out the accounting for an obligation to pay a
levy that Is not income tax. The interpretation could result in

recognition of a fiability later than today, particularly in connection
with levies that are triggered by circumstances on a specific date. Il
addresses the accounting for a liability to pay a levy recognized in
accordance with IAS 37, ‘Provisions’, and the liability to pay a levy
whose liming and amount is certain. It excludes income taxes within
the scope of IAS 12, ‘income taxes'. The interpretation does not
address whether the liability to pay a levy gives rise to an asset or an
expense. Entilies will need to apply other standards to determine the
accounting for the expense. The Group is not subjected to levies that
are not income taxes within the scope of I1AS 12, thus the standard
did not have an impact on the consolidated financial statements for
the Group.
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{(v) Amendment to IAS 19 (effective annual periods beginning on or

2.2.1 New standards, interpretations and amendments to existing after 1 July 2014)

standards that are not yet effective

A number of new standards, interpretations and amendments
thereto, had been issued by IASB which are not yet effeclive for
these consolidated financial statements. The following new
standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards
have been published and are mandatory for the Group's
accounting periods beginning after 1 January 2014.

(i) IFRS 8, Financial Instruments’ (effective for periods

beginnning on or after 1 January 2018):

This IFRS is part of the IASB’s project to replace IAS 39. IFRS 9
addresses classification and measurement of financial assels and
replaces the mulliple classification and measurement models in
IAS 39 with a single model that has only two classification
categories: amortised cost and fair value. The guidance in IAS 39
on impairment of financial assets continues to apply. However,
entities will be required to present the effects of changes in own
credit risk of financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss in other comprehensive income. The standard also
provides entities with an accounting policy choice beh

The amended IAS 19 states that changes in the defined benefit
obligation and fair value of plan assets are recognised in the period
as they occur. The “"comridor” method is eliminated and acluarial
gains and losses and unrecognised past service costs are
recognised direclly in other comprehensive income. Because
acluarial gains and losses are no longer deferred, both the net
defined benefit liability/asset and the amounts recognised in income
statement are affected.The amended standard splits changes in
defined benefit liabilities/assets in:

- Service cost (including past service costs, curailments and
selllements) — in income statement

- Net interest costs (i.e. net interest on the net defined benefit
liability) - income statement;

- Remeasurement of the defined benefit liability/asset - in other
comprehensive income.

There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet
effective that would be expecled to have a material impact on the
Group.

Consolidati

applying the hedge accounting requirements of IFRS 9 and
continuing to apply IAS 39 to all hedges because the standard
cumently does not address accounting for macro hedging. The
Group is yet to assess the full effect of IFRS 9 and Intends to
adopt IFRS 9 no later than the accounting period beginning on or
after 1 January 2018.The directors will also consider the impact of
the remaining phases of IFRS 9 when completed by the IASB,

(W) IFRS 15 - Revenue from contracts with customers feffective
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017)

IFRS 15 specifies how and when an IFRS reporter will recognise
revenue as well as requiring such entities to provide users of
financial statements with more informalive, relevant disclosures.
The standard provides a single, principles based five-step model
to be applied to all contracts with customers. The Group is yet to
assess the full effect of IFRS 15 and intends to adopt IFRS 15 not
later than the accounting period beginning on or after January
2017.

(i) IAS 24 -Related party disclosures (effective annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2014)

The standard is amended to include, as a related party, an enlity
that provides key gement personnel services to the
reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting entity (‘the
management enlity’). The reporting entity is not required to
disclose the compensation paid by the management entity to the
management entity's employees or directors, but it is required to
disclose the amounts charged to the reporting enlily by the
management entity for services provided.

(iv) IFRS 8 - Operating segments’ (effective annual periods

beginning on or after 1 July 2014)

The standard is amended to require disclosure of the Jjudgements
made by management in aggregating operating segments. This
includes a description of the segments which have been
aggregatled and the economic Indicators which have been
assessed in determining that the aggregated segments share
similar economic characteristics. The standard is further amended
to require a reconciliation of segment assets to the entity’s assets
when segment assels are reported.

a.

The financial statements of the consolidated subsidiaries used fo
prepare the consolidated financial statements were prepared as of
the parent company's reporting date.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which
the group has control. The group controls an entity when the group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the enlity and has the ability lo affect those retums through jts
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Investment in subsidiaries is measured at cost in the separale
financial statements of the parent.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the group.

The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulling from a contingent consideration amrangement,
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-controfling interest's
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’ s
identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. If the business
combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date camying
value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree
Is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains or
losses arising from such re-measurement are recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the group is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date, Subsequent changes
to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be
an asset or liability is recognised in accordance with 1AS 39 either in
profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-
measured, and its subsequent selllement is accounted for within
equity.
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Consolidation

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest measured Is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in
the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transaclions between group companies are eliminated,
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. Where necessary,
amounts reporied by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform
with the Group's accounting policies.

(i) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of
control
Transactions with non-controliing interests that do not result in
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is,
as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of nel assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equily. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

(i) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the group ceases to have conlrol, any retained interest in
the entity is re-measured to ils fair value at the date when control
is lost, with the change in camying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequenlly accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial assel. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

b. Disposal of subsidiaries

This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

c. Associates

Associates are all entilies over which the group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding
of between 20% and 50% of the voling rights.

Investment in associates is measured at cost in the separate
financial statements of the investor.

Investment in associales are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting in the Consolidated Financial Statements of
the Group. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the cammying amount is increased or
decreased to recognise the investor's share of the profit or loss of
the investee after the date of acquisition.

The group’s investment in associates includes goodwill identified
on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence Is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate,

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised
in the income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
mavements in other comprehensive income is recognised in
other comprehensive income with a coresponding adjustment to
the carmying amount of the investment. When the Group's share
of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate,

24

25

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If
this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of Impairment as
the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to 'share of
profit/(loss) of associates in the income statement,

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reporied in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker, The
chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the Group management Committee that
makes

slrategic decisions.

Common control transactions

A business combination involving entilies or businesses under
common control is excluded from the scope of IFRS 3: Business
Combinations. The exemption is applicable where the combining
enlities or businesses are controlled by the same parly both before
and after the combination. Where such transactions occur, the Bank,
in accordance with 1AS 8, uses its Judgment in developing and
applying an accounting policy that is relevant and reliable. In making
this judgment, directors consider the requirements of IFRS dealing
with similar and related issues and the definitions, recognition criteria
and measurement concepls for assets, liabiliies, income and
exf in the fra rk

Directors also consider the most recent pronouncements of other
standard setting bodies that use a similar conceptual framework to
develop accounting standards, to the extent that these do not conflict
with the IFRS Framework or any other IFRS or interpretation.

Accordingly, the Bank's policy is that the assets and liabiities of the
business transferred are measured at their existing book value in the
consolidated financial statements of the parent, as measured under
IFRS.

The Bank incorporates the resulls of the acquired businesses only
from the date on which the business combination occurs,

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Naira which
is the group's presentation currency.

. Transaclions and balances

Foreign currency transaclions are translated into the funclional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactlions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monelary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement.

Changes in the fair value of monelary securities denominated in
foreign currency classified as available for sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the security and other changes in the camying
amount of the security. Translation differences related to changes in
amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in
carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive income,
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2.7

o
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Foreign currency translation (confinued)

Translation difierences on non-monetary financial assels and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised in profil or loss as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial assels,
such as equities classified as avallable for sale, are included in
other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities which
have functional currency different from the Group’s presentation
currency, are translated into the Group's presentation currency as
follows:

+ assets and liabililies of each forelgn operation are translated at
the rates of exchange ruling at the reporting date;

*income and expenses of each foreign operation are translated at
the average exchange rate for the period, unless this average Is
not a reasonable approximation of the rate prevailing on
transaction date, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rate ruling at transaction date; and

+ all resuling exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

- Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a

foreign enlity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate . Exchange differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Income taxation

Current income tax

2.8

(i)
(i)

(i)

29

Income tax payable is calculated on the basis of the applicable tax 2.9.1

law in the respective jurisdiction and is recognised as an expense
(income) for the period except lo the extent that current tax
related to items that are charged or credited in other
comprehensive income or direclly to equily. In these

circumstances, current tax is charged or credited to other
comprehensive income or to equity (for example, current tax on
equily instruments for which the entity has elected to present
gains and losses in other comprehensive income).

Deferred income fax

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences
arising between the lax bases of assels and fiabilities and their
camying amounts in the consolidated financial statements,

However, deferred tax liabiliies are not recognised if they arise
from the initial recognition of goodwill; deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liabifity in a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounling nor taxable
profit or loss.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income
lax assel is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only o the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint arrangements, except for deferred income tax liability
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable fulure,

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint arangements only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future and
there is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised,

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset cument tax assels against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes (assets
and liabilities) relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable enfity or different laxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net
basis.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are only offset when they arise in
the same tax reporting group and where there is both the legal right
and the intention to setlie on a net basis or fo realise the asset and
setlle the liability simultaneously.

Inventories

The Morigage subsidiary of the group purchases and construcls
properties for resale,

Thus the Group recognises Properly as inventory under the following
circumstances:

property purchased for the specific purpose of resale.

properly constructed for the specific purpose of resale (work in
progress under the scope of IAS 18, ‘Revenue’)

property transferred from investment properly to inventories. This is
permitled when the Group commences the property's development
with a view to sale.

They are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
comprises direct materials and, where appropriate, labour and
production overheads which have been incurred in bringing the
inventories and work in progress to their present location and
condition. Cost is determined using weighted average cost. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price less estimated
costs to completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and
distribution.

Financial assets and liabilities

In accordance with IAS 39, all financial assets and liabilities - which
include derivative financial instruments — have to be recognised in
the stalement of financial position and measured in accordance with
their assigned category.

Financial assets

The Group allocales financial assets to the following IAS 39
categories: financial assels at fair value through profit or loss: loans
and receivables; held-to-maturity investments; and available-for-sale
financial assets. Directors determine the classification of its financial
instruments at initial recognition.

Financial assets held for trading

A financial assel is classified as held for trading if it is acquired or
incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the
near term or if it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a
recent aclual paltem of shori-term profit-taking. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are designated and
effective as hedging instruments. Financial assets held for trading
consist of debt instruments, including money-market paper, iraded
corporate and bank loans, and equity instruments, as well as
financial assets with embedded derivatives.

Financial instruments included in this category are recognised initially
at fair value; transaction costs are taken directly to profit or loss.
Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are included
directly in the income statement and are reported as ‘Net

gains/(losses) on financial instruments classified as held for trading’.
Interest income and expense and dividend income on financial
assels held for trading are included in ‘Net interest income’ or
‘Dividend income’, respectively.

The instruments are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows have expired or the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and the transfer qualifies for
derecognising.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial ts with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market,
other than:

(i) those that the Group intends to sell immediately or in the short term,

which are classified as held for trading, and those that the entity
upon initial recognition designates as at fair value through profit or
loss;

(ii) those that the Group upon initial recognition designates as available

for sale; or

(iii) those for which the holder may not recover substantially all of its

initial investment, olher than because of credil deterioration.
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Loans and receivables are initially recognised at fair value — which
is the cash consideration 1o originate or purchase the loan
including any transaclion costs — and measured subsequently at
amortised cost using the effeclive interest method. Loans and
receivables are reported in the statement of financial position as
loans and advances to banks or customers or other assets and
cash balances. Interest on loans is included in the profit or loss
and is reported as 'Interest income'.

In the case of an impairment, the impairment loss is reported as a
deduclion from the camying value of the loan and recognised in
the profit or loss as ‘impairment charge for credit losses'.

¢. Held-to-maturity financial assets
Held-to-maturily investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the
Group's management has the positive intention and ability to hold
to maturity, other than:
(i) those that the Group upon initial recognition designates as held
for trading;
(i)} those that the Group designates as available for sale; and
(i) those that meet the definition of loans and receivables.

These are initially recognised at fair value including direct and
incremental transaction costs and measured subsequently at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Interest on held-to-maturity investments is included In the income
statement and reported as 'Interest Income’. In the case of an
impairment, the impairment loss has been reporled as a
deduclion from the camying value of the investment and
recognised in the income statement as ‘Net gains/(losses) on
investment securities’,
d. Available-for-sale financial assels
Available-for-sale investments are financial assels that are
intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates,
exchange rates or equily prices or that are not classified as loans
and ivables, held-to-maly ily investments or financial assets
al fair value through profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recognised at fair
value, which is the cash consideration including any transaction
costs, and measured subsequently al fair value with gains and
losses being recognised in other comprehensive income, except
for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and losses,
until the financial asset is derecognised. If an available-for-sale
financial asset is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in other omprehensive income is
recognised in the income statement,

However, interest is calculated using the effective interest
method, and foreign currency gains and losses on nen-monetary
assels classified as available for sale are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in the income statement in ‘dividend
income’ when the Group's right to receive payment is established.

e. Recognition

29.2

293

294

The Group uses seftlement date accounting for regular way

contracts when recording financial asset transactions. Financial

assets thal are transferred to a third parly but do not qualify for
derecognition are presented in the statement of financial position as
‘Assets pledged as collateral’, if the transferee has the right fo sell or
repledge them.

Financial liabilities

The Group's holding in financial liabilities is in financial liabiiities held
for trading and financial liabilties at amortised cost . Financial
liabilities are derecognised when extinguished.

. Financial Liabilities held for trading

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is acquired or
incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the
near term or if it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a
recent actual pattem of short-term profit-taking. Derivalives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are designated and
effective as hedging Instruments. Financial liabilities held for trading
also include obligations to deliver financial assets borrowed by a
short seller.

Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of financial
liabilities classified held for frading are included in the income
stalement and are reported as ‘Net gains/ {losses) on financlal
instruments classified as held for trading'. Interest expenses on
financial liabilities held for trading are included in ‘Net interest income’,

. Other liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not classified at held for trading fall into
this category and are measured at amortised cost. Financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost are deposits from banks or custormners,
debt securilies In issue for which the fair value option Is not applied,
convertible bonds and subordinated debts.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are classified as assets when their fair value is positive or
as liabilities when their fair value is negative. Derivative assels and
liabilities arising from different transactions are only offset where
lhere is a legal right of offset of the recognised amounts and the
parties intend to setlle the cash flows on a net basis, or realise the
assel and setile the liability simultaneously.

Embedded derivatives

Hybrid contracts contain both a derivative and a non-derivative
component. In such cases, the derivative component is termed an
embedded derivative. Where the economic characteristics and risks
of the embedded derivatives are not closely related to those of the
host contract, and the host contract itself is not carried at fair value
through profit or loss, the embedded derivative is bifurcated and
measured al fair value with gains and losses being recognised in the
income statement.

24



First Bank of Nigeria Limited

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2014

2.9.5 Determination of fair value 2.9.6 De-recognition of financial instruments

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaclion
between market participants at the measurement date.

For financial instruments ftraded in active markets, the

determination of fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities is based on quoted market prices or dealer price
quotations. This includes listed equity securities and quoted debt
instruments on major exchanges (for example, NSE) and broker
quotes from Bloomberg and Reuters,

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an amm’s length basis.

If the above criteria are not met, the market is regarded as being
inactive. Indications that a market is inactive are when there is a
wide bid-offer spread or significant increase in the bid-offer spread
or there are few recent transactions.

For all other financial instruments, fair value is determined using
valuation techniques. In these technigues, fair values are
estimated from observable data in respect of similar financial
Instruments, using models to estimate the present value of
expecled fulure cash flows or other valuation techniques, using
inputs (for example, LIBOR yield curve, FX rates, volatilities and
counterparty spreads) existing at the dates of the statement of
financial position.

The Group uses widely recognised valuation models for

determining fair values of non standardised financial instruments
of lower complexity, such as options or interest rate and cumrency
swaps. For these financial instruments, Inputs into models are
generally market-observable,

For more complex instruments, the Group uses intemally
developed models, which are usually based on valuation methods
and techniques generally recognised as standard within the
industry. Valuation models are used primarily to value derivatives
transacted in the over-the-counter market, unlisted securilies
(including those with embedded derivatives) and other
instruments for which markets were or have become iliquid.
Some of the inputs to these models may not be market
observable and are therefore estimated based on assumptions.
The impact on net profit of financial instrurment valuations
reflecting non-market observable inputs (level 3 valuations) is
disclosed in Note 3.7

The output of a model is always an estimate or approximation of a
value that cannot be determined with certainty, and valuation
lechniques employed may not fully reflect all factors relevant to
the positions the Group holds. Valuations are therefore adjusted,
where appropriate, to allow for additional factors including model
risks, liquidity risk and counterparty credit risk.

Based on the established fair value mode| govemance policies,
and related confrols and procedures applied, management
befieves that these valuation adjustments are necessary and
appropriate to faidy state the values of financial instruments
carried at fair value in the statement of financial position. Price
data and parameters used in the measurement procedures
applied are generally reviewed carefully and adjusted, if
necessary — particularly in view of the cument market
developments.

The estimated fair value of loans and advances represents an
estimation of the value of the loans using average benchmarked
lending rates which were adjusted for specific entity risks based
on history of losses.

2,10

2.1

The Group derecognises a financial assel only when the contraciual
nights to the cash flows from the asset expire or it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and conlinues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associaled liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial assel and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

Offsetting financial instruments

Master agreements provide that, if an event of default occurs, all
oulstanding transactions with the counterparty will fall due and all
amounts outstanding will be settled on a net basis,

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the statement of financial position when there is a currently legally
enforceable right to offsel the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to setlle on a net basis or realise the asset and setlle the
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on fulure events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

Revenue recognition

. Interestincome and expense

Interest income and expense for all interest-bearing financial
instruments are recognised within ‘interest income’ and ‘interest
expense’ in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

The effeclive interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cos! of a financial asset or liability (or group of assets and
liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exaclly discounts the expected fulure cash payments or receipls
through the expected life of the financial instrument, or when
appropriale, a shorler period, to the net camying amount of the
instrument. The application of the method has the effect of
recognising income (and expense) receivable (or payable) on the
inslrument evenly in proportion to the amount outstanding over the
period to maturity or repayment. In calculating effective interest, the
Group estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument but excluding future credit losses.

Fees, including those for early redemption, are included in the
calculation to the extent that they can be measured and are
considered to be an integral part of the effective interest rate, Cash
flows arising from the direct and incremental costs of issuing financial
Instruments are also taken into account in the calculation. Where it is
not possible to otherwise estimate reliably the cash flows or the
expected fife of a financial instrument, effective interest is calculated
by reference to the payments or receipts specified in the contract,
and the full contractual term.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
wrilten down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised using the rale of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impaimment loss.
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(b) Assets classified as available for sale ({continued)
in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated
income statement on equity instruments are not reversed through

2.11 Revenue recognition {continued)

b. Fees and commission income

=

Unless included in the effective interest calculation, fees and
commissions are recognised on an accruals basis as the service
is provided. Fees and commissions not integral to effective
interest arising from negotiating, or participating in the negotiation
of a transaction from a third parly, such as the acquisition of
loans, shares or other securiies or the purchase or sale of
businesses, are recognised on completion of the underying
transaction. Partfolio and other management advisory and service
fees are recognised based on the applicable service contracts.
The same principle is applied lo the recegnition of income from
wealth management, financial planning and custody services that
are continuously provided over an extended period of time.

2,12 Impairment of financial assets
(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses al the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or group of financial
assels Is impaired and impairment losses are incured only if
there is objective evidence of Impairment as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(a 'loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be refiably estimaled,

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or dlinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate wilh
defaults,

For loans and receivables calegory, the amount of the loss is

measured as the difference between the assel's carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding

future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying

amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is

recognised in the consolidated income statement. If a loan or held-
to-maturity investment has a variable interest rale,the discount

rate for measuring any impairment loss is the cument effective

interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical

expedient, the group may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument's fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment Joss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occuring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtors credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Assets classified as available for sale

The group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence thal a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. For debt securities, the group uses

the criteria referred to (a) above. In the case of equity investments
classified as available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline

in the fair value of the security below its cost is also evidence that
the assets are impaired. I any such evidence exists for available-
for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss measured as the

difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously

recognised in profit or loss is removed from equity and recognised

the consolidated income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the
fair value of a debt instrument classified as available for sale
increases and increase can be objectively related to an event
occuring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss,
the impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated income
statement.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicale that the carmying amount may not be
recoverable. Additionally, assets that have an indefinite useful life are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset's camying amount exceeds ils recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assels are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows (cash-generating units), The
impalrment test also can be performed on a single asset when the
fair value less cost to sell or the value in use can be determmined
reliably. Non-financial assels other than goodwill that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each
reporting date for any indication that the loss has decreased or no
longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed i there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's
carrying amount does not exceed the carmrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised. An impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is not reversed.

Collateral
The Group obtains collateral where appropriate, from customers to
manage their credit risk exposure to the customer. The collateral
nommally takes the form of a lien over the cuslomer's assets and
gives the Group a claim on these assets for both existing and future
customer in the event that the customer defaulls.

The Group may also use other credit instruments, such as stock
borrowing contracls, and derivative contracts in order to reduce their
credit risk.

Collateral received in the form of securities is not recorded on the
statement of financial position. Collateral received in the form of cash
is recorded on the stalement of financial posilion with a
corresponding liability. These items are assigned to deposits
received from bank or other counterparties. Any interest payable or
receivable arising Is recorded as interest expense or interest income
respectively.

Discontinued operations
Classffication as a discontinued operation occurs on disposal or
when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held for
sale. When an operation is classified as a discontinued operalion,
the comparative income statement is re-presented as if the operation
had been discontinued from the start of the comparalive year.

Non-cument assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held
for sale when their camrying amount is to be recovered principally
through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly probable.
They are staled at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
cosls to sell.
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216 Leases 2.17 Property, Plant and Equipment {continued)

Leases are divided into finance leases and operating leases.
a. The group is the lessee

() Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by another parly, the lessor, are classified
as operaling leases, Payments, including prepayments, made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease, When an operating lease is
terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment
required to be made to the lessor by way of penally is recognised
as an expense in the period in which termination takes place,

(i) Finance lease

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised al the lease's commencement at
the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to
achieve a constant rate on the finance balance oulstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are
included in deposits from banks or deposits from customers
depending on the counter party.

The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the income
statement over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period.

b The group is the lessor

() Operating lease
When assets are subject fo an operaling lease, the assets
continue to be recognised as property and equipment based on
the nature of the assel. Lease income Is recognised on a straight
line basis.

(i) Finance lease
When assels are held subject to a finance lease, the related
assel is derecognised and Ihe present value of the lease
payments (discounted at the interest rate implicit in the lease) is
recognised as a receivable. The difference between the gross
ivable and the p value of the receivable is recognised
as unearned finance income. Lease income is recognised over
the term of the lease using the net investment method which
allocates rentals between finance income and repayment of
capital in each accounting period in such a way that finance
income will emerge as a constant rate of return on the lessor's net
investment in the lease,

2.17 Property, Plant and Equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly branches and offices. All
property, plant and equipment used by the parent or ils
subsidiaries is stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical
cost includes expendilure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent expenditures are included in the asset's carrying
amount or are recognised as a separate assel, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to other
operating expenses during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Land included in leasehold land and buildings is not depreciated.
Depreciation of other assets is calculated using the straightline
method to allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:
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Depreciation rates, methods and the residual values underlying the
calculation of depreciation of items of property, plant and equipment
are kept under review on an annual basis to take account of any
change in circumstances.

When deciding on depreciation rates and methods, the principal
factors the Group takes into account are the expected rate of
technological developments and expected market requirements for,
and the expected patiem of usage of the assets.

When reviewing residual values, the Group estimates the amount
that it would currenlly obtain for the disposal of the assel after
deducting the estimated cost of disposal if the asset were already of
the age and condition expected at the end of its useful economic life.

No depreciation is provided on freehold land, although, in common
with all long-lived assets, it is subject to impairment testing, if
deemed appropriate.

Conslruction cost and improvements in respect of offices is carried
at cost as capital work in progress. On completion of construction or
improvements, the relaled amounts are transferred to the
appropriate category of property and equipment.
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2.18 Intangible assets 2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

a. Goodwill
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiary and associates,
and represents the excess of the cost of acquisition, over the fair
value of the Group's share of the assels acquired, and the
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed on the date of the
acquisition. For the purpose of calculating goodwill, fair values of
acquired assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities are determined
by reference to market values or by discounting expected future
cash flows to present value. This discounting is either performed
using market rates or by using risk-free rates and risk-adjusted

Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three
months’ maturity from the date of acquisition, Including cash in hand,
depaosils held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original malurilies of three months or less.

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash and non-restricted balances with central
banks.

expected future cash flows. Goodwill is initially recognised as an 2,20 Employee benefits

asset at cost and subsequently measured at cost less The Group has both defined benefit and defined contribution plans

accumulated impairment losses, if any. Goodwil which is

recognised as an asset is reviewed at least annually for

impairment. Any impairment loss is immediately recognised in a. Defined contribution plan

profit or loss. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no
legal or construclive obligations to pay further contributions if the

For the purpose of impairment tesling, goodwill is allocated to fund does nol hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits

each cash-generalting unit that is expecled to derive benefit from relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered

goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary

more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be basis. The Group has no further payment obliigations once the

impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit Is contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as

less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss Is employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contribyiions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a

allocated first to reduce the camying amount of any goodwill reduction In the future payments is available.

allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-

rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.

Any impairment loss recognised for goodwill is nol reversed in a

subsequent period. b. Defined benefit plan

Goodwill on acquisitions of associates is included in the amount of A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that defines an amount of

the investment. pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually

Gains and losses on the disposal of an entily include the carrying dependent on one or more faclors, such as age, years of service

amount of the goodwill relating to the entity sold. and compensalion.

b. Computer software The liability recognised in the statement of financial position in
Costs associated with maintaining computer software respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the
programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred. defined benefit obligation at the date of the statement of financial
Development costs that are directly afttributable to the design and position less the fair value of plan assels.
testing of identifiable and unique software products controlled by The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent
the Group, are recognised as intangible assets when the following actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value
crileria are met: of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the

(i) Itis technically feasible to complete the software product so that it Estimated future cash outflows using inlerest rates of Federal
will be available for use; government bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the

() Management intends to complete the software product and use or benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating
sell it; the terms of the related pension liability.
(i) There is an ability to use or sell the software product;
(iv) It can be demonstrated how the software product will generate
probable fulure economic benefits; Remeasurements are charged or credited fo equity in other
(v) adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Past
development and to use or sell the sofiware product are available; service cosls are recognised Immediately in income.
and
(vi) the expenditure atiributable to the software product during its
development can be reliably measured,
2.21 Provisions

Subsequent expenditure on compuler software is capitalised only
when it increases the future economic benefils embodied in the
specific asset to which it relates.

Direct computer software development costs recognised as
intangible assets are amortised on the straight-line basis over 3
years and are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. The carmrying amount of
capitalised computer software Is reviewed annually and is written
down when the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

¢. Bank brands, customer deposits and customer relationships
acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value at
the acquisiion date. They have finite useful lives and are
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. These costs are amortised fo
profit or loss using straightline method over 3 years, 5 years and 2
years respeclively.

Provisions are recognised for present obligations arising as
consequences of past events where it is probable that a transfer of
economic benefit will be necessary to setfle the obligation, and it can
be reliably estimated.

When a leasehold property « to be used in the business or a
demonstrable commitment has been made to cease to use a
property where the costs exceed the benefits of the property,
provision Is made, where the unavoidable costs of the future
obligations relating to the lease are expected to exceed anlicipated
rental income and other benefits,

The net costs are discounted using market rates of interest to reflect
the long-term nature of the cash flows.

Provision is made for the anticipated cost of restructuring, including
redundancy costs when an obligation exists. An obligation exists
when the Group has a detailed formal plan for restructuring a
business and has raised valid expectations in those affected by lhe
restructuring by stariing to implement the plan or announcing its
main features. The provision raised is normally utilised within nine
months.
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2.22

2.23

2,24

Provisions (continued)

Provision is made for undrawn loan commitments and similar
facilities if it is probable that the facility will be drawn and result in
the recognition of an assel at an amount less than the amount
advanced.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will
be confirmed only by uncertain future events or present
obligations where the transfer of economic benefit is uncertain or
cannot be refiably measured. Contingent liabilities are not
recognised but are disclosed unless they are remote.

Fiduciary activities

The Group acls as trustees and in other fiduciary capacities that
result in the holding or placing of assels on behalf of individuals,
trusts, refirement benefit plans and other institutions, These
assels and income arising thereon are excluded from these
financial statements, as they are not assets of the Group.

Issued debt and equity securities

Issued financial instruments or their components are classified as
liabilities where the contractual arrangement results in the Group
having a present obligation to either deliver cash or another
financial asset to the holder, to exchange financial instruments on
terms that are potentially unfavourable or to salisfy the obligation
olherwise than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of equity shares. Issued
financial instruments, or their components, are classified as equity
where they meet the definilion of equity and confer on the holder
a residual interest in the assets of the Bank. The components of
issued financial instruments that contain both liability and\ equity
elements are accounted for separalely with the equity component
being assigned the residual amount after deducting from the
instrument as a whole the amount separalely determined as the
fair value of the fability component.

Share capital

Share issue costs

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options or to the acquisition of a business are shown in equity
as a deduclion, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares
Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the
period in which they are approved by the shareholders,

Dividends for the year that are declared after the reporling date
are dealt with in the subsequent events note.

Dividends proposed by the Directors bul not yel approved by
members are disclosed in the financial statements in accordance
with the requirements of the Company and Allied Matters Act.

Earmings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted eamings per share (EPS)
for ils ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the
profit and loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the
profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.24 Share capital continued

225

d. Treasury shares
Where the Bank or other members of the Group purchase the
Bank's equity share capital, the consideration paid is deducted from
total shareholders’ equity as treasury shares until they are cancelled.
Where such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any
consideration received is included in shareholders’ equity.

. Statutory credit reserve

In compliance with the Prudential Guidelines for licensed Banks, the
Group assesses qualifying financial assets using the guidance under
the Prudential Guidelines. The guidelines apply objective and
subjeclive criteria towards providing for losses in risk assets. Assels
are classed as performing or non-performing. Non-performing assels
are further classed as Substandard, Doubtful or Lost with attendants
provision as per the table below based on objective criteria.

Classification Percentage Basis
Substandard 10% Interest and/or
principal overdue by
90 days but less
than 180 days
Interest andfor
principal overdue by
180 days but less
than 365 days
Interest and/or
principal overdue by
more than 365 days

Doubtful

Lost 100%

A more accelerated provision may be done using the subjective
criteria. A 1% provision is taken on all risk assets that are not
specifically provisioned.

The results of the application of Prudential Guidelines and the
impairment determined for these assets under IAS 39 are compared.
The IAS 39 determined impairment charge is always included in the
income statement,

Where the Prudential Guidelines provision is greater, the difference
is approprialed from Relained Eamings and included in a non-
distributable reserve "Statutory credit reserve”. Where the IAS 39
impairment is greater, no appropriation is made and the amount of
the IAS 39 impairment is recognised in income statement.

Following an examination, the regulator may also require more
amounts be set aside on risk and other assets. Such additional
amounts are recognised as an appropriation from retained eamings
to statutory risk reserve.

Financial guarantees

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Group to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value, and the initial fair
value is amortised over the life of the financial guarantee. The
guarantee liability is subsequently carmied at the higher of this
amortised amount and the present value of any expected payment
(when a payment under the guarantee has become probable).
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a1

3.2

3.241

Financial risk management
Introduction and overview
The Group defines risk as the possibility of Josses ar profits foregone, which may be caused by internal or extemal factors.

The Group's aim Is to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and retum and minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance,

Risk management is camied out by the Bank's risk di (the Di } under policies approved by the Board of Direclors. The Bank's
Risk Manag Direct: provides central ight of risk g across the Bank and ils subsidiaries to ensure that the full spectrum of risks facing
the Bank and the Group are properly identified, d, itored and d to minimise ad i The Board provides written principles for
overall risk managemenl, as well as wiillen policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rals risk, credil risk, use of derivative
financial i and non-derivalive i fal instn In addition, internal control s resp for the independent review of risk management and the
conlrol environment, while intemal audil has the respansibility of auditing the risk management funclion 1o ensure that all units ch ged with risk

their roles effectively on a i basis. Intemal audit also tests the adequacy of the intemal and make apy dali

where weaknesses are identi'fied with the view of strengthening the Group's risk management framework.

The risks arising from financial instruments to which the Group is exposed are financial risks, which Includes cred risk, Fiquidity risk and market risk (discussed
in subsequent sections)

The key el of the risk hilosophy are the following

*The Bank i sound risk g 1o be the foundation of a long-lasting financial institution.

* The Bank continues lo adopl a holistic and integrated pproach to risk and, therefore, brings all risks together under one or a limited number of
oversight functions.

* Risk officers are emy 1 to perform their duties professianally and ind Iy without undue interference.

* Risk management is governed by well-defined policles that are clearly communicaled across the Bank,

* Risk Il is 8 shared responsibility. Therefore, the Bank aims to build a shared perspective on risks thal is grounded In consensus.

* The Bank's risk g is clearly defined.

* There is a clear segreg of duies bet, market-facing business unils and risk management functions.

* Risk-related Issues are taken into i in all bus decisit The Bank shall continue o strive to maintain a conservative balance between risk

and revenue considerations.

“Risk officers work as allies and thought part to ather stakehaldars within and oulside the Bank and are guided in the exercise of thelr powers by a deep
sense of responsibility, professionalism and respect for other paries; and

* Risks are reported openly and fully to the appropriate levels once they are identified.

* Risk officers work as allies and thought p {o other stakehalders within and oulside the Bank, and are guided in the exercise of their powers by a deep
sense of responsibility, professionalism and respect for other paries.

* All subsldiaries are guided by the principles enshrined in the risk management policies of the Bank.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of suffering financial loss, should any of the Group's customers, clients or markat counterparties fail to fulfil their contractual obligations to
the Group. Credil risk arises mainly from ial and Ioans and ad and loan arising from such lending activities, but can
also arise from credit enh provided, such as fi , letlers of cradit, end and

Credit risk is the single largest risk for the Group's busi theref full its to credil risk. The credit risk managemenl

and control are centralised in a credit risk management team, which reports to the Chief Risk Officer (CRO) regularly.

Credit risk measurement
In measuring credit risk of loans and advances 1o customers and to banks at a counterparty level, the Group reflects the following components:

» The characler and capacily o pay of the client or party on its cont | ohligations;

» Cumrent exg to the party and its ikely future development;

* Credit history of the counterparty; and

* The likely recovery rafio in case of default obligations — value of collateral and other ways out. The Group's raling scale, which is shown below, reflects the
range of defaull probabilities defined for each rating class. This means thal, in principle, exy migrale bety classes as the assessment of their
probabifity of default changes. The rating tools are revi and d when Y. The Group regulary the perf of the raling and
their predictive power with regard to defaull events,
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3.2.1 Credit risk measurement {continued)
(a) Obligor Risk Raling (ORR system)

The obligor risk rating grids have a minimum of ten risk buckets 1o provide a pre-set, objeclive basis for making credil decisions, with one additional bucket

specifically included lo calegorise obligor in default. The obligor risk rating is mapped lo the probabilily of default of the customer and the raling adopled

depends on the type of cuslomer and the nature of business to reflect the i risks iated with each A

of impairment are specifically noted in the defaull rating bucket of the obligor risk rating grid wilh impai 1 all d for ’:s“; thal has been
incumed. Each risk bucket may be denoted alphat ly and by range of scores as follows:
) Rating Bucket Probability of Default p—
Description Range of Scores|Large Corporate Mid-Corporate| SME
Extremely low risk AAA 1 100%-444% 0.01
Very low risk AA 2 100%-83.33% 0.01 0.01 B
Low risk A 3 100%-72.22% 0.02 0.02 0.02
Low risk BBB 4 TLIN%-66.67% 0.02 0.02 0.02
Acmeplable - Moderalely High risk BB 5 66.66% -55.56% 0.04 0.0 [T
High risk B & 555 A% 0.06 0.0¢ 0.06
Very hls’l!“i&_ CCC 7 L435-3333% 0.09 0.05 0.09 |Non-Investment
Extremely high risk CC ] 33.32%-1667% 0.13 0.1 0.13
Highly Likelihood of defaull = 9 6.65%-5.56% 0.1 .15 0.15
|Del‘null£ak D 10 5.55%-0.00% 1.00 .00 1.00 |Dofault
(b) CoBateral Risk Rating (CRR)/Facility Risk Raling (FRR)
* The Bank does not lend o non i grade obligors, on an basis, excepl as specified under a product programme. The Facility Risk Rating
(FRR) is different from the Obliger Risk Raling (ORR) to the extent of the p d value of coll I provided.
The Facility Risk Rating approximates a ‘loss nomm' for each facility, and is the product of two components:
- The Default Probability of the Obliger, i.e. the ORR
- The Loss Given Default ie, a of the exp ic loss if the obligor defaulls, and includes write offs, recoveries, interest income, and legal
cosls.
* The Collateral Risk Rating Grid indi the plabl types and rated 1-8 from best to waorst in order of liquidity, controllabilily and realizable
value,
Collateral risk ratin |Colateral
Rating Bucket |Collateral
Cash
Treasury Bills/Govi Securilies
Guarantee/reccivables of invesiment grade banks
4 !L_ggl_l And Equilable Marigage
4 |Debenture Trust Deed,/ Fixed Debenture & Mortgage Debenture
4 |Legal Mort, on residentinl business real eslate in prime locations A & B
4 |Legal Mortgage or debenture on business premises, faclory assels or commercial real estales in locations A & B
Domiciliation of bles from acceplable Corporals
Ei ble lien on fast moving inventory in bonded warchouses
uitable Mortgages on real eslales in any location
Negative Pledge/Clean lending
Domicilintion_of ather receivables
7 |Letters Of Comfort Or Awnreness, Guarantee Of Non - Investment Grade Banks And Corporales
8 |Leter Of Hypothecalion, Personal Guarantee
3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies
The Group limits and of credil risk wherever they are identified - in particular, to individual T and groups, and to
industries and counlries.
Such risks are monitored on a regular basis and subject to an annual or more frequent review, when considered necessary. Limils on the level of credit risk by
product, industry sector and counterparty are set by the Board of Direclors on the of the E ive Director/Chief Risk Officer.
(a) Portfolio limits
In line with the Group's credit policy, a di P plan is prep lly and provides a fi for ion of credits and risk appelite
development. In drawing up the plan, the Group reviews macro-economic, regulatory and political factors, identifies seclorsfindustries with opp y as well
as the Group's busi targets to di ine appropriate p and sub-portfolio imits.
The Group's Portfolio fimil includes:

+ Mainlain aggregate large exposure of not more than 400% of Bank's shareholders’ funds.
* Maintain minimum weighted average obligor risk rating (obligor-WARR) of ‘BB’
* Maintain minimum weighted average facility risk rating (facility-WARR) of ‘BB’

* The Group adopts Induslryleconomic seclor limits on its loan portfolio, in line with the Tallowing policies:

= The Group would not have more than 25% of its portfolio in any group of positively correlated Industries in terms of risk (e.g., oil exploration and oil service,

tyre g and tyre distribution, elc.).

= The Group would strive to limit its exposure lo any single industry to not more than 20% of its loan porifolio and such industry must be raled ‘BBB’ or better,
= No more than 15% of the Group's porifalio would be in any industry raled ‘B8’ or worse.
~No more than 10% of the Group's porifolio in any single industry rated 'B' or worse
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3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies continued
(b} Geographical limits

Presenlly, the Group's exposures outside Nigeria are taken by its subsidiaries in the United Kingdom and other African countries, which operale within country
limits defined by their Boards of Directors. However, the Group has a fully developed country risk rating system that could be employed, should the need arse.
In such ity, limits will be  on counlry risk rating.

(c) Single obliger limits

* The Graup as a matter of policy does not lend above the regulalory lending imit in each of the juri in which it op . Intemal guid: limits are also
set fo create a prudent buffer.

» For all retail borrowers, limits are kept low and graduated with credil scoring, forecast cash flow and realizable value of collateral. The group shall apply the
granularity critedon on its retail credit porifalio:

= No single retail loan should amount to more than 0.2% of total retall portfolio.

The Group also sets internal cradit approval limits for various levels in the credit process and these are shown in the table below,
Approval limils are sel by the Board of Directors and reviewed from lime to time as the circumstances of the Group demand. Exposure to credit risk is also

managed through regular ysis of b and p b to meet interest and capital repay bl and by changing these lending limils
where appropriate.

STANDARD CREDIT APPROVAL GRID FOR WHOLESALE AND RETAIL LENDING

Approval levels Investment grade Non - investment grade
(N'000) (N'000)

Board of Direclors =>58,000,000 >58,000,000

2 Board Credit Committes 58,000,000 58,000,000

3 Management Credit Commiltee 30,000,000 ,000,000
Group Managing Director + Chief Risk

4 Officer + Business Senlor Credit Officer 10,000,000 3,000,000
Risk Senior Credit Officer 1 + Business

5 Senior Credit Officer 1/5C02 8,000,000 2,500,000
Business Senlor Credil Officer 1 + Risk

6 Senior Credit Officer 2 5,000,000 1,000,000
Risk Senior Credit Officer 3 + Business

7 Senior Credit Officer 2 500,000 250,000
Risk Senior Credit Officer 4 + Business

8 Development Manager/ Group Head 100,000 100,000
Business Manager + Group Head + Credit

g Officer 25,000 25,000

The group also controls and miligates risk through collateral.

Collateral held as security for Loans and advances to customers

The Group employs a range of policies and praclices to mitigate credit risk. The most traditional of these is the taking of security on loans and advances,
isa praclice. The Group impl idefines on the plability of specific classes of collateral or credit risk miligati The principal colt
types for loans and advances are:

which

* Cash/ Government Securities
 Mortgages over residential prof :
* Charges over business asse!s such as p i y and

* Charges over financial instruments such as debl securities and equities.

Lending decisions are usually based on an obligor's ability 1o repay from normal business operalions rather than on proceeds from the sale of any security
Mol e

F Coll values are dbyap i at the time of loan origination and are th in with the provisions of the
credit policy. The types of collateral P and the freq y wilh which they are required at origi is dependent on the size and struclure of the
b For exp to cory and large institutions, the Group will often require the collateral to include a first charge over land and buildings owned
and pied by the busi L a gage debenture over the pany’s und @ on one or mare of its assels and [ . The decision as to

thether ar not coll is required is based upon the nature of the , the credit worlhi of the cusi and obligor risk rating. Other than for
project finance, object finance and income producing real estate where charges over the subject assels are a basic I the provision of coll will
not determine the outcome of a credit application. The fund busi Proposition must evidence the ability of the business fo generale funds from

normal business sources o repay the debt,

32



First Bank of Nigeria Limited

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2014

323

3.2.4

3.26

a2y

Collateral held as security for Loans and ady to ft i)

The extent lo which collateral values are aclively managed will depend on the credit quality and other circumstances of the obligor. Although lending decisions
are pred ly based an d a lateral provided may impact other terms of a loan or facility granted. This will have 2 financial impact

on the amount of net interest income recognised and on internal loss-given-default esti that bute to the ds tion of assel quality. The Group
credit risk disclosures for unimpaired lending report assets gross of coll and therefore disclose the i loss exp The Group believes this
P h is appropriale as coll: values al origination and during a period of good perf may not be ref ive of the value of collateral if the
obligor enlers a di d stale. For impaired lending, the value of collateral is re-evaluated and its legal soundness re-assessed if there is observable
evidence of dist of the b . this is used lo delermine potential loss all and ts strategy to try to either repair the
business or recover the debt. Uni d lending, including any i collateral, is dona by basis rather than a portfolio
basis. No aggregated infi for the unimpaired d lending portfolio is provided to key | 1

The Group takes physical f of properiias or other assets held as collateral and uses external agents lo realise the value as soon as practicable o
setlle indebledness. Any surplus funds realised from such di posal are ratl i to the t or are otherwise dealt with in accordance with appropriate
regulations. The assets in such cases are not carried on the Group's balance sheat.

Call held as ity for fi assels other than loans and advances depends on the nature of the inst Debt . b y and other
eligible bills are d, with the plion of assel-backed securties and similar i which are d by portfolios of fi ial
instrumants.

Exposure Management

To minimise the risk and occurence of loss as a result of decline in quality and non-performance of risk assets, clear requirements and guidelines for on-gaing

management of the risk asset portfolio and individual risk are defined. On-going exy o entails coll facility
i itori quality reviews, prompt and timely identification of decline in quality and risk portfolio reporting.

Delii y M tLoan Work
The Group's deling y g Process invol ffective and timely management of accounts showi g signs of 3 y to reduce the
crystaliisation of impalrment loss. In fine with the p's delinquency g F all activilies are geared towards resuscitating delinquent loans

and includes restructuring and loan work-out amangements.

Credit Recovery

In the event of continued delinquency and failure of remediation, full credit recovery action Is initiated to recover on such exposures and minimise the overall
credit loss to the Group. Recovery aclion may include app of a receiver ger, exi | recovery agent and/or sale of pledged assels,

M of fon risk

The Group limits and of credil risk 1o individual \erparties, groups, | and

The Group defines levels of concentration risk It is wiling 1o take by placing limits on credit exp fo & single b L groups of b and geograpk
and industry Such risk limits app d by the Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Executive Direclor/Chief Risk Officer
and monilored on a regular basis, The concentration risk limils may be reviewed from time 1o time to reflect changi and y conditions

as well as the Group's business thrust.

Impai t and provisioning polici

e s ised for fi
evidence of impairment,

only for losses that have been incurred at the reporting date based on objective
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329 M basis of fi ial assets and liabilities.

GROUP

31 December 2014
Financial assets

Cash and balances with Central Banks

Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances to cuslomers
- Overdrafts
- Term loans
- Staff loans
- Project finance
- Advances under finance lease
Investment securities:

il fe

Held to maturity investments
Asset pledged as collateral
Financial assets held for irading
Other assats

Total Financial Assets

Financial liabilities

Cuslomer deposils

Depasits from banks

Financial liabllities held for trading
Bormrowings

Other liabilities

Total Financial Liabilities

31 December 2013
Financial assets

Cash and balances with Central Banks

Loans and advances fo banks
Loans and advances lo customers
- Overdrafls

- Term loans

- Staff loans

- Project finance

- Advances under finance lease
Investment securities:

for-sale i 1

Held to malurity investments
Assel pledged as collaleral
Financial assets held for trading
Other assels

Total Financial Assets

Financial liabilities

Custorner deposits

Deposils from banks

Financial liabilities held for trading
Bormowings

Other lizbilities

Total Financial Liabilities

Fair Value Fair Value
through PJL  through OCI
Held for  Available for
trading sale Amortised Cost Total
Nmillion N'million Nmitlion N'mifiion
- - 697,601 697,601
- - 430,053 430,053
- - 314,112 314,112
- - 1,792,119 1,792,118
- - 7,013 7.013
- - 77,558 77,558
- - 2,781 2,761
- 442,551 - 442,551
- - 156,353 156,353
- 19,203 45,324 64,527
10,708 - - 10,708
- - 26,728 26,728
10,708 461,754 3,548,622 4.022,084
- - 2,989,735 2,989,735
- - 163,710 163,710
9,913 - 9,913
- - 362,978 362,976
= = 129,484 125,484
9,913 - 3,645,905 3,655,818
- - 583,973 583,873
- - 415,210 415,210
- - 340,054 340,054
- - 1,388,912 1,388,912
- - 6,071 8,071
- - 60,803 60,803
- - 2,095 2,005
- 451,423 - 451,423
= - 283,267 283,267
- 20,382 33,269 53,651
4,743 - - 4,743
- - 30,318 30,318
4,743 471,805 3,153,972 3,630,520
- - 2,942,782 2,942,782
= - 77.481 77.481
1,701 - - 1,701
- - 126,302 126,302
- - 181,734 181,734
1.701 - 3,328,299 3,330,000
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3.29 M basls of fi | assets and liabilities (continued).
FairValue  Fair Value
through P/L  through OCI
Held for  Avallable for
trading sale Amortised Cost Total
N'million N'million Nmillion N'mifiion
BANK
31 December 2014
Financial assets
Cash and balances with Central Banks - - 670,045 670,045
Loans and advances lo banks - - 242,842 242 842
Loans and advances to customears
- Overdrafis - - 295,257 295,257
- Term loans - - 1,473,342 1,473,342
- Slaff loans - - 6,152 6,152
- Project finance - - 16,525 16,525
- Advances under finance lease - - 2,761 2,761
Financial assets held for trading 9,258 - - 9,258
Investment securities:
/ for-sale invest - 404,508 - 404,508
Held to maturity invesiments - - 140,467 140,467
Assel pledged as collateral - 19,203 43,955 63,158
Other assels - - 17,323 17,323
Total Financial Assets 8,258 423,711 2,908,669 3,341,638
Financial liabllities
Cuslomer deposils - - 2,551,022 2,551,022
Depasils from banks - - 18,246 19,246
Financial liabililies held for trading 7,946 - - 7.946
Bormowings - - 377,950 377,950
Other liablities - - 101,652 101,652
Total Financlal Liabilities 7.548 - 3,049,870 3,057,816
31 December 2013
Financial assets
Cash and balances with Central
Banks - - 502,249 502,249
Loans and advances o banks - = 367,571 367,571
Leans and advances to customers
- Overdrafis - - 327,200 327,209
- Term loans - - 1,078,200 1,078,200
- Slaif loans - - 5,532 5,532
- Project finance i . 60,803 60,803
- Advances under finance lease - - 2,005 2,095
Investment securities:
fi le i - 359,052 - 359,052
Held to maturity investments - 278,876 278,876
Asset pledged as collateral - 18,137 33,269 52,406
Financial assets held far trading 2,225 - - 2,225
Other assels - - 22,968 22 968
Total Financial Assets 2,225 378,189 2,678,772 3,059,186
Financial liabilities
Customer deposils - - 2,942,782 2,942 782
Deposits from banks = F 77,481 77,481
Financial liabililies held for trading 1,697 - - 1,697
Bomowings - - 125,363 125,363
Other liabilities - - 156,821 156,821
Total Financial Liabilities 1,697 - 3,302,447 3,304,144




First Bank of Nigeria Limited

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2014

3.2.10 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or credit enhancements
Credit risk exposures relaling to on balance shest assets are as follows:

GROUP

Balances with central banks
Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances to cuslomers
- Overdrafls

- Term loans

- Staff loans

- Project finance

- Advances under finance lease
Financial assels held for trading
Invesiment securilies - Debt

for-sala 1 I

-Held to maturity investments
Assel pledged as collateral
Other assels

Credit risk exposures relating to off balance sheet assels are as follows:

Loan commitments
Letter of credit and other credil related obligations

TOTAL MAXIMUM EXPOSURE
BANK

Balances with cenlral banks

Loans and advances to banks

Leans and advances lo cuslomers

- Qverdrafis

- Term loans

-~ Stafl loans

- Project finance

- Advances under finance lease

Financial assets held for trading

Investment securilies
£

-Held to maturity invesiments
Asset pledged as collateral
Other assets

Loan commilments
Letter of credit and other credit related obligations

TOTAL MAXIMUM EXPOSURE

31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013

N'millions N'millions
634,205 522,202
430,053 415,210
314,112 340,054

1,792,119 1,388,912

7,013 6,071
77,558 60,803
2,761 2,005
10,708 4,743
400,205 416,013
156,353 283,267
64,527 53,651
26,728 30,318
3,916,432 3,523,429
90,379 408,008
701,997 693,615
792,376 1,101,623

4,708,808 4,625,052
625,706 502,248
242,842 367,571
295,257 327,209

1,473,342 1,078,200

6,152 5,532
16,525 80,803
2,761 2,085
9,258 2,225
362,382 325,839
140,467 278,876
63,158 52,406
17,323 22,988
3,255,173 3,025,973
77,188 352,008
642,751 672,545
718,838 1,024,553
e e 4L
3,975,112 4,050,526
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3211 ¢ fon of risks of fi

(a) Geographical sectors

The following table breaks down the Group's credit
as categorised by geographical region as of 3

assets with credit risk exposure

at their camyi
1 December 2014 and 31 December 201

3. For this table, the Group has allocated
low

(without taking into account any collateral held or other cradit support),

expasures to regions based

on the country of domicile of ils lerparti ities and fi ial assels held for trading in equity
instruments.,
GROUP
Southemn Northem
Lagos Nigeria Nigeria Africa Europe America Total
N'millions N ‘millions N'millions  N'millions  N'millions N 'millions N ‘millions
Balances with central bank 625,707 8,160 428 634,295
Loans and advances to banks 78,391 - 2,17 21,805 271,640 55,400 430,053
Loans and advances to customers -
- Overdrafis 220,337 58,629 16,745 1741 291 314,113
- Term loans 1,047,805 332,387 102,838 97,653 211,435 1,792,119
- Staff loans 6,173 - - 798 42 7.013
- Project finance 38,310 803 9,563 25,896 2,986 77,558
- Advances under finance lease 2,039 683 39 - - - 2,761
Financial assets held for trading 904 - - - B,674 1,130 10,708
Investment securities
Avallable-for-sale investiments 376,523 3,235 799 8,065 10,583 400,205
Held to maturity investments 137,678 7,334 504 10,837 - 156,353
Assel pledged as collateral 63,158 - - 1,369 - 64,527
Other assels 12,830 8,584 608 4,479 227 26,729
31 December 2014 2,609,855 411,655 133,815 197,573 507,008 56,530 3,916,434
Credil risk relating to off bal sheet items are as follows
Loan commilments 63,409 7,172 10,327 2,239 7.232 - 80,379
Letlers of credit and other credit .
related obligations 458,546 66,859 46,960 18,602 110,829 701,898
31 December 2014 521,955 74,131 57,287 20,841 118,161 - 792,375
Balances with cenlral bank 502,252 - - 6,569 13,471 - 522,292
Loans and advances {o banks 113,615 - 440 37220 135,824 128,111 415,210
Loans and advances to customers
- Overdrafis 258,027 43,577 25,609 12,402 439 340,054
- Term loans 835,666 178,725 92,626 105,245 124,864 50,686 1,388,912
- Staff loans 5,526 - - 513 3z - 6,071
- Project finance 20,855 30,742 9,196 = . . 60,803
- Advances under finance lease 1,587 482 26 - - - 2,085
Financial assets held for frading 2,213 - - - 2,530 - 4,743
Investment securities
Available-for-sale investments 342,228 2,690 3,008 14,504 50,467 3,116 416,013
Held to maturity investments 273,064 8276 927 - - - 283,267
Assel pledged as collateral 52,406 - - 1,245 - - 53,651
Other assets 13,480 11,791 1,404 2,587 328 718 30,318
31 December 2013 2,420,939 278,283 133,236 180,285 328,055 182,631 3,523,428
Credil risk exposure relating to off balance sheet jlems are as follows
Southern Northem
Lagos Nigeria Nigeria Africa Eurcpe America Total
N'millions N ‘millions N'millions  N'milions N 'millions N 'millions N ‘millions
Lean commitments 286,761 30,345 34,902 49,353 6,647 - 408,008
Letters of credit and other credit
related obligations 440,762 88,555 92,032 1,078 71,188 = 683,615
31 December 2013 727,523 118,900 126,934 50,431 77,835 - 1,101,623
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3.2.11 G of risks of fi fal assets with credit risk exposure continued
BANK
Southem Northem
Lagos Nigeria Nigeria Africa Europe America Total
N'millions N 'millions N'millions  N°'millions N ’millions N *millions N 'millions
Balances with cenlral bank 625,706 - - - - - 625,708
Loans and advances to banks 28,650 - 2,17 3,168 185,287 23,020 242,842
Loans and advances lo cuslomers
- Dverdrafls 219,883 58,629 16,745 - - - 295,257
- Term loans 1.037,772 332,387 102,839 - 344 - 1,473,342
- Staff loans 6,152 - - - - - 6,152
- Project finance 6,159 a03 9,563 - - - 16,525
- Advances under finance jease 2,039 683 k] - - - 2,761
Financial assels held for trading 904 - - - 7.224 1,130 9,258
Investment securilles
Available-for-sale Investments 358,348 3,235 793 - - - 362,382
Held to maturity investments 132,630 7,334 504 - - - 140,468
Assel pledged as collateral 63,158 - - = - - 63,158
Other assets 8,130 8,584 608 - - = 17,323
31 December 2014 2,489,531 411,655 133,815 3,168 182,855 24,150 3,255,174
Credil risk exp relating 1o off bal sheet items are as follows
Loan commitmeants 58,689 7172 10,327 5 4 - 77188
Letlers of credit and other credi
related obligations 427,361 66,959 47,150 1,572 99,709 - 642,751
31 December 2014 487,050 74,131 57,477 1,572 99,709 - 719,939
Balances with cenlral bank 502,249 - - - - - 502,249
Loans and advances to banks 12,149 - 440 16,164 216,672 122,148 367,571
Loans and advances to customers
- Overdrafis 258,024 43,577 25,609 - - - 327,210
- Term loans 805,849 179,725 92,626 - - - 1,078,200
- Staff loans 5,532 - - # - - 5,532
- Project finance 20,865 30,742 8,188 - - - 60,803
- Advances under finance lease 1,587 482 26 - - - 2,085
Financial assets held for trading 2,213 - - * 12 - 2,225
Investment securities
Avzilable-for-sale investments 320,141 2,690 3,008 - - - 325,839
Held to maturity investments 268,673 8,276 927 278,876
Assel pledged as collateral 52,406 - - - - - 52 406
Other assels 12,152 9,008 1,090 - - 718 22,968
31 December 2013 2,261,840 275,500 132,922 16,164 216,684 122,864 3,025,974
Cradit risk exposure relaling to off balance sheet items are as follows
Loan commitment 286,761 30,345 34,802 - - - 352,008
Letters of credit and ather credit
related obligations 481,958 88,555 92,032 - - - 672,545
31 December 2013 778,712 118,900 126,934 - - 1,024,553
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321 c of risks of fi lal assets with credit risk exposure continued
b) Industry sectors
The following table breaks down the Group’s credit exp at carrying (withaut taking into account any collateral held or other credit suppor), as
calegorised by the industry sectors of the Group's Parties. | lies and fi ial assels held for trading analysed below excludes
i in equity |
GROUP
Balances  Loans and Financial | 1t I Assel pledged as coll Other assels
with central advancesto  assets held Securities-  Securilies -
bank banks forlrading  Available for Held to
sale maturity
N’millions N 'millions N'millions  N’'millions  N’millions N ‘millions N *millions
Agriculiure - - - - - - -
Qil and gas - 4,408
Consumer credit - -
Manufacturing = = 1,007 = i
Real estale - - - - -
Construction - - - - -
Finance and insurance 634,295 430,053 9,804 38,079 5170 - 21,766
Transportation - - - - -
Communication - - - - -
General commerce - - - -
Utilities - - - - -
Retail services - - - - -
Public sector S04 362,126 150,176 64,527 554
Total at 31 December 2014 634,205 430,053 10,708 400,205 156,353 64,527 26,728

Loans to customers

Overdrat  Termloans  Staffloans project Advances under finance Total
finance lease
N *millions N'millions  N'millions N 'millions N ‘millions N ‘millions
Agriculture 1,611 56,305 - - - 57,916
Oil and gas 130,255 679,423 - 33,805 284 843,767
Consumer credit 5137 163,494 5,592 - 29 174,252
Manufaciuring 54,185 294,080 - 18,043 405 366,893
Real estate 20,287 164,114 1421 - - 185,832
Construction 32,708 43,257 - 14,322 3 90,288
Finance and insurance 853 15,971 - 1,744 14 18,582
Transportation 3,710 4,316 - 3,851 28 11,905
Communication 2,432 59,364 - - - 61,816
General commerce 23,987 69,615 - 209 g 93,820
Utities 6,888 51,201 - - - 58,089
Retail services 25,869 77,762 - 4,409 1.974 110,014
Public sector 6,199 113,197 - 1,174 18 120,588
Total at 31 December 2014 314,112 1,792,119 7.013 77,557 2,761 2,193,563
Balances  Loans and Financial | I Assel pledged as collateral Other assels
with central advancesto  assels held Securilies-  Securities - N ‘millions
bank banks fortrading  Available for Held o
N ‘millions N 'millions N'millions  N'millions N 'millions N ‘millions N ‘millions
Agriculture - - - - - - 6,653
Oil and gas - - 1,625 - - - -
Consumer credit - - - - - - -
Manufacturing - - - - 1,923 - -
Real estate - - - - - - -
Conslruction - - = = i - -
Finance and insurance 522,292 415210 2,530 33510 5171 - 23,865
Transporiation - - 4 . - - -
Communication - - - - - - -
General commerce - - - - - - -
Utilities - - - - - - -
Retail services - - - - - - -
Public sector - - 584 382,403 276,173 53,651 -
Total at 31 December 2013 522,292 415,210 4,743 416,013 283,267 53,651 30,318
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of risks of fi
b) Industry sectors

Agriculture
Ofland gas

Consumer credit
Manufacturing

Real estate
Canstruction

Finance and insurance
Transporation
Communication
General commerce
Utikties

Retail services

Public sector

Total at 31 December 2013

BANK

Agriculture

Oil and gas

Consumer credit
Manufacturing

Real eslale
Construction

Finance and insurance
Transporiation
Communication
General commerce
Ulities

Retail senvices

Public sector

Total at 31 December 2014

Agricullure

Cil and gas

Consumer credit
Manufacturing

Real estate
Consluction

Finance and insurance
Transportation
Communication
General commerce
Ulilitie s

Retail services

Public sector

Total at 31 December 2014

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2014

assets with credit risk exposure continued

Loans to customers

Overdraft  Termloans  Staff loans project Advances under finance Total
finance lease

N 'millions N'millions  N'millions N 'millions N 'millions N ‘millions

549 64,456 - . - 65,005

173,008 445,678 - 2,697 47 621,430

4,649 134,933 3682 - 23 143,287

63,144 207,958 - - 113 271,215

9,752 104,140 2,237 45,755 - 161,884

10,875 24,758 - 12,351 - 47,984

1,689 9,817 17 - - 11,623

5171 2,972 = - 142 8,285

4,936 90,623 - - - 95,559

31,868 61,114 3 - - 92,985

5,738 27,537 - - 18 33,293

22,842 78,400 32 - 1,720 102,984

5,833 138,525 - - A 142,389

340,054 1.388,811 6,071 60,803 2,094 1,797,933

Balances  Loans and Fi I I Asset pledged as coll Other assets
with central advancesto  assets held Securilies-  Securities - N ‘millions

bank banks for trading  Avallable for Held to
N'millions N 'millions N'millions  N'millions N ‘millions N millions N *millions
5 s . = 4,408
- - 1,007 -

625,706 242,842 8,354 6,427 5,170 - 12,361
804 355,955 134,290 63,158 554

625,706 242,842 9,258 362,382 140,457 63,158 17,323

Loans to customers
Overdraft Term loans Staff loans project Advances under finance Total
finance lease

N 'millions N ‘millions N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions. N ‘millions

1412 18,848 i - % 20,260

127,954 644,237 - 2,204 284 774,679

4,847 161,732 4,731 - 29 171,238

51,247 158,350 - - 405 210,002

19,628 94,423 1421 - - 115,472

32,288 42,864 - 14,322 - 89,474

259 12,778 - - 14 13,051

2,310 1,173 - - 28 351

1,815 58,523 - - - 60,338

17,918 52,408 - - 9 70,335

8,797 51,142 - . & 57,939

22,885 66,092 - - 1,874 90,951

5,895 110,772 - - 18 116,685

285,257 1,473,342 6,152 16,526 2,761 1,784,037
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3211¢C of risks of fi ial assets with credit risk exposure continued
b) Industry sectors
Balances  Loans and Fi 1 I I Asset pledged as collateral Other assets
with eentral advancesto  assets held Securities-  Securities -
bank banks for trading  Awvailable for Held 1o
N 'millions N 'millions N'millions  N'millions  N'millions N ‘millions N *millions
Agriculture - - - - - - -
Oil and gas - - 1,626 - - - -
Consumer credit - - - - - - -
Manufacturing - - - - 1,924 - -
Real estate - - - - - - -
Construction - - - - - - -
Finance and insurance 502,249 367,571 12 4,866 5,170 - -
Transporiation - - 4 - - - -
Communication - - - - - - -
General commerce - - - - - - 22 968
Utiities - - - - - - -
Retail services - - - - - - -
Public sector - - 584 320,973 271,782 52,406 -
Total at 31 December 2013 502,249 367,571 2,226 325,839 278,876 52,406 22,968
Loans to customers
Overdraft ~ Termloans  Staif loans project Advances under finance Total
finance Iease
N ‘millions N'millions  N'millions N 'millions N ‘millions N *millions
Agriculture 437 25175 - - - 25612
Oil and gas 171,668 383,384 - 2,697 A7 557,796
Cansumer credit 3,742 131,620 3,205 - 23 138,680
Manufacturing 58,482 114,584 - . 113 173,179
Real estate 9,685 38,356 2,237 45,755 . 96,033
Canstruction 10,774 24,535 - 12,351 - 47,660
Finance and insurance 1,646 12,938 - - & 14,584
Transporiation 2,650 600 - - 142 3,432
Communication 4,804 90,434 - - - 95,238
General commerce 30,850 21,380 - - - 52,240
Ulilities 5,669 27,537 - - 18 33,224
Retail services 22,252 77,587 - - 1,720 101,559
Public sector 4,511 130,060 - - Fal 134,602
Total at 31 December 2013 327,210 1,078,200 5,532 60,803 2,094 1,473,839
Credil risk exposure refaling fo off balance sheet llems are as follows
Letter of Lelter of credit
credit and and other
Loan other related related
commitmenis  obligations Loan it i
31Dec 2014 31 Dec2014 31 Dec 2013 31 Dec 2013
N'millions N ’millions N ‘milllons N *millions
GROUP
Agriculture 138 6,896 2,443 3,662
Cil and gas 19,145 116,243 169,100 115,457
Consumer credit 432 24 15,427 484
Manufacturing 39,004 171,184 79,175 11,976
Real estate 1436 €63 10,005 27,944
Construction 10,923 85,179 18,357 205,450
Finance and insurance -] 189,320 1,811 99,042
Transportation 1,686 9,748 1,240 1,786
Communication 8,218 2,024 54,962 7,082
General commerce 3,341 39,642 27,464 147,327
Utities 3,911 48,350 2,364 457
Retail services 2,097 29,183 22,840 66,880
Public sector 39 3,541 2,920 6,078
TOTAL 90,379 701,997 408,008 693,615
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Lelter of Letter of credit
3211 credit and and other
g Loan other related related
Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk i blig. Loan bligati
Bank {continued) 31Dec 2014 31 Dec2014 31 Dec 2013 31 Dec 2013
N'millions N ’millions N *millions N *millions
Credil risk exposure relaling to off balance sheet items are as follows
BANK
Agriculiure 138 4,340 432 3,662
Oiland gas 11,352 114,391 165,777 115,457
Consumer credit 432 24 2,144 484
Manufaciuring 38,9688 180,583 75,798 11,976
Real estate 974 653 8,948 27,944
Construction 10,923 85428 17,261 128,858
Finance and insurance 1] 115,448 1,483 889,042
Transportation 324 8,887 150 1,786
Communication 7.989 2,024 53,189 7,062
General commerce 19 39,818 7.157 202,848
Utilities 3,911 48,350 1,370 457
Relail services 2,081 28,153 18,126 66,850
Public sector 38 3,541 172 6,078
TOTAL 77,189 642,751 352,007 672,545
3.2.12 Loans and advances to customers
Credit quality of Loans and ad to cusl is ised as follows:
Loans to customers
Overdraft Term loans Staff loans project Advances under finance Total
finance lease
N ‘millions W milllons  N'millions  N'millions N *millions N "millions
GRoOUP
December 2014
Neither past due nor impaired 300,766 1,691,269 7,081 77,424 1,688 2,078,238
Pasl due but nol impaired 11,087 81,048 - 284 1,058 93,475
Individually impaired 14,571 37,798 - - 241 52,610
Callectively impaired 3,151 8,977 - - 45 12,174
Gross 329,575 1,819,090 7,081 77,708 3,043 2,236,497
Less: allowance for impaiment {note 20) 15,464 26,871) {68} {151) {282) (42,936)
Net 314,111 1,792,119 7.013 77,557 2,761 2,193,561
Specific impaiment (see note 20) 11,845 15,640 - - 241 27,726
Portfolio allowance (see note 20) 3.619 11,331 68 151 41 15,210
Total 15,464 26,971 68 151 282 42 936
December 2013
Neither past due nor impaired 321,174 1,248,568 6,124 59,425 1,616 1,636,907
Past due but not impaired 14,771 135,055 122 2,108 480 152,547
Individually impaired 14,889 16,545 38 - 696 32,189
Collectively impaired 3,744 17.724 3 - 60 21,531
Gross 354,578 1,417,892 6,287 61,534 2,862 1,843,154
Less: allowance for impairment (note 20) 14,524 28,981 18] (731) 68, 45,220
Net 340,054 1,388,912 6.071 60,803 2,095 1,797,934
Specific impaimment (see note 20) 10,485 9,383 3 - 696 20,585
Ponfofio allowance (see note 20) 4,060 18,587 185 731 71 24,634
Total 14,524 28,981 216 731 768 45,219
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3.2.12 Loans and advances to customers

Credit quality of Loans and ad

BANK

December 2014

Neither past due nor impaired
Past due but nol impaired
Individually impaired
Collectively impaired

Gross.

Less: allowance for impairment {note 20)

Net

Specific impaiment (see note 20)
Porifolio allowance (see note 20)
Total

December 2013

Neither past due nor impaired
Past due but not impaired
Individually impaired
Collectively impaired

Gross

Less: allowance for impairment (note 20)

Net
Specific Impaiment (sea note 20)

Portfolio allowance (see note 20)
Total

GROUP
December 2014

(a) Loans and advances to customers - neither past due nor impaired

The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances to customers thal were neither past due nor imp
rating system adopted by the Group (See seclion 3,2.1 for an explanation of the intemal raling system).

Grades:

BEB
BB

cc

(b} Loans and advances past due but not impaired

Past due up to 30 days
Past due by 30 - 60 days
Past due 60-90 days
Gross amount

(c) Collectively impaired loans

These represent insignificant impaired loans
which are assessed on a collective basis,

(d) Loans and advances individually impaired

Gross amount
Specific impairment
Nel amount

is 1 as follows:
Loans to customers
Overdrafl Term loans Staff loans project Advances under finance Total
finance lease
N ‘millions N'millions  N'milllons N 'millions N ‘millions N 'millions
283,578 1,373,529 6,220 16,676 1,698 1,681,699
9,928 79,074 - - 1,058 90,130
13,795 36,677 - - 241 50,713
1,354 8,164 - - 46 9,564
308,723 1,497 444 6,220 16,676 3,043 1,832,106
13,467, 4,102 ) 151 (282) (38,070}
295,256 1,473,342 6,152 16,525 2,781 1,794,038
11,299 14,616 - - 241 26,156
2,168 9.486 68 151 “ 11.814
13,467 24,102 68 151 282 38,070
312,638 243,411 5,702 59,425 1,616 1,322,792
11,930 131,063 - 2,109 490 145,592
13,433 12,388 - - 696 28,517
2,854 17,473 60 20,387
340,855 1,104,335 5,702 61,534 2,862 1,515,288
13,645 6,135] 170] 3l (787) (41,448)
327,210 1,078,200 5,532 60,803 2,095 1,473,840
10,022 7,297 - - 696 18,018
3,623 18,838 170 7 il 23433
13,845 135 170 731 767 41,449
d can be by ref to the intemal
Overdrafi Term loans Siaff loans Project Advances under finance Total
finance lease
N *millions N’millions  N'millions N ‘millions N ‘millions N 'millions
141 4,598 1 - - 4,740
- 17,667 - - - 17,667
380 44,251 32 - - 44,673
66,005 130,344 - 1,404 - 197,753
163,467 870,472 6,323 14,464 1,066 1,055,792
69,614 329,111 685 1,873 632 402,015
- 5,974 - - - 5,974
1,148 288,852 40 59,583 349624
300,766 1,691,269 7,081 17424 1,698 2,078,238
10,046 57,356 - - 986 68,398
178 3,035 - - - 3.213
863 20,655 - 284 62 21,864
11,087 81,048 = 284 1,058 93,475
3,151 8,977 - - 46 12,174
14,571 37,798 - - 241 52,610
11,845 15,640 - - 4 27,728
2,726 22,158 - - [1] 24,884
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3.2.12 Loans and ads to

Credit quality of Loans and advances to customers is summarsed as follows:

Overdraft.  Termloans  Staff loans Project Advances under finance Total
finance lease
N'millions  N'millions  N'millions N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions
GROUP
December 2013
(a) Loans and advances to customers - neither past due nor impaired
Grades:
AAA 939 8,271 133 - - 9,343
AA 6,189 10,816 - - - 17,005
A 6,224 50,110 - 2,580 - 58,914
BEB 20,318 81,007 2311 1,051 56 114,743
BB 205,461 509,398 7 21,566 623 737,055
B 82,042 578,957 3,580 34,227 938 699,754
cce - - 92 - - 92
321,173 1,248 569 6,123 59,424 1,617 1,636,306
(b) Loans and advances past due but not impaired
Past due up to 30 days 12,397 62668 110 1,467 484 77,126
Pas! due by 30 - 60 days 2,220 64,035 3 642 5 66,905
Pasl due 60-90 days 154 8,353 B8 - - 8,515
Gross amount 14,771 135,056 121 2,108 489 152,548
(c) Collectively impaired loans
These represent insignificant impaired loans
which are assessed on a collective basis.
3,744 17,724 3 - 60 21,51
(d) Loans and ad\ indivi y impaired
Gross amount 14,889 16,545 38 - 696 32,168
Specific impaiment 10,465 9,393 3 - 696 20,585
Net amount 4,424 7,152 7 - - 11,583
BANK
December 2014
{a) Loans and advances to customers - neither past due nor impaired
The credit quality of the porifolio of loans and advances to cusfomers thal were neither past due nor impaired can be i by refl: to the internal
rating system adopled by the Group (See section 3.2.1 for an explanation of the interal raling system).
Grades:
AAA 141 1 - - - 142
AA - 8,707 - - - 8,707
A 380 44,251 - - i 44 641
BEB 66,005 124,363 - 1,404 - 191,772
BB 161,655 864,141 6,197 14,464 1,066 1,047,523
8 55,385 326,093 24 808 632 382,842
ccec - 5873 - - - 5,973
283,576 1,373,529 6,221 16,676 1,698 1,681,699
(b) Loans and advances past due but not impaired
Past due up to 30 days 9,600 57,214 - - 996 67,810
Past due by 30 - 60 days 1 2,588 - = 2,594
Past due 60-90 days 382 19,272 - - 62 19,726
Gross amount 9,998 79,074 - - 1,058 90,130
(¢} Collectively impaired loans
These represent insignifican! impaired loans
which are assessed on a collective basis.
1,354 8,164 - - 46 9,564
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3.2.12 Loans and ad to inued
Overdraft ~ Termloans  Staff loans Project Advances under finance Total
finance lease
BANK N ‘millions N'millions  N'millions  N'millions N ‘millions N ‘millions
{d) Loans and ad individually impaired
Gross amounl 13,795 36,677 - - 241 50,713
Specific impaiment 11,299 14,616 - - 241 26,155
Net amount 2,498 22,061 - - - 24,558
December 2013
(a) Loans and advances to customers - neither past due nor impaired
The credit quality of the portiolio of loans and advances fo customers that were neither past due nor impaired can be d by refe to the intemal

rafing system adopted by the Group (See section 3.2.1 foran explanation of the internal rating system).

Grades:
AAA 5,405 - - - - 5,405
AA 5,659 49,945 - 2,580 - 58,184
A 18,573 80,313 231 1,051 56 102,304
BBB 203,210 503,833 - 21,566 623 729,932
BB 79,090 308,321 3,391 34,227 938 426,957
312,637 943,412 5,702 509,424 1.617 1,322,792
{b) Loans and advances past due but not impaired
Pasl due up 1o 30 days 9,749 59,602 - 1,467 484 71.302
Past due by 30 - 60 days 2,163 63,708 - 642 5 66,518
Past due 60-80 days 18 7,753 - - - 7071
Gross amount 11,830 131,063 - 2,108 489 145,591
(c) Collectively impaired loans
These represent insignificant impaired loans
which are assessed on a collective basis.
2,854 17,473 “ % 80 20,387
{d) Loans and ad individually impai
Gross amount 13,433 12,388 - - 656 26,517
Specific impaiment 10,022 7,297 - = 696 18,015
Net amount 3,411 5,091 - - - 8,502
(e) & Y lysis on impai
The loan portfolio of First Bank Nigeria the mast signil entity of the ial banking group has been adopted for this sensilivity test; this is based on
the premise that the outcame of this stress test on the Bank Is reflective of the entire partfolio of the group. The credil factors considered for this sensitivity are
highlighted below;

Probability of Default (PD): This represents the probability that a cumently performing account will decline in credit quality. The probability of default model is
designed to provide a measurement of obligor quality by estimating the likelhood defaull over a shorl term horizon (usually 12 manths). A low probability of
default indicates & borrower with good credit quality while a high probability of default indicates a borower with low credit quality and a high likelihood of default.

Loss Given Default (LGD): The Loss Given Defaull estimates tha expected loss on a defaull after all ies have being exh In
the LGD for the credit porifolio, recoveries made on historic loan loss data by way of loan repayment, recovery efforis andfor sale of collateral was applied.

Approach to Hivity analysl
In performing the sensitivity analysis, two wene idered as detailed below,
Scenario 1

The PD of the performing book was flexed by 20% while LGD was held constanl. This is based on the assumption that obligor quality will deteriorate and this
will lead to an increase in defaull. ;

Scenario 2

The LGD of the performing book and insignificant non-performing loans were flexed by 20% respectively while the PD was held constant. This is premised on
delerioration in obligar quality, increase in rate of default as well as difficulty in realizing collaterals pledged.
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3.2.12 Loans and ady to |
(e) Sensitivity ysis on impai inued
Outcome of the sensithvity analysis is shown below as well as the impact on profit or loss

Impairment charge in profit or loss

Current year Scenario 1 Scenario 2
N'millions N'millions N'millions
31 December 2014
- Overdrafts 10,253 10,638 10,675
- Term loans 13,956 15,579 15813
- Slaff loans (102) (B8) (88)
- Project finance (580) (550) (550)
- Advances under finance Jease (4586) (433) (432)
Total 23,0711 25,146 25418
31 December 2013
- Overdrafis 11,806 12,350 12,350
-Term loans 10,117 10,792 10,792
-Staff loans (430) (396) (398)
- Project finance (U] 145 145
- Advances under finance lease 681 691 691
Total 22,173 23,582 23,582

3.2.13 Loans and advances to banks
(a) Credit quality of loans to banks is summarised as follows:
Allloans to banks are neither past due nor impaired.

The credit quality has been assessed by reference to Maody's rating, Agusto & Aguslo's rating (credit rating agency) and the bank's intemal rating system at
31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013,

Group Bank
Loans to banks Loans to banks
N'millions N'millions
31 December 2014
At lo A- 254,781 180,615
B+loB- 108,576 57,587
Unrated 66,697 4641
430,054 242 843
31 December 2013
At+to A- 220,663 170,615
B+ 1o B- 164,519 196,956
Unrated 30,028 -
415,211 367,571
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3.2.14 Credit quality of investment In debt securities and other assets is summarised as follows:

All b in debt inst

The credit quality of investments in debt securities (inch
reference to Agusto & Agusto’s raling (credit rating agency)

Group

are neither past due nor impaired.

fing assets pledg
at 31 December 2014 and 31 De

for caltal

I) thal were neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by
cember 2013,

Treasury Bonds as Treasury Bonds as reported in the Other assats
billsas  reported in bills as HTM portfalio
reported in the AFS  reported in
the AFS portfolio the HTM
portfolic pertfolio
N'millions N'millions N'millions N'millions N'millions
31 Dacember 2014
At lo A- - 18,001 - 22,359 937
B+to B- 308,984 81423 8,970 165,999 B,316
Unrated 4,350 - 17,475
308,984 110,424 13,320 188,358 26,728
31 December 2013
A+ to A- 276,233 136,956 10,488 306,037 =
B+ to B- - 20,607 - =
Unrated - 2,587 - - 30,318
276,233 160,160 10,498 306,037 30,318
Bank
Treasury Bonds as Treasury Bonds as reported in the Other assots
blllsas  reportedin bills as HTM portfolio
reported in the AFS  reported in
the AFS portiolio the HTM
portfolio portfolio
31 December 2014 N'millions N'millions N'millions N'milliens N'millions
Atto A- - 8418 - 22,358 975
B+ to B- 302,814 70,353 - 162,064 8,316
Unrated - - - - 8,032
302,814 78,771 - 184,422 17,323
31 December 2013
A+to A- 217,235 127,741 6,107 306,037 -
Unrated - - - - 22,968
217,235 127.741 6,107 306,037 22,968
3.2.15 Collaterized Assets
The fi tal effect of collateral is | by discl values y for (i) those assels where collateral and other credit enhancements are

equal to or exceed camying value of the assel rnver-aolla'lsraltsnd assets’) a
the camying value of the asset ("under-collateralised assels”). The effect of

(i) GROUP
31 December 2014

Financial assets

Loans and advances 1o banks
Financial assets held for trading
Total Financial Assets

at 31 Dy

2014 and 31 d b

Over<collaterised assets

nd (ii) those assets where collateral and other credit enhancements are less than
2013 are shown below

Under-collaterised assets

Canrying value Fair value of Carrying value
of the assels  collateral

of the assels

430,053
10,708

Fair value of
collateral held

19,837
5,983

440,761

25,820
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GROUP
31 December 2013
Financial assets
Loans and advances to banks
Total Financial Assels
(i) BANK
31 December 2014
Financial assets
Loans and advances to banks

Financial assels held for trading
Total Financial Assets

Overcollaterised assets Under-collaterised assets

Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
of the assets of the assels  of the assels of the assets
415,210 8,800
- - 415,210 8,800

Over-collaterised assets Under-collaterised assets

Canying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value

of the assets of the assels  of the assels of the assets
- - 242,842 19,837
& 5 9,258 5,983
= - 252,100 25,820

BANK Over-collaterised assets Under-collaterised assets

Canying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
31 December 2013 of the assets of the assels  of the assels of the assets
Loans and advances lo banks - - 367,571 8,800
Total Financial Assets - - 367,571 8,800
Loans and advances lo cuslomers have been excluded from the tables abave, as no ag: d call | inf ion for the unimpaired d lending
portfolio is provided to key o | See further details on collateral management for the loan book in note 3.2.3

The underlisted financial assets are not collaterised:
Cash and balances with Central Banks

Investmenl securities:

Available-for-sale investmenls

Held to maturity investmenis

Assel pledged as collateral
Other assels
The Group's § in risk-free ies (

ing 80% of debt inst folio) and its Cash and balances with Central Banks are

nol idered to require collat given their sovereign nature.

3296 of F

In compliance with the CBN circular dated March 18, 2013 reference BSD/DIRICEN/LABIOE/014, the impaiment provision under IFRS and the pravisions under

the Nigeran P Guideli as

Total IFRS impairment lasses
Prudential provisions
Balance in Statutory credit reserve

Analysis of the IFRS impairment losses

Loans : Specific impairment (note 20)
Loans: Collective impairment (note 20)
Other assets (nole 31)

Total IFRS impairment losses

d by the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) were compared and shown below:

31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013

N'millions N'millions
(38,867) (42,650)
83,724 50,168
44,857 7,518
26,156 18,015
11,914 23,433
797 1,202
38,867 42,650




First Bank of Nigeria Limited

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2014

3.3 Liquidity risk

3.3.1 Ligquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk thal the Group does not have sufficient financial resources to meel its obligation as they fall due or will have to meet the obligations at
excessive costs. This sk could arise from mismatches in the timing of cash flows.

Funding risk is & form of fiquidity risk that arises when the liguidity needed to fund illiquid assel positions cannot be obiained at the expected terms and when
required,

The objeclive of the Group’s liquidity risk management is to ensure that all anticipated funding i can be met when due and that access to funding
is di and cost effect)

Management of liquidity risk

The Group's liquidity P inchud

* Mais a of highly mark assels that can easily be liquidated as protection against any unforeseen interruption o cash flow;

+ Day-lo-day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirements can be met. This includes replenishment of funds as they mature or
are borrowed by customers.

+ Active monitoring of the timing of cashflows and malurily profiles of assels and liabilities to ensure mi are within stipulated limils;

* Manitoring the liquidity ratios against internal and regulatory requirements; and

* Managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities.

Monitoring and reporting take the form of cash flow measurement and projections for the next day, week and manth respeclively, as these are key periods for
liquidity management. The starting point for thase proj is an lysis of the ity of the fi liabilities and the expecled collection date
of the financial assels

Padicular altention is also paid to the level and type of und lending i , Ihe usage of overdraft facilitles and the impact of contingen! liabilities
such as standby letlers of credil and guarantees.

Liquidity risk on derivatives is managed using the same source of funding as for the non derivative liabilities.

Funding approach
The Group is funded primarily by a well diversified mix of retail, corporate and public sector deposits. This funding base ensures stability and low funding cost
with minimal reli on more expensive lenured deposit and interbank takings as ignifi of funding.

Naon-derivative financial iabilities and assets held for managing lquidity risk

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under non-derivative financial fiabilities and assets held for managing liquidity risk by remaining
conlractual maturilies at the date of the d of fi ial position. The amounts disclosed in 1able A below, are the contraclual undiscounted
cash flow, whereas the Group manages the liquidity risk on a behavioural basis which is shown in table B below.

GROUP
(a) TABLE A - LIQUIDITY ANALYSIS ON A CONTRACTUAL BASIS Over 1 year
0-30 31-90 91-180 181 -365 but less Over
days days days days than 5 yrs 5 years Total
N'millions _N'millions  N'millions  N'millions N 'millions N "millions N 'millions

31 December 2014
Financial liabilities
Deposits from banks 118,294 42,793 2623 - - - 163,710
Deposits from cuslomers 2,287,845 404,931 69,393 91,319 134,030 9,658 2,997,278
Bomowings 59,211 130,550 7489 11,624 62,302 164,086 435,262
Other liabilities 70,516 30,454 568 25,966 1,971 129,483
Total financlal liabilities 2,535,966 608,738 80,071 128,909 198,303 173,744 3,725,731
Loan commitmenis 947 198 433 3,714 28,921 56,166 90,378
Letters of credit and other credit
related obligations 228,750 67,929 48,963 95,302 50,601 209,852 701,997
Total Commitments 229,697 68,127 49,396 99,616 79,522 266,018 792,376
Assels held for managing liquidity
risk 240,924 271,270 210,521 31,470 300,519 114,123 1,168,827
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3.3.1 Liquidity risk

Non-derivative financial liabllities and assets held for

TABLE A - LIQUIDITY ANALYSIS ON A CONTRACTUAL BASIS {cantinued)

31 December 2013
Financial liabilities
Deposits from banks
Depasits from customers
Bomowings

Other liabliities

Total financial liabilities

Loan commitments

Letters of credil and other credit
related obligations

Total Commitments

Assets held far managing liquidity
risk

31 December 2014
Financial Habilitles
Deposits from banks
Deposits from customers
Borrowings

Other liabililies

Total financial Fabilities

Loan commitmenis

Letlers of credit and clher credit
related obligations

Total Commitments

Assels held for managing liquidity
risk

31 December 2013
Financial liabilities
Deposits from banks
Deposits from customers
Bomowings

Other izbilities

Total financial liabilities

Loan commitments

Letters of credit and other credit
relaled obfigations

Total Commitments

Assals held for managing liquidity
risk

ing liquidity risk if
QOver 1 year
0-30 31-90 91 -180 181 - 365 but less Over
days days days days than 5 yrs 5 years Total
N'millions_ N'millions  N'millions  N'millions N ‘millions N ‘millions N ‘millions
28,205 47,412 1,864 - - - 77,481
2,489,503 271,248 47,330 60,609 78,684 823 2,948,195
17,568 32,494 1,854 8,013 40,498 54,931 155,357
11,996 156,172 548 24 - 12,994 181,734
_2.,547.272 507,323 51,597 68,646 118,182 68,748 3,362,768
58,505 85,962 62,610 67,961 56,415 76,555 408,008
643,247 4,347 5,840 23934 16,147 - 693,615
701,752 90,309 68,550 91,895 72,562 76,555 1,101,624
944,453 178,891 77,123 55,931 129,012 62611 1,449,021
Over 1 year
0-30 31-30 91 -180 181 - 365 but less Over
days days days days than 5 yrs 5 years Total
N'millions N'millions  N'millions N 'millions N ‘millions N *milliens N 'millions
19,246 - - - - - 19,246
2,197,510 286,199 52,547 22,307 - - 2,558,563
61,536 142,515 8,266 11,586 62,302 164,086 450,291
42,685 30,464 566 25,966 1,971 - 101,652
2,320,977 459,178 61,378 59,858 64,273 164,086 3,129,752
48 128 433 3,714 16,630 56,166 77,189
250,700 83,232 20,308 51,171 50,578 206,760 642,750
250,748 63,430 20,742 54,885 67,208 262,926 718,939
__—|_—_'—___I_.________'_
406,913 73,600 194,554 13.192 158,331 72,228 918,818
10,155 - - - - - 10,155
2,346,507 175,119 38,561 11,812 3,118 - 2,575,117
17,568 31,555 1,854 8,013 40,498 54,931 154,419
56,818 50,642 - 4,811 - 4,550 156,821
2,431,048 297,316 40,415 24636 43,616 59,481 2,806,512
10,567 79,315 61,195 67,961 56,415 76,555 352,008
672,545
622,177 4,347 5,940 23,934 16,147 =
632,744 83,662 67,135 91,895 72,562 76,555 1,024,553
631,976 105,878 56,933 42,427 50,080 22,512 909,806
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(b) TABLE B - LIQUIDITY ANALYSIS ON A BEHAVIOURAL BASIS

GROUP

31 December 2014
Financial liabilities
Deposits from banks
Deposits from customers
Bomrowings

Other liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Loan commitments

Lelters of credit and other credit
related obligations

Total Commitments

Assets held for managing
liquidity risk

31 December 2013
Financial liabilities
Deposits from banks
Deposits from customers
Borowings

Other fiabilities

Total financial liabilitles

Loan commitments

Letters of credil and alther credit
related obligations

Total Commitments

Assets held for managing
liquidity risk

BANK

31 December 2014
Financial liabilities
Deposits from banks
Deposits from customers
Bormowings

Other liabililies

Total financial liabilities

Loan commitments

Letters of credit and olher credit
related obligations

Total Commitments

Assets held for managing
liquidity risk

31 December 2013
Financial liabilities
Deposils from banks
Deposits from cuslomers
Bormrowings

Other liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Loan commitments

Letters of credit and other credit
related obligations

Total Commitments

Assets held for managing
liquidity risk

Over 1 year
0-30 31-90 91-180 181 - 365 but less Over
days days days days than 5 yrs 5 years Total
N'millions N'millions  N'milions  N'millions N ’millions N ‘millions N 'millions
78,002 42,793 42,915 - - - 163,710
465,588 488,305 227,152 281,624 324,473 1,210,135 2,997,277
59,211 130,542 7,489 11,624 62,302 164,086 435,254
70,516 30,464 566 25,966 1,971 129,483
673,317 682,104 278,122 319,214 388,746 1,374,221 3,725,724
947 198 433 3,714 28,921 56,166 90,379
228,750 67,929 48,963 95,802 50,601 209,852 701,997
229,697 68,127 49,396 99,616 79,522 266,018 792,376
240,924 271,270 210,521 31,470 300,519 114,123 1,168,827
28,205 47,412 1,864 - - - 77,481
2,489,503 271,246 47,330 60,608 78,684 823 2,948,195
17,568 32,494 1,854 8,013 40,498 54,931 155,358
11,996 156,172 548 24 - 12,994 181,734
_2547.272 507,324 51,595 68,646 119,182 68,748 3,362,768
58,505 85,962 62,610 67,961 56,415 76,555 408,008
643,247 4,347 5,940 23,934 16,147 - 683,615
701,752 90,309 68,550 91,885 72,562 76,555 1,101,623
944,453 178,891 77.123 55,931 129,012 62,611 1,449,021
Over 1 year
0-30 31-90 91 -180 181 - 365 but less Over
days days days days than 5 yrs 5 years Total
N'millions N'millions  N'millions  N'millions N ‘millions N ‘millions N ‘millions
19,246 19,245
412,437 369,507 172,948 212,750 190,443 1,200,477 2,558,562
61,465 142,515 8,267 11,586 62,302 164,086 450,221
42,685 30,464 566 25,966 1,971 - 101,652
535,833 542,486 181,781 250,302 254,716 1,364,563 3,129,681
48 198 433 3,714 16,630 56,166 77,189
250,700 63,232 20,309 51,11 50,578 206,760 642,750
250,748 63,430 20,742 54,885 67,208 262,926 718,939
406,913 73,600 194,554 13,192 158,331 72,228 918,818
10,155 10,155
2,346,507 175,119 38,561 11,812 3,118 2,575,117
17,568 31,555 1,854 8,013 40,498 54,931 154,418
56,818 80,642 4,811 4,550 156,821
2,431,048 297,318 40,415 24636 43,616 58,481 2,896,512
10,567 79,315 61,195 67,961 56,415 76,555 352,008
622,177 4,347 5,940 23,934 16,147 - 672,545
632,744 B3,662 67,135 91,895 72,562 76,555 1,024,553
631,976 105,878 56,933 42,427 50,080 22,512 909,808
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Assets held for managing liquidity risk

The Group holds a diversified portfolio of liquid assets - largely cash and govemment securities to support payment and funding obligations in normal and
stressed market conditions across foreign and local cumencies. The Group's liquid assets comprise
- Cash and balances with the central bank comprising reverse repos and Ovemight deposits

in the i mai

- Short term and ight pl rket

- Govemment bonds and T-bills that are readily pled in rep with the Central bank and other market parlicipants
- Secandary sources of fiquidity in the form of highly liquid instruments in the Group’s trading porifalios.

- The ability to access incremental short term funding by interbank t g from the interbank market

The bank is largely deposit funded and thus, as Is typical amongst Nigerian banks, has significant funding mismatches on a contractual basis, given that the
deposils are largely demand and shorl tenured, whilst lending is longer term.On an acluarial basis, our demand deposits exhibit much longer duration, with
75.53% of our curent account balances and 67.48% of savings bal being d i

To manage Equidity shocks in either foreign or local currency, largely as a result of episodic movements, the bank typically holds significant shor term liquidity
in currency placements or taps the repo markets fo ralse short term funding as is required, To grow local currency liguidity the Group have also systematically
worked fucing the d of our portfalio in the last year, shifting the emphasis to holding more liquid shorter dated treasury bills over
longer term bonds, to allow more flexibility in managing liquidity. Whilst on the foreign currency side, the Group has built up placement balances wilh our
offshore comrespondents,
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Liguidity risk
3.3.2 Derlvative liabilitios

Derivatives settled on a net basis

The Pul options and the accumulator forex contract will be settied on a net basis.

The table below analyses the Group's derivalive financial liabilities that will be setlled on a net basis into relevant mal

turity groupings based on the remaining

period at the date of lhe lid tal of fi ial position o the confractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounled cash flows.
GROUP Upto1 13 36 6 -12 months 15 Over 5 years Total
month months months years
N'millions  N'millions  N'millions N *millions N ‘'millions N ‘millions N ‘millions
At 31 December 2014
Derivative liabilities
A I arward FX - - 98 - - - a8
Put Option 918 2,664 2,783 6,066 9,528 - 21,960
a18 2,664 2,881 6,066 9,528 - 22,058
Derivative assets
Put Options 938 2,728 2,842 6,257 9,848 22,613
Forward Contract 1,011 439 - - - - 1,450
1.94g 3,187 2,842 6,257 9,848 - 24,083
2,868 5,831 5,723 12,323 19,376 - 46,121
At 31 December 2013
Derivative liabilities
A Forward FX - - - ~ () - 1)
Put options - - - - 1,626 (1,626)
- . o - 71} 1,626 (1.887)
Derivative assets
Cross-Cumency Swap - - - 12 - - 12
Foreign exchange derivalives 1,546 602 370 - - - 2,518
Put options - - - = 1,626 1,626
1,546 602 370 12 - 1,626 4,156
1,546 602 370 12 {71) - 2,459
Derivatives settied on a net basis
BANK Upto1 1-3 36 6 - 12 months 15 Over 5 years Total
manth months months years
N'millions N ‘millions N 'millions N ‘millions N ‘millions N *millions N 'millions
At 31 December 2014
Derivative liabilities
A I ‘orward FX contract - 98 28
Put Option 918 2,664 2,783 6,066 9,528 - 21,860
918 2,664 2,881 6,066 9,528 - 22 058
Derivative assets
Put Options 938 128 842 257 848 22613
938 728 842 257 848 - 22 613
1,857 ,392 723 12,323 19,376 - 44,67
At 31 December 2013
Derivative liabilities
A Forward FX - - - - (1) - {71)
Put options - . - - (1.626) (1.626)
- - - - (71) (1,626) (1,897)
Derivative assets
Cross-Currency Swap = 3 3 12 - = 12
Put options - - - - 1,626 1,626
i = B 12 - 1,626 1,637
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3.3.2 Liquidity risk
Derivatives setiled on a gross basis.

The Group's derivatives that will be setiled on a gross basis are foreign exchange derivalives. The table below analyses the Group's derivalive financial
Instruments thal will be seliled on a gross basis into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period al the date of the consolidated stalemeant of

financial position to the | maturity date. Conlraclual malurities are i to be ial for an und fing of the timing of the cashflows on all
derivalives including derivatives classified as Tiabiliies held for trading’. The amounts disclosed in the lable are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Upto1 1-3 36 hs 6-12 th 1-5 years Total
month
GROUP N million N* million N' million N' million N’ million N’ million
At 31 December 2014
Liabilities held for trading
FX Swap - Payable 14,777 - - - - 14,777
FX Swap - Receivable (14,884) - - - - {14,884)
Forward Contract - Payment 1,188 1,022 162 - - 2,353
Forward Contracl - Receipt (376) - - - - (376)
686 1,022 162 - - 1,870

At 31 December 2013
Derivatives held for trading

Foreign exchange derivatives: 6 2 - - - B
B 2 - - - B
BANK
Liabilities held for trading
FX Swap - Payable 14,777 - - - - 14,777
FX Swap - Receivable (14,884) - . - » (14,884)
Forward Contract - Payable 386 - - - - 386
. Forward Contract - Receivable (3786) - - - - (378)
87) = - . = (87}
At 31 December 2013
Derivatives held for trading
Foreign exchange derivatives: 2 2 = B - 4
2 2 - - * 4
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Market risk

Market risk is the potential for adverse changes in the value of a trading or an i i p due to ch in market risk variables such as equily and
commodity prices, interest rates, and foreign exchange rates.

Market risk arises from positions in currencies, interest rate and securities held in our trading portfolio and from our retail b g
and other non-lrading aclivities, The in market risk may have a negative impact on the balance sheet and or income slatement,
Through the financial year, the Bank was exposed lo market risk in its trading, and non-trading aclivities mainly as a result of:

*interest rale in lion to tary policy changes by the Central Bank of Nigeria, fiscal policies changes, and market forces:

* foreign exchange flucluations arising from demand and supply as well as govemment policies; and

* equity price movements in response to market forces and changing markel dynamics, such as market making on the Nigerian Stock Exchange.

Management of market risk

FirstBank Group market risk t pi applies disciplined risk-laking within a framework of well-defined risk appetite that enables the group to boost
shareholders value while mai g competitive ad ge through effective utilisation of risk capital, Thus, FirstBank's Group market risk management policy
ensures:

* farmal definition of market risk g - ised indivi roles and , segregalion of duties, avoid; of icts, etc.;

* management is responsible for the establishment of pprop T i and in Impl g the Board-approved market risk policy and
sirategy. The p d are d dinap fically reviewed market risk ural manual that spells out the | | for g ant market
risk contrals.;

* an Independent market risk functi porting directly to the Bank’s Chief Risk Officer;

* 8 Group-wide market risk management process 1o which all fisk-taking unils are subjected;

« alignment of market risk g tand: with int; best practice. Risk are progressively based on madem techniques such as
sensitivity, value-at-risk methodology (VaR), stress testing and scenaro analysis;

* & robust market risk infs infe by a strong g inf ion system (MIS) for i itoring and reporfing market
fisk, including tra ions b the Bank and the subsidiaries;

« conlinual e;ah.rallnn of risk appelile, communicated through risk limits and overall effectiveness of the market risk management process;

* the Group does not undertake any risk that cannol be managed, or risks that are not fully und: ly in new products and;

* where the Group lakes on any risk, full consideration Is given lo product y, fi ial market sophi: ion and regulatory f , guidelines or
policies. The risk taken must be ad, qualaly f by the anticij reward,

Market risk measurement technigues

The major techniques used to and control market risk are outlined below:

(a) Value at risk (VAR)

VaR measures potential loss in fair value of fi [ due to ad market overa defined time horizon at a specified confidence lavel,
VaR is d for oVEr a mi of one busi: day and to a confidence level of 99% and a 10-day holding period. The confidence

level suggests that poha;nial daily losses, in excess of the VaR measure, are likely to be experienced three limes Per year in every 250 days, Only the bank is
subject fo the VaR methodology. The inlerest rate exposure of the other subsidiaries is considered insignificant fo the Group, Thus, the VAR of the bank is
to be fairy rep of the Graup,

The Bank continues 1o use VaR lo estimate the potential losses that could oceur on its positions as a result of movements in market factors.

The Bank uses the parametic method as jts VaR methodology with an ob ion peried of two years obtained from published data from pre-approved
sources. VaR is calculated on the Bank's positions at close of business daily.

The table on the next page shows the trading VaR of the Bank. The majer contributors to the trading VaR are Treasury Bills and Foreign Exchange due to
volatility in those instruments impacting positions held by the Bank during the period.

The assets included in the VAR analaysis are the held for trading assels.

The treasury bill trading VaR is NGN106 million as al 31st December 2014 and reflects the loss given : of a 10-day helding period,
volzility computed using 500-day retum data, and a 98% sialistical confidence lavel.

The foreign exchange trading VaR was Nil as al 31st Dy 2014, reflecting the new regulatory Trading Open Position of Zero stipulated by the CEN.
Hence, there was no open position as at year end.
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3.4.2 Market risk measurement techniques (continued)

(a) VAR summary

BANK
12 months to 31 December 2014

Average High Low
Foreign exchange risk 12 34 -
Interest rate risk 415 1,286 22
Total VAR 427 1,320 22
VAR summary BANK

12 months to 31 December 2013

Average High Low
Foreign exchange risk 16 52 -
Interest rata risk 528 1,738 38
Total VAR 544 1,790 38
VAR summary BANK
(b} Stress tests
Based on the reality of unpredictable market envi and the freq of ions that have had significant effect on market rates and prices, the Bank

other risk with stress lesting to eval the p ial impac! of l ma in fi ial vari on portfolio values.

Stress testing Is an Integral part of the market risk fi k and iders both historical market events and forward-looking scenarios. A
consisten| siress-testing methodology is applied to trading and non-trading books, Stress ios are regulary updatad to reflect ct in risk profile and
economic events,
The ALCO s ible for reviewing stress exg and where forch ductions in overall markel risk exposure. The stress-testing

methedology assumes that scope for management action would be limiled dur]ng‘ 'a stress :\renl. reflecting the decrease in market liquidity thal often occurs,
Regular stress-test scenarios are applied to Interest rates, exchange rates and equity prices. This covers all asset classes in the financlal markets banking and
trading books. Ad hoe ios are also prepared reflecting specific market condifions and for particular concentrations of risk thal arise within the businesses.

Non-trading portiolio

The principal objective of market risk management of non-trading portfolios s to optimise net interest income. Due to the size of the Bank's holdings in rate-

sensitive assels and liabilities the Bank is exposed to inlerest rate risk.

Non-trading interest rale risk resulls mainly from differences in the mismatches or re-pricing dates of assels and liabilities, both on- and off-balance sheet as

interest rate changes.

The Bank uses a variely of tools to measure non-tradable interes! rale risk such as:
» Interest rate gap analysis (which allows the Bank to maintain a posilive or negalive gap
gap is then adjusted to either hedge net interest incorne against changing interest rates or to speculatively increase nel interest income;
* forecasting and simulating interest rate margins;

« markel value sensitivity;

* calculaling eamings at risk (EaR) using varous interest rate forecasts; and

* re-pricing risk in various ponfolios and yield curve analysis.

Hedged non-trading marke risk exposures

The Bank's books have some key market risk exposures, which have been identified and are being managed using swaps and oplions.

P g on the perceived inlerest rate direction). The size of the
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3.4.3 Forelgn exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risks due lo fluch
limits on the level of exposure by curren

d in aggregale for both ight and intra-day

in foreign sy exch,

rates on ils financial position and cash flows. The Board sets

the Group's to foreign ge rate risk at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, Included in the table are the Group's financial
[ at camying . categor ¥
GROUP
Naira uso GBP Euro Others Total
N'millions  N'millions  N'millions N 'millions N ‘millions N ‘millions
31 December 2014
Financial assets
Cash and balances with Cenlral
Banks 664,466 14,526 2,599 4,203 11,807 697,801
Loans and advances lo banks 22,453 232,292 147,746 22,959 4,603 430,053
Loans and advances lo customers
- Overdrafls 186,565 108,295 17 99 18,038 314,112
- Term loans 755,911 884,200 60,655 80,648 10,696 1,782,119
- Stalf loans 6,152 - 42 - 819 7.013
- Project finance 15,768 60,048 - 1,743 0 77,557
- Advances under finance lease 2,781 - - - - 2,761
Investimenl securities
Available-for-sale invesiments 373,078 64,330 - 1 5,142 442,551
Held to maturity investments 145,519 - - - 10,834 158,353
Assel pledged as collateral 63,159 - - - 1,368 84,527
Financial assets held for trading 904 8,354 - 1,450 - 10,708
Other assets 16,754 5215 238 1 4,520 26,728
2,253,488 1,378,270 211,397 111,105 67,825 4,022,083
Financial liabilities
Cuslomer deposils 2,037,521 529,284 340,812 8,115 74,003 2,989,735
Deposits from banks 13,088 126,205 18,416 5,897 105 163,709
Financial liabilities held for trading 58 9,722 - 133 - 9,913
Bomowings 30,414 327,488 108 as58 4,011 362,976
Other liabilites 78273 20,240 21,724 3433 5,814 129,484
2,159,352 1,012,938 381,057 18,536 83,933 3,655,817
31 December 2013
Financial assets
Cash and balances wilh Central Banks 560,399 8,904 3,646 16,049 4,975 583,973
Loans and advances to banks 15,590 325,094 46,284 23,887 4,355 415,210
Loans and advances
- Overdrafts 272,675 63,248 85 95 3,951 340,054
- Term loans 633,468 604,024 53,972 88,205 9,243 1,388,912
- Staff loans 5,525 254 az - 260 8,071
- Project finance 50,150 10,653 - - - 60,803
- Advances under finance lease 2,085 - - - - 2,005
Investment securilies
Available-for-sale invest 335,383 60,896 46,687 4 8,453 451,423
Held to maturity investments 283,267 283,267
Assel pledged as collaleral 52,406 - - - 1,245 53,651
Financial assets held for trading 2,225 1,598 - 784 136 4,743
Other assets 15,069 12,361 1,881 111 896 30,318
2,228,252 1,087,032 152,587 128,135 33,514 3,630,520
Financial liabilities
Customer deposils 1,963,923 G6B8,267 223,116 9,007 58,489 2,942 782
Deposits from banks 1,487 44,263 15,688 15,665 378 77,481
Financial liabilities held for trading 1,697 - - - 4 1,701
Bomrowings 28,698 95,442 140 2,012 10 126,302
Other liabililies 53,724 85,427 24,473 13,576 4,534 181,734
2,049,529 813,399 263417 40,280 63,385 3,330,000

, which are

daily. The table below summarises
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3.4.3 Forelgn exchange risk (continued)

BANK

31 December 2014

Financlal assets
Cash and balances with Central Banks
Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances to customers
- Overdrafis

-Term loans

- Staff loans

- Project finance

- Advances under finance lease
Investment securities
Available-for-sale invesiments
Held to maturity investmenls
Assel pledged as collateral
Financial assels held for frading
Other assels

Financial liabilities

Customer deposils

Deposits from banks

Financial liabilities held for trading
Bomowings

Other liabiliins

31 December 2013

Financial assets

Cash and balances with CBN
Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances

- Overdrafis

- Term Ioans

- Staff loans

- Project finance

- Advances under finance lease
Invesiment securilies
Available-for-sale invesiments
Held to malurity investments
Asset pledged as collaleral
Financial assets held for trading
Other assets

Financial liabilities

Cuslomer deposils

Deposits from banks

Financial liabilities held for trading
Bomowings

Other fiabilities

Naira usp GEP Euro Others Total

N'millions  N'millions  N'millions N 'millions N *millions N *millicns
B64,452 4,238 827 525 3 670,045
22,081 174,600 33,210 11,688 1.263 242,842
186,895 108,305 T 51 295,257
755,267 717,731 - 344 1,473,342
6,152 - - - 6,152
15,766 759 - - 16,525
2,761 - - - 2,761
371,831 32677 - - - 404 508
140,467 - - - - 140,467
63,158 - - - - 63,158
904 8,354 - - - 9,258
12,096 5215 11 1 a 17,323
2,241,830 1,051,879 34,055 12,609 1,266 3,341,638
2,030,463 505,144 9,827 5,588 0 2,551,022
13,087 6,131 - 24 3 19,245
58 7,755 - 133 - 7.946
30,418 348,227 256 1,028 22 377,950
76,731 20,240 553 3,433 695 101,652
2,150,755 885,497 10,636 10,207 720 3,057,815
538,350 1,753 477 638 3 541,221
9,623 315,410 28,513 11,756 2,289 367,571
273,020 54,184 - - 327209
637,944 422,758 - 17,485 3 1,078,200
5,532 . - - - 5,532
50,150 10,653 - - - 60,803
2,005 . s - - 2,005
328171 30,881 - - - 359,052
278,876 E - - - 278,876
52,406 . - - - 52 406
2,225 . - - - 2,225
10,559 12,124 191 85 9 22,968
2,188,951 B47,763 29,181 29,979 2,284 3,008,158
1,952,814 605,971 8,120 3,814 - 2,570,719
1,487 124 - 8,544 - 10,155
1,697 - - - - 1,697
28,699 94,506 140 2,012 6 125,363
50,017 75,880 21,058 7,485 2,381 156,821
2,034,714 776,481 29,318 21,855 2,387 2,864,755
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3.4.3 Foreign exchange risk (continued)

344

The group is exposed to the US dollar and EURO cumencies.

The following table details the Group's sensilivity to a 5% increase and decrease in Naira agains! the US dollar and EURD. Managemenl believe that a 5%

nt in either di is bly possible at the bal sheet date. The sensilivity analyses below include oulstanding US dollar and EURO
denominated financial assets and liabililies, A positive number indicates an increase in profit where Maira weakens by 5% against the US dallar and EURO, For
a 5% strengthening of Naira against the US dollar and EURO, there would be an equal and opposite impact on profit

GROUP BANK
31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013

Naira strengthens by 5% against the US dollar (18,267) (8,682) (8,319) (3,564)
Prafiti{loss)

Naira weakens by 5% against the US dallar 18,267 8,682 8,319 3,564
Profit/{loss)

Naka strengthens by 5% against the EURO (4,628) (4,444) (120) (406)
Profiti{loss)

Naira weakens by 5% against the EURO 4,628 4,444 120 406
Profiti(loss)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the sk of loss in income or portfolio value as a result of changes In market interest rales. The Group is exposed lo interest rate risk in its
fixed income securities portfolio, as well as on the interest sensitive assels and liabilities in the course of banking and or trading. The Board sels limils on the
level of mismatch of interest rale repricing and value at risk that may be und which is i daily by the Asset and Liabflily Commitiee.

The table below summarises the Group's interest rate 9ap position showing its exposure to interest rate risks. Value at risk exposure is disclosed in Note 3.4.2,

Carrying Variable Fixed Nen intarest-
amount interest interest bearing
N millions N millions N millions N millions
GROUP
31 December 2014
Financial assets
Cash and balances with Central Banks 697,601 8,238 7,500 681,863
Loans and advances lo banks 430,053 207,842 43,777 178,434
Loans and advances
- Overdrafls 314,112 314,112 - -
-Tem loans 1,792,118 1,782,119 -
- Staff loans 7,013 - 7.013 -
- Project finance 77,558 77,558 - -
- Advances under finance lease 2,761 2,761 - -
Investment securities:
Available-for-sale investments 442,551 - 400,206 42,345
Held to maturity investments 155,353 - 156,353
Assels pledged as collateral 64,527 - 64,527 -
Financial assets held for trading 10,708 - 2,354 8,354
Other assels 26,728 - - 26,728
4,022,084 2,402,630 681,730 837,724
Financial liabilities
Cuslomer deposils 2,989,735 1,360,118 1,084,852 544,765
Deposits from banks 163,710 144,599 9,100 10,011
Financial liabililies held for trading 9,913 - - 8,913
Bomowings 362,976 185,000 177,976 -
Other liabilities 129,484 - - 128,484
3,655,818 1,688,717 1,271,928 694,173
Interest rate mismatch 712,913 {590,198) 243,551
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3.4.4 Interest rate risk continued

Carrying Variable Fixed Nen intarest-
amount interest interest bearing
N millions N millions N millions N millions
31 December 2013
Financial assets
Cash and balances with Central Banks 593,973 181,281 - 412,692
Loans and advances lo banks 415,210 287,412 126,019 1,779
Loans and advances
- Overdrafis 340,054 340,054 - -
- Term loans 1,388,912 1,346,801 42,021 -
- Slaff loans 8,071 - 8,071 -
- Project finance 60,803 60,803 - -
- Advances under finance lease 2,095 2,005 - -
Investment securities
Available-for-sale investments 451,423 - 416,013 35410
Held to maturily investments 283,267 283,267 -
Assets pledged as collateral 53,651 - 53,6850 -
Financial assets held for trading 4,743 - 3,102 1,641
Other assets 30,318 - - 30317
3,630,520 2,218,536 930,143 481,839
Financial liabilities
Cuslomer deposils 2,942,782 2,282,463 627,520 32,798
Deposits from banks 77.481 68,052 8,745 684
Financial liabilities held for trading 1,701 - - 1,701
Borowings 126,302 1,603 124 699 -
Other liabililies 181,732 - - 181,732
3,329,998 2,352,118 760,964 216,916
Interest rale mismatch (133,582) 169,178 264,923
The table below summarises the Bank's interest rate gap position
BANK
31 December 2014
Financial assets
Cash and balances with Central Bank of Nigeria 670,045 - 7,500 662,545
Loans and advances lo banks 242 842 36,105 28,332 178,405
Loans and advances
- Overdrafis 295,257 295,257 - -
- Term loans 1,473,342 1,473,342 -
- Staff loans 6,152 - 6,152 -
- Project finance 16,525 16,525 - -
- Advances under finance lease 2,761 2,781 - -
Investment securities
A for-sale i 404,508 362,383 42125
Held to maturity invesiments 140,467 140,467
Assets pledged as collateral 63,158 - 63,158 -
Financial assets held for trading 9,258 - 804 8,354
Other assels 17,323 - - 17,323
3,341,638 1,823,990 608,895 908,752
Financial lfabilities
Cuslomer depaosits 2,551,022 1,344,143 713,611 493,268
Deposits from banks 19,246 136 9,100 10,010
Financial liabilities held for trading 7.946 - - 7,946
Borrowings 377,950 205,716 172,234 -
Other liabililies 101,652 - - 101,652
3,057,816 1,549,995 894,945 612,876
Interest rate mismatch 273,995 (286,049) 295,876
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3.4.4 Interest rate risk continued
BANK

31 December 2013
Financial assets

Cash and balances with Central Bank of Nigeria
Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advancas

- Overdrafis

- Term loans

- Staff loans

- Project finance

- Advances under finance lease
Investment securities

foi la 1

Held to maturity investments
Assels pledged as collateral
Financial assets held for irading
Other assels

Financial liabllities

Cuslomer deposits

Deposits from banks

Financial liabilities held for trading
Bomowings

Other liabilities

Interest rale mismatch

Interest rate sensitivity gap analysis

The table below summarises the re
allocated lo time bands

pricing profile of FirstBank Migera Lid's non
by reference {o the eariier of the next contraclual inferest

Carrying Variable Fixed Non Interest-
amount Interest interast bearing
N millions N millions N millions N millions
541,221 177,507 - 363,714
367,571 252,998 112,794 1779
327,209 327,209 - -
1,078,200 1,036,179 42,021 -
5,532 - 5,532 3
60,803 60,803 - -
2,095 2,005 - -
358,052 - 325,839 33,213
278,876 - 278,876
52,406 - 52,406 -
2,225 - 584 1641
22,968 - - 22 968
3,088,158 1,856,792 818,052 423,315
-__'__._——._—_—_____l____.‘__
2,570,719 2,112,914 457,805 -
10,155 956 8,533 666
1,687 - - 1,697
125,363 1,603 123,760 -
156,821 - - 156,821
2,864,755 2,115,473 590,098 158,184
(258,681) 227,954 264,130

-trading book as al 31st December 2014, Carmying amounts of items are
rale repricing date and the maturity date. The interest rale exposure of the

other subsidiaries’ is considered insignificant to the Group. Thus, the repricing profile of the bank js d to be fairdy of the Group,

o o <=30DaYs| 3-S50 e oave [1-2vears | 2vearsassove | rem Sensitive
Treasury Bills 54 74 162 1 - - 303 |
Government Bonds - - 33 (2) 153 72 25

| Corporate Bonds - - - 2 5 -

| Loans and advances to banks 243 - - - - - 24

Project Finance 20 28 4 4 4 -

Term Loans 159 224 108 226 364 300 1,3
Overdraft 24 49 73 150 - = 2
Equipment on Lease - - 3 - - - 3
Staff Loans - - 6 - - - ]
TOTAL ASSETS 500 375 330 393 526 3r2 2,556
Deposits from customers 412 365 172 211 180 439 1,789
Deposits from banks 20 - - - - - 20
Medium term loan 54 129 8 0 1 142 334
TOTAL LIABILITIES 486 494 180 211 191 581 2,143

14 {119) 210 182 335 (209)) 413
Current and Savings de| its, which are included within cust deposits, are repayable on d dona | basis. In practice however, these
deposils form a stable base for the bank's operalions and liquidity needs b of the broad base - both numerically and by depositor type. From
the bank’s experience, about 49% of these d | deposits are non-rate ilive. These classes of d have been all into maturity buckets based
on histerical maturity patiems.
The sensilivity analyses below for FirsiBank Nigeria Limited has been determined based on the exposure to Interest rales for both derivatives and non-

sheetdale. For floating rate Habilities, the

sheet dale was oulstanding for the whole year. A 7% increase or decrea
interest rate risk for USD Libor or EURIBOR. The interest rate

lysis is g the amount of liability oulstanding at the balance

rate risk for Nibor and 3% is used when reporting

profile of the bank is deemed to be fairly of the Group.

fgnifi to the Group, Thus, the repricing
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3.4.4 Interest rate risk continued

a5

Interest rate sensltivity gap analysis

Management believe thal the followi a 1ents in either direction (per ) are bly possible al the balance sheet date
R Ppossibl BANK

31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
Nibor Increase by 7%
Profit/(loss) (10,810) 9,769
Nibor decrease by 7%
Profit/(loss) 19,086 (7,366)
USD Liber increases by 3%
Profit/{lass) 16,435 9,593
USD Libor decreases by 3%
Profit/{loss) (17.938) (11,466)
EURIBOR increases by 3%
Profit/{loss) (22) 205
EURIBOR decreases by 3%
Profit/(loss) (5) 473
Equity risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk by holding investments quoted on the Nigerian Stock Exchange (NSE) and other non-quoted investments. Equity
securilies quoled on the NSE is exposed to movemenl based on the general movement of the all share index and mavement in prices of specific securities held
by the Group,

As at 31 December 2014, the market value of quoted securities held by the Group is N1.47billion (2013: N3.9 billion), If the all share index of the NSE moves
by 1800 basis points from the 34,657.45 position at 31 December 2014, the effecl on the fair value of these quoted securities and the other comprehensive
income statement would have been N25.25 million.

The Group holds a number of i in d ies wilh @ market value of N40.85 billion (2013; N35.54 bilkon) of which invesiments in African
Finance Corporation (63%), Airtel Nigeria Lid (23%), and Interswilch Ltd (9%) are the signifi holdings. These i Is were valued at N25.65 billion
(cost N12.7 billion); N8.53 billion (cost N2.9 bilion) and N3.73 billion (cost N31 million) respectively as at 31 D ber 2014. AFC is a private sector led
Il bank and develof t finance institution which has the Central Bank as a single major shareholder (42.5%) wilh other African financial institutions
and investors holding the remaining shares. Airisl Nigeria is 2 private limited liability company whose principal activity Is the provision of mobile
telecommunications service using the Glabal System for Mobile © (GSM) pl is an int i pay and t i
ing pany thal provides 1 gy integration, advisory ices, b p ing and inf lo banks, gi and
T ns. These invesl are level 3 insi , see Y lysis In note 3.6,
The Group does not deal in commadities and is t not d to any ity price risk.
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38 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

(a) Financial instruments measured at fair value
The following table presents the group's assels and liabilities that are measured at fair value at reporting date. There was no transfer between levels during the

year,
Recurring Fair value measurement
GROUP
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
N'millions  N’millions N ‘millions N ‘'millions
31 December 2014
Einancial assets
Financial assets held for trading
Debt Securities 604 300 - 904
Derivatives - 8,804 - 9,804
Avallable-for-sale financial assets
Invesiment securities - debl 349,546 50,659 - 400,205
I ies - unlisted equity - - 40,722 40,722
Investment securilies - listed equity 1,623 - - 1,623
Assets pledged as callateral 16,261 2,942 - 19,203
Financial labilities held for trading
Derivatives - 9,913 - 9,913
31 December 2013
Financlal assets held for trading
Debt Securities 584 - - 584
Derivatives - 4,158 - 4,158
Available-for-sale financial assats
Investment securities - debt 343,074 72,938 - 418,013
Investment securities - unlisted equily 3 - 31,659 31,659
Investment securities - listed equity 3,751 - - 3,751
Assels pledged as collateral 20,382 - - 20,382
Financial liabllities held for trading
Derivatives - 1,701 - 1,701
BANK
Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
N'millions N 'millions N ‘millions N "millions
31 December 2014
FEinancial assets
Financial assets held for trading
Listed Debt Securities 804 300 - 904
Derivatives - 8,354 - 8,354
Available-for-sale financial assets
Investment securilies - debt 317,985 44,357 - 362,382
I U securities - unlisted equily - - 40,655 40,655
Investment securities - listed equity 1470 - - 1.470
Assels pledged as collaleral 16,261 2,942 - 19,203
Financial liabilities held for trading
Derivatives - 7.946 - 7.946
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3.6 Fair value of financlal assets and liabiliies continued

31 December 2013

Fi lassel

Financlal assets held for trading
Listed Debt Securities 584 - - 584
Derivatives 7] 1,641 - 1,641

Avallable-for-sale financial assets

Invesiment securities - debt 265,562 60,277 - 325,839

I ities - unli equity - - 31,659 31,659

Investment securities - listed equity 1,554 - - 1,554

Assets pledged as collateral 19,137 - - 19,137
Financial liabilities held for trading

Derivatives - 1,697 - 1,697

()} Financial instruments in level 1
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based an quated market prices al the balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active if
quoled prices are readily and regularly avallable from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent aclual and regulary occuring market transactions on an arm's length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the group is
the cument bid price. These instruments are included in Level 1. Instruments included in Level 1 comprise primarily bonds and equity investments classified as
trading securities or available for sale,

(ii) Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instrumenls that are not traded in an active market (for iple, the-counter derivalives) is determined by using val
techni These valuati hinig i the use of observable marke! data where it is available and rely as fillle as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required 1o fair value an i are ob ble, the inst is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included In Level 3.

Specific valuation lechniques used lo value financial instruments include:

a} Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments;

b) The fair value of forward foreign exchang Ir: is d d using forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date, with the resulling value

discounted back to present value;
c) Other lechniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, sales prices of

bl in close proximity , are used to determine fair value for the

Note that al of the

lting fair value esti are inch in Level 2 excepl for cerain unquoled equilies explained below.

(iii) Financial instruments in level 3
Inputs for the asset ar liability in this fair value hierarchy are not based on observable markel data (unobservable inputs). This level includes equity Investments

viith signifi P o
The fc g table hanges in level 3 i
GROUP

Al 1 January 2013 -

Transfer out of Level 3 due lo avallability of marke! dala 46,308
Total losses recognised through OC| (14,650)
Al 31 December 2013 31,659
Total Gains/{losses) recognised through OCI 8,996
Transferinlo Level 3 due to change in observabiity of market data 67
At 31 December 2014 40,722
BANK
At 1 January 2013 -
Transfer out of Level 3 due o availability of markel dala 46,308
Total losses recognised through OCI (14,650)
At 31 December 2013 31,659
Total Gains/{losses) recognised through OCI 8,996
Transfer into Level 3 due to change in observability of market data -
At 31 December 2014 40,655

Tolal gains or losses for the period included in profil or loss are

in 'Net

) from i
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38 Fairvalue of financlal assets and liabifities continued

Information about the fair value measurements using significant unobservable Inputs (Level 3)

Description Valuation  |Range of Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value
[technique  |Unobservable

Input{probabil

ity-weighted

average)
AIRTEL NIGERILA EVIEBITDA |25% illiquidity [the higher the iliquidity discount the lower the fair value

discount
NIBES PLC EVIEBITDA |25% ifiquidity |the higher the iliquidity discount the lower the fair value

discount
AFREXIM BANK LIMITED PVE multiples| 10% illiquidity [the higher the iliquidity discount the lower the fair value

‘r.ﬁscounl
INTERSWITCH LIMITED EV/EBITDA |25% illiquidity [the higher the lliquidity diseount the lower the fair value

discount
AFRICA FINANCE CORFPORATION P/E multiples| 10% iliquidity |the higher the illiquidity discount the lower the fair value

discount
EVIEBITDA or P/E valuation mulliple - the bank d i ppropri parable public companyfies based on industry, size, devel T | stage, u
generation and strategy. The bank then calculates a trading multiple for each comparable company identified. The multiple is calculated by either dividing the

value of the pany by its earning before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA), or dividing the quoted prics of the

comparable company by its net income (P/E). The trading multiple is then adjusted for discounts/premiums wilh regards lo such consideration as illiquidity and
other diff , ad and disad ges beh the bank’s i pany and the F public comp based on company-specific

facts and circumstances,
A reasonable change in the iliquidity discount will not result in a material change lo the fair value of the Investment,

(iv) Group's valuation process

The Group's asset liability management (ALM) unit the valuation of fi ial assets required for porting purg This team also engages
extemal specialist valuers when the need arises, and reports direclly lo the Chief Risk Officer. Di ions on the val : and resulls are held
between the ALM team and the Chief Risk Officer an a monthly basis in line with the group's management reporting dales,

3.7 Fi ial i not 1 at fair value

(2) Table below shows the carrying value of financial assets not measured at fair value.

Fair value hierachy
GRoOUP
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

N'millions N ’millions N ‘millions N ‘millions
31 December 2014
Financial assets
Cash and balances with central banks - 697,601 - 697,601
Loans and advances to banks - 430,053 - 430,053
Loans and advances to Customers:
- Overdrails - 314,112 314,912
- Term loans 1,792,119 1,792,119
- Staff loans - - 7,013 7.013
- Project finance - - 77,558 77,558
- Advances under finance lease - - 2,761 2,761
Held to maturity investmenis 110,138 46,214 - 156,353
Asset pledged as collateral 43,962 1,362 - 45,324
Other assets - 26,728 - 26,728
Deposit from customers - 2,989,735 - 2,989,735
Deposit from bank - 163,710 - 163,710
Bomowing 141,819 221,157 - 362,978
Other liabilities - 129,484 - 129,484
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Fi fal i not

Fair value hierachy
GROUP

31 December 2013

Einancial assets

Cash and balances with central banks

Loans and advances to banks

Loans and advances lo Customers:

- Overdrafts

- Term loans

- Stalf loans

- Project finance

- Advances under finance lease
Held to malurity invesiments
Assel pledged as collateral
Other assets

Deposit from customers
Deposit from bank
Bomowing

Other liabilities

BANK

31 December 2014

Einancial assets

Cash and balances with central banks

Loans and advances to banks

Loans and advances to Customers:

- Qverdrafts

- Term loans

- Staff loans

- Project finance

- Advances under finance lease
Held to maturity inve stments
Assel pledged as collateral
Other assets

Deposit from customers
Deposil from bank
Bormrowing

Other liabiliies

31 Dacember 2013

Financial assets

Cash and balances with central banks

Loans and advances {o banks

Loans and advances fo Customers:

- Overdrafts

- Temn loans

- Staff loans

- Project finance

- Advances under finance lease
Held to maturity investments
Assel pledged as collateral
Other assets

Deposil from customers
Deposit from bank
Borrowing

Other liabilities

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
N'millicns N 'millions N ‘millions N ‘millions

- 593,973 - 593,973

E 415210 5 415,210

- 340,054 340,054
1,288,912 1,388,912

- - 6,071 6,071

% = 60,803 60,803

n = 2,095 2,005
159,791 123476 - 283,267
33,269 - - 33,280
- 30,318 - 30,318

- 2,942,782 - 2,942,782

- 77,481 - T7.481

- 126,302 - 126,302

- 181,734 - 181,734

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
N'millions N ‘'millions N *millions N ‘'millions

- 670,045 - 670,045

- 242,842 - 242,842

- 295,257 205,257
1,473,342 1,473,342

- - 6,152 6,152

- - 16,525 16,525

- - 2,761 2,761
105,087 35,380 - 140,467
43,955 - - 43,955
- 17,323 - 17,323

- 2,551,022 - 2,551,022

- 19,246 - 19,248
141,819 236,131 - 377,950
- 101,652 - 101,652

- 541,221 - 541,221

- 367,571 - 367,5M

- 327,209 327,209
1,078,200 1,078,200

- - 5,532 5,532

- - 60,803 60,803

- - 2,095 2,095
155,400 123,476 - 278,876
33,269 - - 33,269
- 22968 - 22,988
- 2,570,719 - 2,570,719

- 10,155 - 10,155

- 125,363 - 125,383

- 156,821 - 156,821
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3.7 Fi ial instr not

d at fair value

(b} The fair value of loans and ad:

GROUP

Financial assets

Loans and advances to cuslomers
Fixed rate loans

Variable rate loans

to

Investment securities (held to maturity)

Assel pledged as collateral

Financial liability
Bomowings

BANK

Financial assets

Loans and advances lo customers:

Fixed rale loans
Variable rate loans

Investment securities (held to maturity)

Assel pledged as collateral

Financial liability
Bomrowings

At 31st December 2014
Carrying Fair
value value
N'millions N 'millions
7,013 4,989
2,186,550 2,186,550
156,353 124,566
45324 30,649
362,976 350,437

Al 31st December 2014

Carrying Fair

valua value
N ‘millions N 'millions
6,152 4,377
1,787,885 1,787,885
140,467 108,580
43,955 29,281
377,950 365,343

Invesiment securities have been fair valued using market prices and is within level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

g loan commilments), investment securilies and assels held for sale are as follows:

Al 31st December 2013
Carrying Fair
value value
N ‘millions N ‘millions
48,308 47,489
1,749,627 1,749,615
283,268 251,533
33,269 24,040
126,302 127,592
Al 31st December 2013
Carrying Fair
valug value
N *milliens N ‘millions
47,553 47,070
1,426,287 1,425,893
278,875 247,550
33,268 24,040
125,363 126,652

(c) The carrying value of the following financial assets and liabilities for both the bank and group approximate their fair values:

Cash and balances with Central banks

Loans and advances to banks
Assets held for sale

Olher assats (excluding prepayments)

Deposits from banks
Depasits from cuslomers
Other liabilities (excluding provisions and )
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4, Capital management

The Group's objectives in managing capital are (i} to comply with the capital requirements set by the Cenlral Bank of Nigeria, (ii) to safeguard the Group's ability

1o continue as a going and (i) to maintain an optimal capital s itable for the Group's bus sirategy.

The Group's capital management approach is driven by its strategy and organisational requirements, taking into t the I

and

envirenment in which it operates. It is the Group's policy lo maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business and to

capital requirements at all times.

meel regulatory

Through its corp , the Group mai discipline over its i decisions and where it allocates its capital, seeking to ensure

thal retums en investment are appr'npfiale after laking account of mpilallousts

The Group's sirategy Is 1o allocale capital to businesses based on their economic profit generation and, within this process, regulatory and economic capital
requirements and the cost of capilal are key faclors. The Bank has an Intemal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process which proactively evaluates capital

needs vis business growth and the operating environment. I} also guides the capital allocation among the sub and the busi units. The Bank's

intemal capital adequacy entails periodic review of risk management processes and stress testing modals to gauge the vulnerability of the bank to
| yet possible events; itoring of levals of risk ex ; and stralegic bus focus through a system of intemal controls thal provides
to those chi d with g on risk models and processes.

The Group's capilal is divided into two fiers:

* Tier 1 capital: core equity tier one capilal including ordinary shares, ry reserve, share premium and general roserve. Non-controlling interests arising on
i "

from
qualifying Tier 1 capital; and

* Tier 2 capital: qualifying subordinaled loan capilal and unrealised gains arising from the fair valuation of i held as

the Basel Il requirements as implemented in Nigeria, Tier 2 capital is restricled to 33'5% of Tier 1 capital.

} ' equity. The book value of goodwill, unpublished losses and under provisions are deducted in amiving at

for sals. Under

During the year, Nigerian banks based on regulatory requirements issued by the Central Bank migrated from the Basel | to Basel Il in terms of capital adequacy
ing and reporting, Basel Il introduced capital charges for operational risk and market risks which hitherio were unweighled, in addition to the credil risk.

The Central Bank of Nigeria prescribad a minimum fimit of 15% of tolal qualifying capitalitotal risk weighled assets as a measure of capital adequacy of banks
with intemational banking licence in Migeria. Total qualifying capital consists of tier 1 and 2 capital less invesiments in subsidiaries and other regulatory

adjustments,

The Bank works o maintain adequate capital cover for its Irading activilies, with a minimum intemal target of 16%. Cument position is closely monitored and

reporied fortnightly to the Assels and Liabilities Management Commiltee.

The table below summarises the Basel Il capital adequacy ratio for 2014 and 2013 (December 2013 capital adequacy ralio [Group: 17.73% and Bank: 16.76%]

was Initially reporied in d with the i Is of Basel 1 Accord as adopted by the Central Bank of Nigeria). It shows the composition of regulatory
capital and ratios for the years, During those years, the individual entities within the Group plied with all the regulatory capital Jui fo which they
are subjected,
Group Group Bank Bank
‘31 Dec 2014 '31 Dec 2013 ‘31 Dec 2014 ‘31 Dec 2013
N'millions N 'millions N ‘millions N ‘millions

Tier 1 capital
Share capital 16,316 16,316 16,316 16,316
Share premium 189,241 189,241 188,241 189,241
Slatutory reserve 64,524 51,988 63,231 51,329
Nen-cantrolling interest 1.641 1,626 - 2
SMEEIS reserves 6,076 6,076 6,076 6,076
Retained eamings 118,620 93,584 87,200 67,166
Less: GoodwillDeferred Tax (6,736) 11,172) (1,343) (3,655)
Less: Loan to subsidiary (14,541)
less: Invest in 1 subsidiani - - (29,493) (29,265)
Total qualifying for tier 1 capital 389,682 347,658 316,687 297,208
Tier 2 capital
Fair value reserve 14,001 14,228 16,126 13,063
Other barrowings 141,819 47,249 141,819 A7 248
Tolal Tier 2 Capital 155,820 61,477 157,945 60,312
Tier 2 Capital Restriction 132,139 81,478 120,688 60,312
less: | in lidated subsidi: - - (29,493) {29,265)
Total qualifying for tier 2 capital 132,138 61,478 91,195 31,047
Total regulatory capital 521,821 409,136 407,882 328,255
Risk-weighted assets
Credil Risk 2,641,045 2,587,551 2,131,421 2,029,705
Operalional Risk 485,259 421,658 453,748 393,993
Market Risk 46 783 46 783
Total risk-weighted assets 3,126,350 3,008,991 2,585,214 2,424 481
Risk-weighted Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) 16.69% 13.58% 15.78% 13.54%
TIER | CAR 12.46% 11.55% 12.25% 12.26%
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Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions
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Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence
of impairment similar to those in the portfolio, when scheduling its future cash flows. The methodology and assumptions used for
estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss

The use of historical loss experience is supplemented with significant management judgment to assess whether current economic
and credit conditions are such that the actual level of inherent losses is likely to differ from that suggested by historical experience.
In normal circumstances, historical experience provides objective and relevant information from which to assess inherent loss

most recent trends in risk factors are not fully reflected in the historical information. In these circumstances, such risk factors are
solely from historical loss experience,

The detailed methodologies, areas of estimation and judgement applied in the calculation of the Group's impairment charge on
financial assets are set out in the Financial risk management section.

The estimation of impairment losses is subject to uncertainty, which has increased in the current economic environment, and is
highly sensitive to factors such as the level of economic activity, unemployment rates, property price trends, and interest rates.
The assumptions underlying this judgement are highly subjective. The methodology and the assumptions used in calculating
impairment losses are reviewed regularly in the light of differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience. See note 3
for more information.

b Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments where no active market exists or where quoted prices are not otherwise available are
determined by using valuation techniques. In these cases, the fair values are estimated from observable data in respect of similar
financial instruments or using models. Where market observable inputs are not available, they are estimated based on
appropriate assumptions.

Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. Refer to Note 3.6 for
additional sensitivity information for financial instruments

Held-to-maturity investments

In accordance with IAS 39 guidance, the Group classifies some non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity as held to maturity. This classification requires significant judgement. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group were to fail to keep these'investments
to maturity other than for the specific circumstances — for example, selling an insignificant amount close to maturity — the Group is
required to reclassify the entire category as available for sale, Accordingly, the investments would be measured at fair value
instead of amortised cost,

d Retirement benefit obligation

For defined benefit pension plans, the measurement of the group's benefit obligation and net periodic pension cost/(income)
requires the use of certain assumptions, includin , among others, estimates of discount rates and expected return on plan assets.
See note 35, “Retirement benefits obligation,” for a description of the defined benefit pension plans, An actuarial valuation is
performed by actuarial valuation experts on an annual basis to determine the retirement benefit obligation of the group.
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5

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

e Impairment of Goodwill

The group fests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy. The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of estimates.

An impairment charge of N501 million arose in ICB Guinea in the retail segment during the course of year 2014, resulting in the
carrying amount of the CGU being written down to its recoverable amount.

If the terminal growth rate had been higher by 0.5%,the group would have recognised impairment lower by N20 million while if it
had been lower by 0.5% a further charge of N19 million would have been recognised in the group books. See note 29 for key
assumptions on impairment testing for goodwill.

If the weighted average cost of capital rate had been lower by 0.5% the group would have recognised impairment lower by N45
million while if it had been higher by 0.5% a further charge of N43 million would have been recognised in the group's books.
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6 Segment information

assesses its performance.
The Group is divided into the following business units:

Retail Banking
Retail Banking cuts across private individuals, businesses and public sector clients, at the lower end of the market. It also covers small and medium
enterprises (SMEs), local govemment agencies, and affluent customers,

Corporate Banking
Corporate Banking serves the middle segment of the business banking value chain, and clients comprise predominantly unrated and non-
investment grade companies with a generally higher risk profile compared to institutional clients,

Institutional Banking

The Institutional Banking segment is the top end of the business banking value chain and consists of the largest organisations across our target
industries ie., oil and gas, conglomerates and services, manufacturing, telecommunications, transport, financial institutions/multilaterals,
construction and infrastructure.

Public Sector

The public sector banking serves the three tiers of government especially the state governments. It also caters for government's parastatals,
Ministries,Department and Agencies (MDAs) by serving their banking needs and provide structured facilities to aid in the economic development of
the country.

Treasury Services

The corporate treasury serves the needs of the aroup in the following areas among others:
- Cash Management

- Liquidity Planning and Control

- Management of interest, currency and commodity risks

- Procurement of finance and financial investments

- Contacts with banks and rating agencies

- Corporate finance.

Others
This segment includes the corporate office excluding treasury services.

The Group's management reporting is based on a measure of operating profit . This measurement basis excludes the effects of non-recurring
expenditure from the operating segments such as restructuring costs, legal expenses and goodwill impairments when the impairment is the result of
an isolated, non-recurring event.

The information provided about each segment is based on the internal reports about segment profit or loss, assets and other information, which are
regularly reviewed by the Group management committee.

Segment result of operations

Total revenue in the segment represents: Interest income, fee and commission income, net gains or losses on foreign exchange income, net gains/
losses on investment securities, net gains/ losses from financial assets classified as held for trading, dividend income and other operating income.

The segment information provided to the Group management committee for the reportable segments for the year ended 31 December 2014 is as
follows:

Institutional Corporate Retail Public Treasury  Others Total
Banking Banking Banking Sector Services
N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions

At 31st December 2014

Total segment revenue 61,828 88,038 230,325 34,622 28,829 11,454 455,096
Inter-segment revenue 21,356 20,461 (81,189) (17,287) 61,055 (4,397) -
Revenue from external customers 83,183 108,499 149,136 17,335 89,884 7,057 455,096
Profit/(loss) before tax 37,105 47,526 149,346 10,183 24,890 (174,599) 94,451
Income tax expense (44) (2,035) (165) - (377) (6,905) (9,526)
Profit for the year 37,061 45,491 149,181 10,183 24,513 (181,504) 84,925
Impairment charge on credit losses (561) (14,257) (9,180) (637) - (3,213) (27,848)
Impairment charge on doubtful receivables - - - - B (17) (17)
Impairment charge on goodwill - - - - - (501) (501)
Profit for the year from discontinued operations - - - - (84) (84)
Depreciation - - - - - (10,531) (10,531)
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Institutional Corporate Retail Public Treasury  Others Total

Banking Banking  Banking Sector Services
N 'millions N ’millions N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions

At 31st December 2014

Total assets 684,887 1,030,227 450,833 37,260 548,163 1,380,265 4,131,635
Other measures of assets:

Loans and advances to customers 677,724 1,030,227 448,331 37,260 - 21 2,193,563

Investment in associates - . 5 = = 2 -

Expenditure on non-current assets - - - - - 83,404 83,404
Investment securities 7,163 - 2,503 - 546,893 42,345 598,904
Total liabilities 312,649 694,974 1,619,975 429,508 4,896 606,616 3,668,618
At 31st December 2013

Total segment revenue 79,988 74,637 98,468 34,843 83,371 375 371,682
Inter-segment revenue (23,801) (12,815) 82,985 29,609 (75,955) (23) -
Revenue from external customers 56,187 61,822 181,453 64,452 7,416 352 371,682
Profit/(loss) before tax 44,825 34,952 133,369 37,647 22,434 (186,643) 86,586
Income tax expense (21,009) (21,009)
Profit for the year 44,825 34,952 133,369 37,647 22,434 (207,652) 65,577
Impairment charge on credit losses (5,458) (11,014) (7,107) 691 - - (22,887)
Impairment charge on doubtful receivables - - - - (264) (264)
Profit for the year from discontinued operations - - - - - 875 875
Depreciation - - - - - (9,823) (9,823)
At 31st December 2013

Total assets 616,291 670,530 328,797 182,317 757,674 1,193,766 3,749,375
Other measures of assets:

Loans and advances to customers 616,291 670,530 328,797 182,317 - - 1,797,935
Investment in associates - - - - - 6,225 6,225
Expenditure on non-current assets B - - - - 78,489 78,489
Investment securities - B - - 699,280 35,410 734,690
Total liabilities 321,558 589,275 1,333,723 705,693 143,360 270,618 3,364,227

Geographical information

Revenues
31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
N 'millions N 'millions
Nigeria 413,913 344,806
Outside Nigeria 41,181 26,876
Total 455,094 371,682

Non current asset

31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
N 'millions N ‘millions

Nigeria 76,590 73,724
Outside Nigeria 6,814 4,766
Total 83,404 78,490
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10 (a)

10 (b)

Interest income

Investment securities
Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances to customer

Interest income on loans and advances to customers includes intere
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuri

GROUP BANK
31D I: 31 D k 31D E 31D I

2014 2013 2014 2013
N 'millions N 'millions N ‘millions N 'millions
79,627 78,071 69,5616 71,571
14,071 15,085 8,044 9,202
255,579 219,068 232,376 203,665
349,277 310,224 309,936 284,438

(2013:N1.3 billion) and Bank N0.499 billion (2013:N1.3 billion})

Interest expense

Customer Deposits
Deposit from banks
Borrowings

Impairment charge for credit losses

Loans and advances to customers (refer note 20)
Increase in collective impairmant
Increase in specific impairment

Net recoveries on loans previously written off

Other assets (refer note 31.9)
I (decrease) in impai

The Group Impairment charge in the financial year ended Dece
is due to the recognition of impairment in some small-medium

management/loan workoul process,

Fee and commission income

Credit related fees

Commission on turnover

Letters of credit commissions and fees
Electronic banking fees

Money transfer cormmission
Commission on Bonds and Guaraniees
Funds transfer & Intermediation fees
Account Maintenance

Brokerage and Intermediations

Other fees and commissions

Fee and commission expense

Fee and commission expense relates to charges raised by

st income on impaired financial assets, recognised using the rate of interest
ng the impairment loss. This Is analysed as follows: Group NO0.598 billion

GROUP BANK
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions
89,085 79,678 81,788 73,502
2713 2631 2,248 2,094
17,924 4,100 10,451 2,043
100,722 86,409 84,487 77,729
GROUP BANK
31 December 31 December 31D I: MD b
2014 2013 2014 2013
N ‘millions N 'millions N 'milllons N 'millions
2,960 1,265 2,343 1,262
24,888 21,622 20,727 20,912
27848 22,887 23,070 22,174
(2,135) (2,630) (2,089) (2,597)
17 284 (57) 261
25,730 20,521 20,924 19,838

mber 2014 slood at N27.8 billion from N22.8 billion recorded in December 2013, This
sized exposures to fast track remedial action in line with the bank's delinguency

GROUP BANK

3D k 31 D b 31D 31 Decemb
2014 2013 2014 2013
N 'millions N 'millions N ‘millions N 'millions
2435 2,782 1,374 1918
15,284 17,618 15,270 17,615
6,636 5472 5,327 4,527
11,465 7,648 11,485 7,648
2,195 3,634 2177 1,837
1,146 617 1,131 620
5,086 3,388 3171 3,193
8,344 7,931 7,749 7.220
4,631 3,810 1.076 1,154
1,277 346 676 114
58,499 53,246 49,416 45847
6,940 5448 8,574 5479

machines while ransacting business,and SMS alert related expenses.
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11 Net gains/(losses) on Foreign exchange income GROUP BANK
31D MD 31D b 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
N 'millions N ‘millions N 'millions N ‘millions
Fair value gain/(loss) on foreign exchange 29,174 (2,417) 28,6807 (2,620)
Foreign exchange trading income 14,110 9,042 12,676 7,370
43,284 6,625 41,283 4,750
The revalualion gain in 2014 is due to exchange rate movements on the bank's long foreign currency balance sheet position as at 31 December
12 Net gains/{l ) on inv t securities
GROUP BANK
3D 31D E 31D 3D b
2014 2013 2014 2013
N 'millions N 'millions N "millions N 'millions
Equity securities 769 (489) 91 (554)
Debt securities 68 1,872 55 3,485
837 1,383 146 2,931
13 Net gains / (I ) from fi ial instr held for trading
GROUP BANK
31D k 31D E 31D E D
2014 2013 2014 2013
N 'millions N ‘millions N 'millions N 'millions
Derivalives 569 585 568 595
Trading income on Debt securities - {20) 3 . (20)
Fair value loss on Debl securities (28) (1,961) (28) (1,861)
541 (1,386) 541 (1,388)
14 Other operating income
GROUP BANK
31D 31D l: 31D 31D
2014 2013 2014 2013
N 'millions N ‘millions N ‘millions N 'millions
Profit on sale of proparty, plant and equipment 382 284 401 302
Other income 1,455 683 1,032 359
1,837 967 1,433 661
Other income is largely comprises of income made by the group from private banking services,
15 {a) Operating expenses
GROUP BANK
31D I: 31D l: 31D l 3D
2014 2013 2014 2013
N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions
Auditors' remuneration 315 32 250 300
Directors’ emoluments 5,340 6,085 4,311 5,262
Regulatory cost 30,159 24,922 25,809 24,627
Maintenance 19,079 21,916 18,668 21,924
Insurance premium 1,729 1,296 1,333 1,295
Rent & rates 4,025 2,710 3,670 2,710
Advert and Corporate Promolions 11,783 7.704 11,629 7,474
Legal and Professional fees 2,109 2,011 1,531 1,526
Donations & Subseriplions 1,792 1,747 1,458 1,558
Stationary & printing 2195 2,016 1,972 1,869
Consultancy Fees 1,966 1,534 1,676 1418
Communications,lights and power 6,108 3,053 5,987 3,053
Cash handling charges 3,042 2771 3,016 2,771
Operational and other losses 18,488 5,155 16,950 3,947
Passages & Travels 5,058 5,092 5,054 5,092
Outsourced cost 12,248 9,850 12,248 9,850
Impai of i 1t in subsidiari - - 2121 -
Other operaling expenses 8,674 3,022 6,044 1,631
134,108 101,205 127,727 96,308
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15(b) Personnel expenses

16

Wages and salaries

Pension costs:

- Defined contribution plans

- Defined benefit plans (Note 35)
- Other employee benefits

Taxation

Corporate tax
National Fiscal Levy/ Contingent Tax
Education tax

Technology tax

Capital gains tax

Under provision in prior years
Current income tax - current period

Origination and reversal of temporary deferred tax diff
Income tax expense
Group

Profit before income tax

Tax calculated using the domestic corporation tax rate of 30% (2013: 30%,
2012: 30%)

Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions
Non-deductible expenses

Effect of education tax levy

Effect of Information technology

Effect of capital gains tax

Effect of minimum tax

Effect of National fiscal levy

Effect of excess dividend tax

Tax exempt income

Effect of disposal of items of PPE

Eifect of change in PBT due to IFRS adjustments
Tax incentives

Tax loss effect

(Over) / under provided in prior years

Effect of prior period adjustment on deferred tax
Total income tax expense in income statement

Income tax expense
Bank

Profit before income tax

Tax calculated using the domestic corporation tax rate of 30% (2011: 30%,
2010: 30%)

Non-deductible expenses

Effect of education tax levy

Effect of Information technology

Effect of capital gains tax

Effect of excess dividend tax

Tax exempt income

Taxincentives

Effect of prior period adjustment on deferred tax
Total income tax expense in income statement

Income tax expense

GROUP BANK
31 December 31 December 31D 31D k
2014 2013 2014 2013
N 'milllons N ‘millions N 'millions N 'millions
67,625 52,579 58,298 45617
2,711 2,550 2,463 2,429
166 3,689 26 3,603
2,224 1,638 2,224 1,638
72,726 60,456 63,011 53,287
6,161 15,200 2,937 11,748
s 13 = =
- 1,301 - 1.258
814 769 814 789
- 27 - 27
= 11 - ”
6,975 17,321 3,751 13,802
2,551 3,688 2,434 3,686
9,526 21,009 6,185 17,488
2014 2013
94,367 87 460
28,310 30% 26,238 30%
(128) 0% - 0%
17,080 18% 4516 5%
- 0% 1301 1%
814 1% 769 1%
- 0% 27 0%
21 0% - 0%
22 0% - 0%
403 0% 5,349 6%
(36,797) -39% (17.712) “19%
¥ 0% 1 0%
- 0% 15 0%
(230) 0% (231) 0%
- 0% {4) 0%
- 0% 13 0%
22 0% 727 1%
9,526 [1] 21,008 1]
9,526 10% 21,009 24%
2014 2013
85,536 76,853
25,8861 30% 23,056 30%
16,292 19% 3,782 4%
s 0% 1,258 1%
814 1% 768 1%
- 0% 27 0%
402 0% 5,346 6%
(36,754) -43% (17,383) -20%
(230) 0% (94) 0%
0% 727 1%
6,185 7% 17,488 23%
6,185 7% 17,488 23%
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16  Taxation continued GROUP BANK
31D k kL] 31D l 31D I
2014 2013 2014 2013
N 'millions N 'millions N ‘millions N 'millions
The movement in the current income tax liability is as follows:
Al start of the year 31,633 22,538 29,836 19,768
Effect of adjustment on acquired entities 3 (728) - -
Tax paid (30,276) (8,455) (27,029) (3,734)
Withhelding tax credit utllised {11) (4) - -
Prior period {over)f under provision - 2 - -
AFS Securities Revaluation Tax chargef(credit) (882) (282) - -
Income tax charge 6,975 17,321 3.751 13,802
Effect of Changes in Exchange Rate 888 1.248 - -
At 31 December 8,530 31,633 6,558 29,836
Current 8,530 31,633 6,558 29,836
17 Cash and balances with central banks
GROUP BANK
31D k 31D s 31D E 31D b
2014 2013 2014 2013
N 'millions N ‘millions N 'millions N ‘millions
Cash 63,306 71,681 44,338 38,973
Balances with central banks excluding mandalory reserve deposits 71,058 181,281 65,630 177,607
134,384 252,962 109,968 216,480
Mandatory reserve deposits with Cenlral Banks 563,237 341,011 560,077 324,741
697,601 593,973 670,045 541,221

Included in balances with central bank is a call placement of N7.5 billion for Group and Bank (31 December 2013: N137.04 billion)

Restricted deposits with central banks are not available for use in Group's day to day operations. The bank had restricted balances of NSG0.08 billion
with cantral Bank of Nigeria (CBN) as at 31st December 2014 (December 2013: N325 billion). This balance is CBN cash reserve requirement. The
cash reserve ralio represents a mandatory 15% of non-government deposils (December 2013 :12%) and 75% of govemment deposit (December
2013:50%) which should be held with the Central Bank of Nigeria as a regulalory requirement. FBN UK, FBN Ghana,FBN Gambia, FBN Guinea and
FBN Senegal had restricted balances of N0.428 billion, N0,968 billion, NO.158 million,N1.407 billien and NO.198 billion respectively with their

respective central banks.

18  Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three months'
acquisition, including cash in hand, deposits held at call with other banks and other short-term highly

than three months.

Cash (Note 17)
Balances with central banks other than mandatory reserve deposits (Note 17)
Loans and advances to banks excluding long term phi its (Note 19)

Treasury bills included in financial assets held for trading (Note 21)
Treasury bills and eligible bills excluding pledged treasury bills (Note 22.1 & 22.2

19 Loans and advances to banks
Current balances with banks within Nigeria
Current balances with banks outside Nigeria

Flacements with banks and discount houses

Long term placement
Carrying amount

malurity from the date of

liquid investments with original maturities less

GROUP BANK

D I 31D b 31D b 31D
2014 2013 2014 2013
N ‘millions N ‘millions N 'millions N ‘millions
63,306 71,681 44,338 38,973
71,058 181,281 65,620 177.507
280,692 311,581 212,679 346,970
174 438 174 438
61,049 197,440 50,913 143,402
486,279 762,421 373,734 707,290
52,962 4,768 3478 1,620
156,808 287,414 171,567 337,348
80,922 19,398 37,634 8,002
290,692 311,581 212,679 346,970
139,361 103,629 30,163 20601
430,053 415,210 242,842 367,571

Included in loans to banks is a non current placement of N139.36 billion for Group and N30.16 billion for Bank(31 December 2013: N103.6 billion for
Group and N20.6 billion for Bank) which does not qualify as cash and cash equivalent.

All other loans to banks are due within 3 months.
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20 Loans and advances to customers

GROUP

31 December 2014
Overdrafis

Term loans

Staff loans

Project finance

Advances under finance lease

31 December 2013
Overdrafts

Term loans

Staff loans

Project finance

Advances under finance lease

BANK

31 December 2014
Overdrafis

Term loans

Staff loans

Project finance

Advances under finance lease

31 December 2013
Overdrafts

Term loans

Staff loans

Project finance

Advances under finance lease

Current
MNon-current

Gross Specific Collective Total Carrying
amount impairment  impairment impairment amount
N'millions N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions
329,576 11,845 3619 15,464 314,112
1,819,080 15,640 11,331 26,971 1,792,118
7,081 - 68 68 7.013
77,708 - 151 151 77,558
2,233,456 27,485 15,169 42,654 2,190,802
3.043 241 Lil 282 2,781
2,236,499 27,726 15,210 42,936 2,193,563
354,578 10,465 4,080 14,524 340,054
1,417,892 9,393 19,587 28,981 1,388,912
6,287 3 185 216 6,071
61,534 - 3 731 60,803
1,840,291 19,889 24,563 44,452 1,795,840
2,862 696 7 768 2,095
1,843,153 20,585 24,634 45,220 1,797,935
Gross Specific Collective Total Carrying
amount  impairment  impairment | pai
N ‘millions N ‘millions N 'millions N ‘millions N 'millions
308,724 11,289 2,168 13,467 295,257
1,497,444 14,616 9,485 24,102 1,473,342
6,220 - 68 68 6,152
16,676 - 151 151 16,525
1,829,064 25915 11,873 37,788 1,791,276
3,043 241 41 282 2,761
1,832,107 26,156 11,914 38,070 1,794,037
340,854 10,022 3,623 13,645 327,209
1,104,336 7.297 18,838 26,135 1,078,200
5,702 - 170 170 5,532
61,534 - 3 731 60,803
1,512,426 17,319 23,362 40,681 1,471,744
2,862 696 71 768 2,085
1,515,288 18,015 23433 41,449 1.473,839
GROUP BANK
1D er 31D 31D 3D b
2014 2013 2014 2013
N 'millions N 'millions N ‘millions N ‘millions
1,196,808 831,142 989,639 719,304
996,755 866,793 804,398 754,535
2,193,563 1,797,935 1,794,037 1,473,839
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20a CEN/Bank of Industry facilities
Included in Loans and Advances to customers are

term loans granted to customers in line with Central Bank of Nigeria (CEN) N200 billion

intervention funds for refinancing and restructuring of banks' loans to the manufacturing sector. The on-ending facilities are for a maximum of 15

years' tenor at 6% interest per annum,

CBNICommercial Agriculture Credit {CACS)

This relates to the balance on term loan faciliies granted to customers under Cenlral Bank of Nigeria (CBN) Commercial Agriculture Credit Scheme.
The facilities under the scheme are fora period of 7 years al 9% interest per annum. These balances are Included in the loans and advances.

31D E 3D
2014 2013
N 'millions N "millions
CBN/Bank of Industry 14,514 7.429
CEN/Commercial Agriculture Credit 13,733 20,319
R iliation of impai 11 on loans and advances to customers:
GROUP
Overdrafts * Termloans Finance lease Others Total
N ‘millions N 'millions N ‘millions N 'milllons N 'millions
At 1 January 2014
Specific impalrment 10,465 9,393 696 3 20,585
Collective impairment 4,058 19,587 72 916 24,633
14,523 28,980 768 947 45218
Additional provision/(Writeback)
Specific impairment 7,490 16,408 (455) (31) 23,413
Collective Impairment 2918 2,213 ;| (697) 4,435
10,408 18,622 (454) (728) 27,848
Loans written off
Specific impairment (6,444) (10,239) - - (16,683)
Collective impaiment (3,359) {10,470) (31) - (13,860)
Acquisition through business bination (specific impai 335 rd 412
At 31 December 2014 15,463 26,970 283 218 42,935
Specific impairment 11,846 15,640 241 - 27,727
Collective impairment 3,617 11,330 41 219 15,208
15463 26,970 282 219 42,935
At 1 January 2013
Specific impairment 6,882 10,251 - . 17,133
Collective impairment 3,402 17,372 87 1,332 22,193
10,284 27,623 87 1,332 39,326
Additional provision/{Writeback)
Specific impaiment/(write back) 11,628 9,267 696 31 21,822
Collective impairmenti(write back) 647 1,048 (15) (4186) 1,265
12,275 10,315 681 (385) 22,887
Loans written off (8,693) (10,447) - - (19,140)
Acquisition through business
combination (specific impairment) B48 322 870
Acquisition through business
combination (collective impairment) ] 1,167 1,176
At 31 December 2013 14,523 28,980 768 947 45,219
Specific impairment 10,465 9,393 696 31 20,585
Callective impairment 4,058 19,587 72 916 24634
14,523 28,980 788 947 45219
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BANK
Overdrafts ~ Termloans Finance lease Others Total
N 'millions N 'millions N ‘millions N 'millions N 'millions
At 1 January 2014
Specific impairment 10,020 7297 698 - 18,015
Collective impairment 3,623 18,838 71 901 23,433
13,643 26,135 769 a01 41,448
Additional provision/(Writeback)
Specific impalrmant 8,346 12,838 (457) - 20,727
Collective Impaiment 1,908 1.118 1 (682) 2,343
10,252 13,956 (456) (882) 23,070
Loans written off
Specific impaiment (7,068) (5.519) - {12,587)
Collective impaiment (3,360) (10,470) (31) - (13,861)
At 31 December 2014 13,467 24,102 282 219 38,070
Specific impairment 11,298 14,616 241 - 26,155
Collective impairment 2,168 9,486 41 218 11,915
13,466 24,102 282 219 38,069
At 1 January 2013
Specific impalrment 6,585 8,222 - - 14,807
Collective impairment 3,602 17,150 87 1,332 22171
10,187 25,372 87 1,332 36,978
Additional provision/(Writeback)
Specific impairment 11,785 8,429 698 - 20,912
Collective impairment 21 1,688 {15) (431) 1,262
11,806 10,117 683 (431) 22174
Loans writlen off (8,350) (9,354) - - (17,704)
At 31 December 2013 13,643 26,135 769 901 41,448
Specific impairment 10,020 7,297 698 - 18,015
Collective impairment 3.623 18,838 71 901 23,433
13,643 _26135 769 901 41,448
Loans and ad to t i il lease ivables as foll
GROUP BANK
31D k 31 Dy b 31D b 31D
2014 2013 2014 2013
N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions N 'milliens
Gross i tin fi lease, ]
- Molater than 1 year 168 547 168 547
= Laterthan 1 year and no later than 5 years 3,555 2,678 3,555 2678
- Later than 5 years = 24 " 24
3,723 3,248 3,723 3,248
Uneamed fulure finance income on finance leases (680) (387) (680) (387)
Impairment allowance on leases (282) (768) (282) (7&8)
Net invest in fi lease, r able 2,761 2,094 2,781 2,094
Net invest infi lease, Ivable is analysed as foll
- Nolater than 1 year 151 147 151 147
- Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 28610 1,825 2,610 1,925
- Later than 5 years - 22 - 22
2,761 2,094 2,761 2094
20.1  Nature of security in respect of loans and advances:
GROUP BANK
31D 31D 31D 31 D k
2014 2013 2014 2013
N ‘millions N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions
Legal Mortgage/Debenture On Business
Premises, Factory Assets Or Real Estates 579,351 627,755 480,974 544,204
G /Recelvables Of Ir Grade 748,557 178,923 738,045 373,890
Banks and State Government
Domiciliation of receivables 630,801 112,102 484,648 402,821
Clean/Negative Pledge 79,749 47,791 78,012 138,238
Marketable Securities/Shares 14,755 374,221 14,755 23,955
Otherwise Secured 81,184 484,590 2,290 15,540
Cash/Govemment Securities 104,102 17,772 23,383 16,640
2,236,499 1,843,154 1,832,107 1,515,288

The Group Is not permitted to sell or repledge the collateral in the absence of defauit by the owner of the collateral,
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21 Financial assets and liabilities held for trading

GROUP BANK
31D Is 31D I 31D 31D 1

2014 2013 2014 2013

N ‘millions N ‘millions N ‘millions N 'millions

Treasury bills with maturity of less than 90 days 174 438 174 438
Treasury bills with maturity over 90 days 730 146 730 146
Total debt securities 504 584 a04 584
Derivative assets 9,804 4,159 8,354 1,841
Total assets held for trading 10,708 4,743 9,258 2,225

The Group did not designate any financial assets as fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition,
The Group uses the following d trategi

Economic hedges

The Group use of derivative instrument is very nascent and has been limited to hedging of risk exposuras resulting from adverse movement in market
risk factors. The Group's derivalive transactions are principally in;

Forward FX Contracls entered into to hedge against Foreign Exchange Risks arising from cross-currency exposures.

Exchange rate risk in EURO borrowing disbursed In USD is being managed by the use of Forward FX Conlracts that allows a notlonal accrual of
Euros that will close the open position over the life of the borrowing.

Customers Risk Hedge Needs

The Group offers its customers derivatives in connection with their risk-management objectives to transfer modify or reduce foreign exchange risk for
their own trading purposes. As part of this process, the Group considers the customers’ suitability for the risk involved, and the business purpose for
the transaction. Currenlly all hedge transactions with the customers are backed by trade (visible and invisible) transactions. The Group also
manages ils derivative-risk positions through calculation of pre-setilement risk exposure and daily reporting of positions and risk measures to senlor
management.

The deri instr b favourable (assels) or unfavourable (liabllities) as a result of fluctuations in market interest rates or forelgn
exchange rales relative to thelr terms. The aggregate contractual or notional amount of derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to which
Instruments are favourable or unfavourable, and thus the aggregale fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities, can fluctuate significantly
from time to lime. The fair values of derivative instruments held are set out below:

GROUP BANK
31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2014
Notional Notional
contract Falr values contract Fair values
amount Asset Liabllity amount Asset Liability
N 'millions N 'milllons N 'millions N ‘millions N 'millions N ‘millions
Forelgn exchange derivatives
Forward FX contract 281,325 1,450 (1,975) 386 - (8)
FX Accumulator Contract 565 = (133) 565 - (133)
Currency swap 14,884 - (58) 14,884 4 (58)
Put options 52,996 8,354 (7,747) 52,996 8,354 (7.747)
349,770 9,804 (8,913) 68,831 8,354 (7,946)
Current 286,774 1,450 (2,1686) 15,835 - (199)
Non Current 52,996 8,354 (7.747) 52,996 8,354 (7.747)
349,770 9,804 {9,913) 68,831 8,354 (7.948)
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22

Financial assets and liabilities held for trading continued

GROUP BANK
31 Dec 2013 31 Dec 2013
Notional Notional
contract Fair values contract Fair values
amount Asset Liability amount Asset Liability
N'millions  N'millions N ‘millions N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions
Foreign exchange derivatives
Forward FX contract 189,302 2,522 {71) 1,425 4 {71)
Currency swap 19,617 12 {4) 19,617 12 -
Put aptions 34,361 1,626 (1,626) 34,361 1,626 (1,626)
243,280 4,160 (1,701) 55,403 1,642 (1,697)
Current 195,510 2,534 (4) 7.633 16 -
Non Current 47,770 1,626 (1,697) 47,770 1,626 (1,697)
243,280 4,160 (1,701) 55,403 1,642 (1,697)
Investment Securities
GROUP BANK
31 December 31 December 31D E 3D
2014 2013 2014 2013
N "millions N 'millions N ‘millions N 'millions
Securities available for sale
Debt securities ~ at fair value:
= Treasury bills with maturity of less than 80 days 57,083 197,440 50,913 143,402
~ Treasury bills with maturity of more then 80 days 232,698 58,616 232,698 54,698
- Govemment bonds 72,169 139,626 72,169 107,410
~ Other bonds 38,256 20,331 6,603 20,331
Equity securities — at fair value:
— Listed 1,623 3,751 1,470 1,554
Equity securities — at fair value:
= Unlisted 40,722 31,659 40,655 31,659
442,551 451,423 404,508 359,052
Assets pledged as collateral
Debt securities - at fair value
= Treasury bills 19,203 20,178 19,203 19,137
- Bonds = 204 % E
18,203 20,382 19,203 19,137
Total securities classified as available for sale 461,754 471,805 423,711 378,189
Securities held to maturity
Debt securities - at amortised cost:
= Treasury bills with miaturity of less than 90 days 3,966 - - -
— Treasury bills with malurity of mare then 90 days 7.993 10,498 - 6,107
= Bonds 144,394 272,769 140,467 272,769
156,353 283,267 140,467 278,876
Assets pledged as collateral
Debt securities - at amortised cost
- Treasury bills 1,360 - - C
— Bonds 43,964 33,269 43,955 33,269
45,324 33,269 43,955 33,269
Total securities classified as held-to-maturity 201,877 316,536 184,422 312,145
Total investment securities 663,431 788,341 608,133 680,334
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241

Asset pledged as collateral

The assets pledged by the graup are strictly for the purpose of providin
permitted to sell and/or repledge the assels in the absence of default, th
These transactions are conducted under lerms that are usual and customal

ey are classified in the statement of financial
ry to standard securities borrowing and lending activities.

The nalure and carrying amounts of the assels pledged as collaterals are as follows:

Available for sale debt securities (note 22.1)
Held to maturity debt securities (note 22.2)

The related liability for assets held as collateral include:

Bank of Industry

Central Bark of Nigeria/Commercial Agriculture
Credit Scheme Intervention fund

The assets pledged as collateral include assets pledged to third parties under secured
included in pledged assets are assels pledged as collateral or securi
in December 2014 (2013: N40.3bn) and N40.24bn for bank In De

Current
Non current

in ies

Principal subsidiary undertaki ngs

FBN Bank (UK) Limited (Note 24 i

First Pension Custodian Limited (Note 24 (i) )
FBN Morigages Limited (Note 24 (lii} )

FBN Bureau de Change Limited (Note 24 (iv))
FBN Bank Congo DRC {Note 24 (V)

FEBN Bank Ghana

Intemnational Commercial Bank (ICB) Sierra Leone

FEN Bank Guinea

Intemational Commercial Bank (ICB) Gambla
International Commercial Bank (ICB) Senegal
I it loss on i It in subsidi

During the year, the Bank made additional investments of
All shares in subsidiary undertakings are ordinary sha

Subsidiary

FBN Bank (UK) Limited (Note 24 (ih)
First Pension Custodian Limited (Note 24 (ii) )

FBN Mortgages Limited (Note 24 (i) )
FBN Bureau de Change Limited (Note 24 (iv))

FBN Bank Congo (DRC) (Note 24 (v))
FBN Bank Ghana (Note 24 (vi))

ICB Sierra Leone (Note 24 (vii))

FBN Bank Guinea (Note 24 {viii))

ICB Gambia (Note 24 (ix)

ICB Senegal (Note 24 (x))

i FBN Bank (UK) Limited

by

FBN Bank (UK) Ltd ('FBNUK') is a company incorporated in the Un
the Financial Services Authority to accept deposits and undertake banki
owned subsidiary of First Bank of Nigeria Limited. The bank has a bran

Principal activity

Banking

Pension fund Assets
custodian

Mortgage banking
Bureau De Change

Banking
Banking
Banking
Banking
Banking
Banking

g collateral to counterparties. To the extent that the counterparty is not
position as pledged assets,

ty deposits to clearin

GROUP BANK
31D 1D I: 31D I 31D

2014 2013 2014 2013

N 'milllons N ‘millions N ‘millions N "'millions
19,203 20,382 18,203 19,137
45,324 33,269 43,955 33,269
64,527 53,651 63,158 52,406
14,791 7.394 14,791 7,394
15,624 21,305 15,624 21,305

borrowing with the related liability disclosed above. Also
g house and payment agencies of N40.24 bn for the group
cember 2014 (2013 N40.3bn) for which there is no related liability.

ng business. FBNUK was incol
ch in Paris,

20,563 20,178 19,203 19,137
43,964 33,473 43,955 33,269
84,527 53,651 83,158 52,406
31D 3D k
2014 2013
N 'millions N 'millions
30,695 30,695
2,000 2,000
4,777 2,100
- 50
5,503 5,503
10,559 10,558
1,685 1,685
2,378 2,243
1,472 1472
2,038 -
(2,121) 2
58,986 56,307

Proportion of Proportion of

shares held  shares held
Country of directly by directly by
incorporation parent (%) the group (%)
United Kingdom 100 100
Nigeria 100 100
Nigeria 100 100
Nigeria 100 100
Democratic
Republic of
Congo 75 75
Ghana 100 100
Sierra Leone 100 100
Guinea 80 100
Gambia 100 100
Senegal 80 100
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f N2.677bn and N135.3m in FEN Martgages and FBN Bank Guinea respectively,

res. For all periods shawn, the group owned the total issued shares in all ils subsidiary
undertakings except Banque Intemationale de Crédit in which it owned 75%. There are no significant restrictions on any of the subsidiaries, All
subsidiary undertakings are included in the consolidation. The proportion of the voling righls in the subsidiary undertakings held directly by the

parenl company and the group do not differ from the praportion of ordinary shares held, The total non-controlling interest for the year is N1.64 billion,

Statutory year
end
31 December

31 December
31 December
31 December

31 December
31 December
31 December
31 December
31 December
31 December

ited Kingdom under the Companies Act 1985 as a UK registered bank authorised
rporated in November 2002, It is a wholly
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24 Investment in subsidiaries continued

ii First Pension Custodian Limited
First Pension Custodian Limited was incorparated on 12 August 2005 and granted an approval in principle by the National Pension Commission on 1
August 2005 while the operating licence was obtained on the 7 December 2005. The principal activity of the company is to act as a Custodian of
Pension Fund Assets in accordance with the Pension Reform Act, 2004,

iii FBN Mortgages Limited
The Company was incorporated on 17 March 2003 and commenced operations on 1 May 2004, Its principal activities include acceptance of deposits,
provision of morigage finance for customers and investmeant In properties,

iv FBN Bureau de Change Limited
This represents the Bank's 100% holding in FEN Bureau de Change Limited. The Bank obtained approval from the Central Bank of Nigeria to
operate a bureau de change on 8 August 2008, In September 2013, the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) withdrew the license of the FBN Bureau De
Change Limited . During the period,the company was wound up and the Bank assumed the residual asets and liabilities.

v FBN Bank (Congo DRC)
FBN Bank (DRC) (previously known as Banque Intemationale de Crédit (BIC)), is a company incorporated in the Democratic Republic of Congo
(DRC) on 6th April 1994, following the approval granted by the Central Bank of Congo on September 24, 1993,
First Bank Nigeria Limited has a helding of 75% in the equily of BIC.

vi FBN Bank (Ghana)

FBN Bank (Ghana) (previously known as ICB Ghana), is a company incorporated in Ghana on March 18,1996,and commenced operations in
November 1996, The bank operates with a Class 1 universal banking license andis a Tier Il bank in the Ghana banking landscape with a netwark of
seventeen (17) branches and two (2) cash agencies. Its principal activiies include business banking and consumer banking. The target customers
of the cansumer banking are individuals while SMEs and corporates are the focus of the business banking unit,

First Bank Nigeria Limited has a holding of 100% in the equity of FEN Bank (Ghana). The Bank obtained Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN)'s approval
for the acquisition of ICB West Africa Including ICB Ghana on June 7,2013 while the Bank of Ghana (BoG) gave its provisional approval for the
transaction on Seplember 19, 2013.

vii ICB Slerra Leone
ICB Sierra Leone, is a company incorporated in Sierra Leone on August 2004,and is one of the ten foreign-owned commercial banks in Slerra
Leone. Presently, the bank has a branch network of two branches located in one of the four regions of Sierra Leone. Its principal activities include
Public Sector, Retall banking, SMEs and Corporate banking.
First Bank Migeria Limited has a holding of 100% in the equity of ICB Sierra Leone. The Bank obtained CBN's approval for the acquisition of ICB
West Africa including ICB Sierra Leone on June 7,2013 while the Bank of Sierra Leone (BoSL) gave its approval for the acquisition on June 25,2013,

vill FBN Bank (Guinea)

FBN Bank (Guinea) (previously known as ICB Guinea) is a Tler lll bank in Guinea banking sector, The bank was incorporated on September 17,1996
and commenced operations in 1997, ICB Guinea currently operates from five locations in Conatkry, the capital city and is well known in Guinea as
one of the leading banks with quality services, transparent transactions and compliance with legal and regulatory palicies. Its principal activities
include busi and cc banking. The business banking group focuses on corporate and institulional customers while consumer banking
group provides services lo relail customers.

First Bank Nigeria Limited has a holding of 80% in the equity of FBN Bank (Guinea), while FBN Bank (Ghana) holds the other 20% equily. The CBN's
approval for the acquisition of FBN Bank (Guinea) was gotten alongside the other ICBs operations in West Africa in June 7, 2013 while Central Bank
of Republic of Guinea (BCRG) gave its final approval for the transaction on August 26, 2013,

ix ICB Gambia
ICB Gambia, is a company incorporated and commenced operations in Gambia on July 2004. The bank Is a Tier Ill bank in the Gambian banking
sector, and currenlly operates from four (4) locations in one of the six regions in the Gambia. Key sectors targeted by the bank are public sector,
corporate companies, SMEs and retail customers,
First Bank Nigeria Limited has a holding of 100% in the equity of ICB Gambia. The approval for the acquisition was granted by CEN an June 7,2013
wihile the Central Bank of Gambia (CBG) gave its provisional approval on April 24,2013,

Ed

ICB Senegal

ICB Senegal was incorporated and commenced operations in Senegal on June 2001. The bank is a Tier Il| bank,and currently operates from three
(3) locations in Senegal. Its principal activities include retail and commercial banking. Key sectors targeted by the bank are public sector,corporate
customers, SMEs and retails customers.

First Bank of Nigeria Limited acquired 80% in the equity of ICB Senegal with FBN Bank (Ghana) holding the remaining 20% equily. The acqusition of
ICB Senegal was deferred until when the Central Bank of West Africa States, the regulatory authority in charge of banking business in Senegal,gave
its final approval for the transaction on May 28,2014,

xi FBN Finance Company B.V
This is a special purpose entity which issued Eurobonds during the year. The resulls of the SPE have been consolidated by he bank.

xii First Dependants Nigeria Limited
First Dependants was set up as a special purpose vehicleffund established by a trust deed for the purpose of provisions for pensions and other
benefits on 1t for and in respect of employees of FBN Limited. Being a fund established by a trust deed,the management entered into a
fund management agreement with First Trustees Limited to invest the funds in eligible transactions and assets held in anticipation of needs.

xiii First Nominees Nigeria Limited
First Nominees Nigeria Limited was set Up as a special purpose vehicle by the bank and funded by cantributions from the bank. A provident fund and
profit -sharing scheme,which was replaced by the "Pension and Graluity Scheme", The fund was been managed lo provide for pensions and other
benefits on retirement for and in respect of employees of FirstBank Nigeria Limited, The fund is being managed by FirstTrustees Nigeria Limited.

xiv  Sinking Fund
The fund is an in-house Insurance scheme establishad as a fund against the risk on the FBN Holdings Group's motor vehicles. This fund is being
managed by FEN insurance brokers,who has the responsibilities to manage,operale and administer the fund in settlement of claims

xv  FBC Assets Limited
FBC Assets Limited (previously called First Bank Capital Assets Limited) is a special purpose vehicle (SPV) incorporated to acquire shares of Zain
Nigeria Limited (now Alrtel Networks Limited). The shares are held in trust for First Bank of Nigeria Lid.
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First Bank of Nigeria Limited

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2014

31 December 2014

Summarized Income Statement
Operating income

Operating expenses
Provision expense

Operating profit

Associate

Profit before tax

Tax

(Lass)/Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income allocated to non controlling

interest
Dividends paid to non controlling interest

Summarized Financial Position

Assets

Cash and balances with Central Bank
Due from other banks

Loans and advances

Financial Assets held for Trading (HFT)
Investment securities

Assets Pledged as collateral
Investment in subsidiaries
Investment in Associates

Other assets

Deferred tax

Intangible Assels

Property, plant and equipment
Assets held for sale

Financed by

Customer deposits

Due to other banks

Financial liabilities held for trading
Borrowed funds

Tax payable

Other liabilities

Retirement benefit obligations
Deferred income tax liabilities
Liabilities held for sale

Equity and reserves

Total Equity and Liabilities

Summarized cash flows

Operating activities

Interest received

Interest paid

Purchase of investment securities

Proceeds from the sale of investment securities
Income tax paid

Cash flow generated from operations

Net cash generated from operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in financing activities

Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at start of year
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

BREAKDOWN OF OTHERS IN NOTE 24.2

FBN Finance  Sinking Funds  FBN Nominees FirstDependants Total
N'million N'million N'million N'million N'million
16 32 942 398 1,668

(9) (66) (4863) 9 (548)

7 246 479 389 1,120

7 246 479 389 1,120
(1) s (23) = (24)

6 246 456 389 1,096
1 (2) (4086) (638) {1,105)

i 244 50 (309) {9)

17 398 1,002 1,809 3,226
143,012 1,045 134 35 144,226
13 1 75 287 376

- - 37 - a7
143,042 1.444 1,248 2,131 147,865
143,012 - - - 143,012
1 - 26 - 27

12 32 &1 - 105
143,025 32 87 - 143,144
16 1,412 1,160 2,131 4,719
143,041 1,444 1.247 2,131 147,863
= 151 7 21 179
- (208) (208)
- {23) {23)

- 162 478 1 642

- 105 463 22 590

- - {329) 1,237 908

- 105 134 1,259 1,498

- 294 BB 551 1,713

- 399 1,002 1,810 3,211




First Bank of Nigeria Limited

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2014

25  Acquisition of Subsidiary

In May 2014, First Bank of Nigeria Limited acquired 80% equity interest in ICB Senegal, This concluded the 100% acquisition of the West Africa
operations of Intemalional Commercial Bank (ICB) from International Commercial Bank Financial Group Holdings AG (ICBFGH) which commenced
in 2013 with the acquisition of equity interests in four entities (ICB Ghana, ICB Sierra Leane, ICB Guinea and ICB Gambia) in Oclober 2013, As 2
result of these acquisitions, the Commercial Banking segment of the Group will consalidate its position as one of the largest corporate and retall
banking financial institutions in sub-Sahara Africa (excluding South Africa). This acquisition will enhance the Group's total asset base by about 1%.
The accounling for the acquisition of these subsidiari was pleted in 30 September 2014 and this resulted in a change to goodwill by N1.081

billion from the provisional amount recognised in the 2013 consalidated financial statements.

ICB Senegal contributed interest income of N326 milllon and fee commission of N1 million to the Group for the period

June 2014 to 31 December

of N232

2014 but with a loss of N104 million . If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2014, ICB S gal would
million, fee and commission of N3¢ million and a loss before tax of N227 million to the Group.

The following table summarises the consideration paid for the subsidiaries, the fair value of assets acquired, liabilities assumed and the non-

controlling interest at the acquisition date.

ICB Ghana ICB Sierra ICB Guinea  ICB Gambia ICB Senegal
Leone
October 31 0 31 October 31 October 31 May 31 2014
2013 2013 2013 2013
N' million N’ million N' million N milllon N million
Consideration
Cash 10,559 1,685 2,243 1,435 2,038
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acqulired and liabilities assumed
Fair value Falr value Fair value Fair value Fair value
Cash and balances with central banks 1,768 416 2,846 949 139
Investment Securities 10,632 1,647 1,501 767 4,422
Loans and advances to banks 404 - 3,073 - 952
Loans and advances lo customers 5,318 1,111 1,655 659 3218
Deferred tax asset 76 14 - - -
Other assets 277 238 234 73 82
Property, plant and equipment 319 14 &7 22 102
Intangible assets 725 172 202 60 =]
Deposits (11,687) (1,999) (7.284) (1.517) (4,743)
Other liabililies (4.695) (217) (708) (84) (2,438)
Total identifiable net assets 7,135 1,396 1,588 929 1,802
Non controlling interest - - - - %
Goodwill 3,424 290 655 506 236
Cash and cash equivalents acquired from the subsidiary is made up of the following:
Cash and balances with central banks 723 416 1,230 782 (12)
Treasury bills 10,632 1,647 1,501 767 1,288
Loans and advances o banks 404 - 3,073 - 952
11,759 2,063 5,804 1,549 2,228
Net cash on acquisition of subsidiary 1,200 377 3,561 114 190
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First Bank of Nigeria Limited

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2014

25

26

a)

Acquisition of Subsidiary continued
The cash and balances with central banks did not includ any yor 1 balances.
The goodwill of N5.1 billion from the acquisition of the Five ICB enlities arises from a number of factors such as expected synergy's through
combining a highly skilled workforce and obtaining economies of scale,
There were no contingent consideration, So the fair value of the contingent considi arrar 1t was di i nil.
The treasury bills were not marked to market as at acquisition date . The treasury bills are highly liquid investments that are convertible into cash with
an insignificant risk of changes in value with original maturities of less than three months. The maturity of the treasury bills ranges between 7 days
and 28 days. The amount represents its fair value,
The camying amount of cash and balances with central bank and loans and advances to banks represents their respeclive fair value.
The gross contractual amount for loans and advances to customers is N18.6 billion which excludes a loan loss provision of N2.6 billion.
The gross carrying value of other assets is NO.882 billion, this includes an account receivable of NO.15 billion. None of the trade receivables have
been impaired and it is expected that the full contractual amount can be collected. The difference between the fair value and the gross amount is the
result of discounting over the expected timing of the cash collection.
The fair values of acquired assets and liabilities, including goadwill, previously disclosed as provisional for the ICB Ghana, ICB Slerra Leone, ICB
Gambia and ICB Guinea have been finalised in the current year with no malerial changes to the fair value disclosed in the 2013 consalidated
financial stalements.
Discontinued operations
Following the board's approval to dispose the group's 40% interest in Kakawa Discount House Limited on April 24,2014, equity method of accounting
was discontinued and the group's interest was classified as asset held for sale having met all the conditions to be classified as such in accordance
with IFRS 5 as the carrying amount is expecled to be recovered principally by a sale rather than through continuing use. On 22 December 2014, the
group sold its entire shareholding in Kakawa to its Parent Company - FEN Holdings Plc at a price of N6.4 billion. The group's share of results of
Kakawa to the date of classification as held for sale is shown within the discontinued operations for the current and prior periods, while the
gain/(losses) on the disposal is Included in the current period.
The results from discontinued operations which have been included in the consolidated income statement are as follows:
Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
N'million N'million N'million N'million
Share of resuits of equity accounted investments 136 875 - -
Profit{loss) on disposal of di d of (220) - 4,176 5
Profit/(loss) for the year - discontinued (84) 875 4,176 -
Profiti{loss) on disposal of discontinued operations is calculated as follows:
Group Bank
N'million N'million
Censideration 6,400 6,400
Carrying value as at point of sale (MNote 27) (6,361) (2,224)
Share of associate's OCI recycled (Note 27) (259) -
(220) 4,176
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First Bank of Nigeria Limited

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2014

26 Discontinued operations continued

b)  Asset classified as Held for Sale

Group, shareholders app d the full di t by FirstBank , of all the property development business of FBN Mortgages, prior to the Central
Bank of Nigeria cut off date of June 2013, Subsequently,the CBN again extended the cut off date to June 30, 2014 to afford all affected Primary
Mortgage banks sufficient time to exercise any of the options for capital raising and business combination. The prior year balance was restated
during the year. See details in note 42.

Management assessed the appropriateness of the continued classification of the assets in line with IFRS 5 and remains committed to completing the
sale,

Group
Restated
31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013

N'million N'million
Assets classified as held for sale
Inventory 2,931 4,549
2,931 4,549
27 | tin lates (equity method)

First Bank of Nigeria Limited had a 40% share holding in Kakawa Discount house (KDH). Following the board's approval to dispose the group's
interest in Kakawa Discount House Limited on April 24,2014, equity method of accounting was discontinued and the group's interest was classified

as asset held for sale, The sale was subsequently mads on 22 December 2014,

KDH is a company incorporated in Nigeria and is involved in trading in, holding and provision of discount and re-discount facilities for treasury bills,
commercial bills and other eligible financial instruments normally purchased by banks, corporate bodies and the investing public. KDH has share

capital consisting only of ordinary share capital which are held directly by the group; the country of incorporation or reg n is also their principal
place of business. KDH is not publicly traded and there is no published price information,
GROUP BANK
2014 2013 2014 2013
N "millions N 'millions N 'millions N ‘millions
Balance at beginning of year 6,225 5,609 2,224 2,224
Share of profit 136 B75 -
Share of other comprehensive income - (259) - -
Classification as held for sale (6,361) - (2,224) -
Atend of year - 6,225 - 2,224
Summarised balance sheet for KDH is as follows 2013
N *millions
Cash and balances with CBN -
Loans and advances to Banks 1,039
Loans and advances to customers 25,661
Financial assels held for trading 6,330
Invesiment securities 48,696
Investment in subsidiaries -
Pledged assets 19,800
Other assets 73
Property, plant and equipment 1,051
Intangible assets 30
Deferred tax assets 2,533
Assels held for sale -
Total assets 105,313
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First Bank of Nigeria Limited

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2014

27

I tin tes (equity method)
Summarised balance sheet for KDH continued

Due to banks

Due to customers

Derivative financial instruments
Current income tax liability
Other liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities
Liabilities held for sale

Total Liabilities
Summarised statement of comprehensive income

Discount and similar income

Discount and similar expense

Net discount income

Impairment (charge) for/reversal of credit losses (Net)
Net int i after net impai t charg
Net gains from financial assets held for trading
Net gains from investment securities al fair value
Other operating income

Operating income

Operaling expenses

Income tax

Profit for the year from continuing operations
Profit for the year from discontinued operations
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss

Net gains on available-for-sale financial assets
-Unrealised net gains arising during the period, before tax

Other comprehensive income for the year
net of tax
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

2013
N 'millions

38,123
52,541
265
87

792
101

91,908

12,418
{9,629)
2,789

2,789
933
{241)
607
4,088
{1,748)
(178)

2,166

2,189

(848)

1,541

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financlal stalements of the associates (and not FBN Limited's share of those amouns.

Reconciliation of summarised financial information presented to the carrying amount of its interest in associates

Opening net assets on 1 January
Profit or loss for the period

Other comprehensive income
Closing net assets

Interest in assoclates (40%)
Carrying value

KDH did not have any commitment or contingent liabilities as at 31st December 2013

89

2013
N 'millions

14,712

2,189

(648)

—_—
8,501

—_————
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First Bank of Nigeria Limited

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2014

29 |Intangible assets

GROUP
Goodwill Customer Brand Core Deposits ~ Computer Total
Relationship software
N'million N'million N'million N'million N'million N'million
Cost
At 1 January 2013 1,646 - - - 4,722 6,368
Additions - - - - 1,042 1,042
Wite off - - - - (2,218) (2,218)
Other changes (542) - - - - (542)
Acquisition of subsidiary 6,033 - - - 151 6,184
Exchange difference - - - - 18 19
At 31 December 2013 7137 - - - 3,718 10,853
Additions - - - - 2,086 2,086
Acquisition of subsidiary 346 - - - 251 597
Wite off - - . - (732) (732)
Other changes (1,081) 52 330 699 - - 0
Exchange difference (996) - - - 126 (870)
At 31 December 2014 5,406 52 330 699 5,447 11,934
Py and impai
At 1 January 2013 - - - - 2,951 2,951
Amortisation charge - - - - 857 857
Write off - . - - (2,218) (2,218)
Acquisition of subsidiary - - - - 108 108
Impaimment charge 552 - - - - 552
Exchange difference - - - - 9 9
At 31 December 2013 552 - - - 1,707 2,259
Amortisation charge - 20 207 138 901 1,267
Acquisition of subsidiary - - - - 228 228
Write off - N " - (512) (512)
Impairment charge 501 - - - - 501
Exchange difference - - - - 88 88
At 31 December 2014 1,053 20 207 139 2,412 3,831
Net book value
At 31 December 2014 4,352 32 123 560 3,035 8,103
At 31 December 2013 6,585 - - - 2,009 8,594
BANK
Computer Total
software

N'million N'million
Cost
At 1 January 2013 3,904 3,904
Additions 603 603
Write off (2.219) (2,219)
At 31 December 2013 2,288 2,288
Additions 1,897 1,897
Wiite off (732) (732)
At 31 December 2014 3,453 3,453
Amortisation and impairment
At 1 January 2013 2,602 2,602
Amortisation charge 662 662
Write off (2,218) (2,218)
At 31 December 2013 1,046 1,046
Amortisation charge 647 647
Wiite off (512) (512)
At 31 December 2014 1,181 1,181
Net book value
At 31 December 2014 2,272 2272
At 31 December 2013 1.241 1,241

The amortisation charge for the year Is included in the incame statement.

The software is not Intemally generated.

The goodwill balance of N4.35 billion includes ND.55 billion
Republic of Congo) concluded in 2013 and N3.80 billion atiri

See note 25 on goodwill arising on acquisition of ICB entities.
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29  Intangible assets continued
Impail t tests for goodwill
Goodwill is monitored on the operaling segment level. The entities ta which the goodwill relates is recognized as a cash generating unit (CGU) and
segmented as part of the retall business outside Migeria.
In prior year, the value of goodwill on the BIC acquisition was reduced to the recoverable amount by an impairment loss which was recognized in
operating expenses in the income statement. In the current year,the value of goodwill in ICB Guinea was reduced to the recoverable amount by an
impairment loss which has been recognised in operaling expenses in the income statement.
The impalrment in Guinea arase as a result of the outbreak of Ebola which has led to an adverse effect on the economy. The epidemic has recently
been brought under control,and this is expected to reflact positively on the economy with time.
The recoverable amount of each CGU has been based on value in use and the weighted average cost of capital WACC. These calculations use pre-
tax cash flow projection covering five years. The discount rate used is pre-tax
The key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculation for 2014 are as follows:

BIC Ghana Guinea Gambia Sierra Leone Senegal

Terminal growth rate: % 6% 6% 10% 6% 7% 5%
Discount rate: % 24% 27% 31% 25% 30% 18%
Deposit growth rate:% 12% 15% 15% 18% 18% 15%
Recoverable amount of the CGU: (N’ million) 12,983 B,776 2,085 1,448 2,083 2,927
Management determined deposits to be the key value driver in each of the entities.
Goodwill (N' million) 1,104 2,285 678 478 291 230
Met Asset (N' millicn) 6,158 5272 1,937 925 1,556 1,755
Total carrying amount (N’ milllon) 7.262 7.557 2,615 1,403 1,847 1,985
Excess of recoverable amount over carrying 5722 1,219 (550) 45 206 942
amount

30 Deferred tax

Delerred income taxes are calculated on all temporary differences under the liability method using an effective tax rate of 30% (2012; 30%, 2011:
30%).

GROUP BANK
31D D t 31D k 3D
2014 2012 2014 2013
N 'millions N ‘millions N *millions N ‘millions
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are to the fi g
items:
Deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment (8,304) {490) (8,245) (361)
Allowance for loan losses 3,432 3,591 2,047 2,128
Tax losses carried forward 10,360 (4286) 10,791 (0)
Other assets 1,100 (597) 1,254 (445)
Other liabilities (7,598) (630) (7,671) (703)
Defined benefit obligation 3,269 3,139 3,167 3,036
Effect of changes in exchange rate 125 - - -
2,384 4,587 1,343 3,655
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment (13) - - -
Allowance for loan losses 3z % s o
Tax losses canied forward (2) - - .
Other assets 11 - - -
Other liabilities 10 10 - -
Defined benefit obligation - - & 5
38 10 - -
Deferred t sets
- Deferred tax assel to be recovered after more than 12 months 1,284 5,185 Ba 4,100
- Deferred tax assel to be recovered within 12 months 1,100 (597) 1.254 {445)
2,384 4.588 1,343 3,655
Deferred tax liabilities
- Deferred tax liability to be recovered after more than 12 months 27 10 - -
- Deferred tax liability to be recovered within 12 months 11 - - -
38 10 - -
Group Adjustment
on acquired Recognised  Recognised
1 Jan 2014 entities in P&L ocl 31 Dec 2014
N ‘millions N 'millions N 'millions N ‘millions N 'millions
Movements in Deferred tax assets during the year:
Property, plant and equipment (490) - (7,814) - (8,304)
Allowance for loan losses 3,591 - (158) - 3,433
Taxlosses carried forward (426) - 10,786 - 10,360
Other assels (597) - 1,697 - 1,100
Other liabilities (630) - (6,968) - (7,598)
Defined benefit obligation 3,139 - 9 122 3,270
Effect of changes in exchange rate - - 125 - 125
4,587 - (2,323) 122 2,385
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30 Deferred tax continued Adjustment
on acquired Recognised  Recognised
1.Jan 2013 entities in P&L 0cl 31 Dec 2013
N 'milllons N 'millions N 'millions N ‘millions N 'millions
Movements in Deferred tax assets during the year:
Property, plant and equipment 9,253 (115) (9,628) - (490)
Allowance for loan Josses 3,159 (258) 406 283 3,591
Tax losses carried forward - (426) - - (4286)
Other assets 527 (5) (1,119) - (597)
Other liabilities (10,286) - 9,657 - (630)
Defined benefit obligalion 5,301 208 (3,004) 635 3,139
7.954 {598) {3,688) 918 4,587
Opening D tinved  Recognised
balance  Operations in P&L Closing balance
N 'millions N ‘millions N 'millions N 'millions
Movements in Deferred tax liabilities during the year:
2014
Property, plant and equipment - - (13) (13)
Allowance for loan losses - - 32 32
Tax losses carried forward - - (2) (2)
Other assets - - " 11
Other liabiliies 10 - - 10
Defined benefit obligation - - - -
10 - 28 38
2013
Other liabilities 9 - 1 10
Bank
1 Jan 2014 in P&L oci 31 Dec 2014
N 'millions N ‘millions N "millions N 'millions
1] in temporary diff during the year:
Property, plant and equipment (381) (7.884) - (8,245)
Allowance for loan losses 2,128 (81) - 2,047
Tax losses carried forward - 10,791 - 10,791
Other assets {445) 1,700 - 1,255
Other liabilities (703) (6,968) - (7.671)
Defined benefit cbligation 3,036 8 122 3,166
3,655 (2.435) 122 1,343
1Jan 2013 inP&L ocl 31 Dec 2013
N ‘millions N 'millions N ‘millions N 'millions
M in temy y diffi during the year:
Property, plant and equipment 9,254 (9,615) = (361)
Allowance for loan losses 1.762 366 - 2,128
Other assets 527 (972) - (445)
Other liabilities (10,287) 9,584 - (703)
Defined benefit obligation 5447 {3.048) 635 3,036
6,703 (3.683) 635 3,655

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry -forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable. Temporary difference relating to the Group's Investment in subsidiaries is N7.8 billion (2013: N5.2 billion). As the Group
exercises conlrol over the subsidiaries, it has the power to control the timing of the reversals of the temporary difference arising from its investments
in them. The group has determined that the subsidiaries will not be disposed of. Hence, the deferred tax arising from the temporary differences above
will not be recognised.



First Bank of Nigeria Limited

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2014

31 Other assets

GROUP BANK
Restated
31D L 31D 31D I 31D L
2014 2013 2014 2013
N ‘millions N 'millions N 'millions N ‘millions
Financial assets;
Accounts receivable 27612 31,536 18,120 24,170
27,612 31,536 18,120 24,170
Less specific allowances for Impairment (884) (1,218) (797) (1,202)
26,728 30,318 17,323 22,968
Non Financial assets:
Inventory 1,326 2,484 1,320 2,128
Prepayments 11,403 11,947 10,530 10,971
12,728 14,411 11,850 13,009
Net other assets balance 39,457 44,729 29,173 36,087
Ri iliation of impai GROUP BANK
2014 2013 2014 2013
N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions
Al start of year 1,218 6,238 1,202 5,224
Wirite off {3s51) (5,284) (348) (5.283)
Increase/(write back) of impairment 17 264 (57) 261
At end of year 884 1,218 796 1,202

All other financial assets on the statement of financlal position of the Group and Bank had a remaining period to contraclual maturily of less than 12

months.

32 Deposits from banks

GROUP BANK
31D I 31D l 31D I 3D b
2014 2013 2014 2013
N ‘millions N 'millions N ‘milllons N 'millions
Due to banks within Nigeria 71,417 2,496 13,127 1,739
Due to banks outside Nigeria 92,293 74,985 6,119 8,416
163,710 77.481 19,246 10,155

Deposits from banks only include financial instruments classified as liabilitles at amortised cost and has a remaining period to contraciual maturity of

less than 12 months

33 Deposits from customers GROUP BANK

31D 31D D 31D
2014 2013 2014 2013
N 'millions N 'millions N ‘millions N *millions
Current 750,252 927,225 698,754 833917
Savings 728,728 664,899 714,987 654,479
Term 985,280 726,021 614,039 457,805
Domiciliary 515,476 616,368 513,243 616,353
Electronic purse 0,909 8,269 9,999 8,165
2,989,735 2,942,782 2,551,022 2,570,719
Current 2,823,835 2,863,177 2,551,022 2,567,602
Non-cumrent 165,900 79,605 - 3117
2,989,735 2,842,782 2,551,022 2,570,719

Depasits from customers only Include financial instruments classified as liabilities at amortised cost.
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34 Borrowings
GROUP BANK
31D i 31 D 3D b D i
2014 2013 2014 2013
N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions N "millions
Long term borrowing comprise: .
FBN EuroBond (i) 141,819 47,249 141,818 47,249
Due to European Investment Bank (il) 565 1,603 565 1,603
On-lending facilities from financial institutions {iii) 32,449 31,389 32,449 31,389
Borrawing from correspendent banks (iv) 188,143 46,061 203,117 45,122
362,976 126,302 377,950 125,363
Current 206,293 55,739 223,802 54,801
Non-current 156,677 70,563 154,148 70,562
# 362,976 126,302 377,850 125,363
At start of the year 126,302 75,541 125,363 81,987
Acquisition of subsidiary 2,497 937 - -
Proceeds of new barrowings 309,298 96,297 288,179 98,353
Finance Cost 17,924 4,100 10,451 2,043
Foreign exchange (gains)/ losses (8,927) (1,611) 26,707 (1,611)
Repayments of borrowings (71,308} (46,473) (65,545) (54,975)
Interest paid (11,810) (2,489) (7,205) (434)
Atend of year 362,976 126,302 377.950 125!363

The Group has not had any defaulls of princlpal, interest or other breaches wilh respect to their liabllities during the year (2013: nil),

(i) Facilities represent dollar notes | and Il issued by FBN Finance Company B.V, Netheriands on 7 August 2013 and on 18 July 2014 for a period of 7
years. The notes | bear interest at 8.25% per annum up to the bank call date of 7 August 2018,while notes I bear interest at 8.00% per annum to the
bank call date of 23 July 2019. From the call date up to the maturity dats, the notes | and Il bear interest at a fixed rate of 6.875% and 6.488% per
annum respectively plus the prevailing mid swap rate for United States Dollar swap transactions with a maturity of 2 years, The loans are
redeemable, subject to having obtained the prior approval of the CBN, on the Bank call date of 7 August 2018 and of 23 July 2019, and not in part at
the option of the issuer, at the liquidation preference amount Plus any additional amounts and outstanding payments due.

(ii) Facility represents a medium-term loan (callable notes) secured from European Investment Bank. The loan is divided into tranche A of euro 35
million for a tenure of five year and tranche B of eura 15 million for a tenure of eight years, which qualifies it as tier Il capital. Interest is payable half-
yearly at 2% and 3% above LIBOR rate for tranche A and tranche B respectively. The outstanding balance at 31 December 2014 relates to franche B

(i) Included in on<ending facilities from financial institutions are disbursements from other banks and Financial Institutions which are guaranteed by
FBN for specific customers. These facilitles include the BOI funds and CACS intervention funds. See further notes below.

a. CBN/BOI facilities

The Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN), in a bid to unlock the credit market, approved the investment of N200 billion debenture stock o be issued by the
Bank of Industry (BOI), which would be pplied to the re-financing ing of bank's loans to the manufacturing seclor, During the year, the

Bank of Industry (BOI) disbursed an additional N9.16 billion (2013:_N‘2.4 billion) to First Bank of Nigeria Limited. The fund disbursed is for a period of
15 years effective from the disbursement date at an interest rate is 7% per annum.

b. CBN/CACS Intervention funds
The Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) in collaboration with the Federal G of Nigeria (FGN) ref d by the Federal Ministry of Agricullure
and Waler Resources (FMA & WR) established the Commercial Agricultural Credit Scheme (CACS). During the year, First Bank Nigera Limited
received N6.8 billion ( 2013: N3.77 billion) for on-lending to customers as specified by the guidelines. Loans granted under the scheme are for a
seven year period at an interest rate of 9% p.a.

(lv) Borrowings from correspondence banks include loans from foreign banks ulilised in funding letters of credits for international trade.

35  Retirement benefit obligations

GROUP BANK
Mo 31D b 31D l 31D b
2014 2013 2014 2013
N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions N ‘millions
Defined Benefits Plan
Gratuity Scheme (i) - 343 - -
Defined benefits - Pension (ji) 1,638 1,111 1,546 1,111
Gratuity Scheme (jii) 376 322 - -
2,012 1,776 1,546 1,111

Plan liabilities are based upon independent acluarial valuation performed by HR Nigeria Limited using the projected unit credit basis, This valuation
was carried out as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013.
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35  Retirement benefit obligations continued

fi enefit - Pension (2

First Pensions Custodian Nigeria Limited (FPCNL) has a non-contribulory defined gratuity scheme for staff and directors. Staff who have spenta
minimum number of 5 years are paid a sum based on their qualifying I and the ber of periods spent in service of the entity. Directors

The Bank has an old Defined Benefit scheme, discontinued in March 2001, The funds are placed with fund managers and the Bank is under

obligation to fund the deficit.

The in the defined benefit Pensi (2) over the year is as follows:
GROUP
Present
value of the  Fair value of
obligation plan assets Total
N ‘millions N ‘millions N ‘millions

Defined benefit il bligati at1J y 2013 13,596 (8.233) 4,363
Interest expensel(income) 1,439 (984) 455
Remeasurement: - a

- Retum on plan assets not Included in net
Interest cost on pension scheme - (216) (2186)

- change in demographic assumptions (1,718) - (1,719)
Contributions: -

- Employer - (1,772) (1,772)
Payments: 5

- Benefit payment (1,515) 1.518 -
Defined benefit p i bligati at 31D 2013 11,801 (10,690) 1,111
Transfer from gratuity scheme (1) 343 343
Interest expense/{income) 1,254 (1,190) 64
Service Cost [-1:] B9
Curtailment losses 23 23
Remeasurement: -

- Retum on plan assets not included in net
interest cost on pension scheme 1,861 1,861

-change in demographic assumplions (1,445) (1.445)
Contributions: -

- Employer - (3a1) (381)
Paymants: -

- Benefit payment (1,608) 1,598 (10)
Defined benefit p ion obligati at 31 D 2014 10,437 (8,802) 1,635
The t in the defined benefit Pensi (2) over the year is as follows:

BANK
Present
value of the  Fair value of

obligation  plan assets Total

N 'millions N ‘milliens N ‘millions
Defined benefit pension obligations at 1 January 2013 13,596 (9,233) 4,363
Interest expense/(income) 1,439 (984) 455
Remeasurement: ‘

- Return on plan assets not included in net
interest cost on penslon scheme - (218) (216)
- change in demographic assumptions (1,719) - (1.719)
Contributions: -

- Employer & (1.772) (1.772)
Payments: -

- Benefit payment (1,515) 1,515 -
Defined benefit pension obligations at 31 D 2013 11,801 (10,890) 1,111
Interest expense/(income) 1,216 (1,180) 26
Remeasurement:

- Return on plan assets not included in net
interest cost on pension scheme 1,861 1,861
- change in demographic assumptions (1,453) (1,453)
Contributions: g
- Employer - - -
Payments: - - -

- Benefit payment (1,488) 1.486 -
Defined benefit p i bligati at 31 D ber 2014 10,078 (8,533) 1,545

The actual retum on plan assets was Group N&71million (2013: N1 -2billion); Bank N&71million (2013: N1.2 billion),
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35 Reti 1t benefit obligation inued
GROUP
Composition of Plan assets 2014 2013
N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions N ‘millions N ‘millions
Quoted Unguoted Total Quoted Unquoted Total
Equity Instruments 1,557 3,318
Banking 1.471 3,220
Oil Service 53 44
Real Estate 33 52
Debt Instruments 7,247 7.374
Government 5,738 5,436
Corporate Bond 486 165
Meney market investments 976 1,564
Monay on call 67 209
Others - 10
Total 1,657 7,247 8,804 3,316 7,374 10,630
BANK
Composition of Plan assets 2014 2013
N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions
Quoted Unquoted Total Quoted Ungquoted Total
Equity Instruments 1,557 3316
Banking 1,471 3,220
Oll Service 53 44
Real Estate 33 52
Debt Instruments 6,977 7.374
Government 5491 5,436
Corporate Bond 466 155
Money market Investments 978 1,564
Money on call 44 209
Others 10
Total 1,557 6,977 8,534 3,316 7,374 10,690

The fair value of plan assets is calculated with reference to Quoted prices and are within level 1 of the fair value hierachy

Arising from the defined benefit pension plan, the group is exposed lo & number of risk, the most significant of which are dealled below:

Asset Volatility: The plan liabilities are calculated using
underperform this yield, this will create a deficit. As the
asset that better malch the liabilities. In equily market,
term objectives of the fund whilst taking advantage of

Changes In Bond Yields : A decrease in Federal bond
value of the plans' bond holdings.
The rate used to discount post-

selling offs Government Bonds to enter duration at atiractive yields,

a discount rate set with reference to Federal Government Bond yields. If the plan assets
plans mature, the group intends to reduce the level of investment risk by investing more in

facus will be to seek to reduce the volatility on the fund and align asset allocation with the long

yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the

employment benefit obligations is determined with reference to market ylelds at the balance sheet date on high quality

corporate bonds. In counlries where there is no deep market in such bonds, the markel yields on government bonds are used. The Group is of the

opinion that there is no deep

bonds of medi

referenced to the yield on Nig

Life Expectancy : The majorily of the plans’ obli
increase in the plan's liabilities. This risk

retirement age of 60yrs

Under the funded plan, the Legacy scheme, the groups ensures that the investment
framework that has been developed to achi

framework, the objective is to match assets to the pension obligati
ow the duration and the exp

long-term i

benefit payments as they fall due. The group actively monitors hi

cash outflaws arising from the pension abligation

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit cbligation is Gyears

d yield of the i

28

market in Corporate Bonds in Nigeria and as such assumptions underlying the determination of discount rate are
duration, as compiled by the Debt Management Organisation.

gations are to provide benefits for the members, 5o increases in the life expectancy will result in an
is significantly curtailed by the weighted average liability duration of the plan which is currently 6yrs and

positions are managed within the Asset-liability matching (ALM)
1t that are in line with the obligations under the pension schemes. Within this ALM
on by investing in long term fixed interest securities with maturities that match the
are maiching the expecled
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35 Retirement benefit obligations continued

GROUP/BANK
31Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
The principal actuarial assumplions were as follows:

Discount rale on pension plan 14% 1%
Inflation rate 9% 9%
Future pension increases 0% 0%

The sensitivity of the pension liability to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is shown in table below:

Defined
Benefit Impact on
Assumption Obligation N'm Liability
14% 10,079 0.0%
15.0% 9,584 -4.9%
Discount rate 13.0% 10,628 5.4%
Base 10,079 0.0%
Improved by 1 year 10,148 0.7%
Life exp y Decreased by 1 year 10,010 -0.7%

The above sensitivity analyses is for FBN Limited and deemed to be representative of the Group. It is based on a change in an assumption while
holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to oceur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When

liability recognised within the statement of financial position. The methods and types of assumplions used in prepari g the sensitivity analysis did not
change compared to the previous period.

Gratuily scheme 3

This relates fo the schemes operated by the subsidiaries of the bank as follows:

Banque International de Credit (BIC) Congo has a scheme whereby on separation, staff who have spent a minimum of 3 years are paid a surn based
on their qualifying emoluments and the number of periods spent in service of the Bank.

ICB Guinea and ICB Sierra Leone each have a graduated gratuity scheme for staff on separation where staff receives a lump sum based on their
qualifying basic salaries on the number of year spent. The aggregale balance on this scheme is deemed Immaterial.
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GROUP BANK
Other liabilities Restated
31D 31D L 31D b 31D
2014 2013 2014 2013
N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions
Financial Liabilities:
Customer deposits for letters of credit 34,264 58,029 16,579 43,403
Accounls payable 59,012 84,698 55,088 83,444
Creditors 13,882 20,474 8,647 12,255
Bank cheques 14,964 12,823 14,580 12,630
Collection on behalf of third parties 7.362 5,710 6,758 5,089
129,484 181,734 101,652 156,821
Non Financial Liabilities:
Accruals 2,220 808 1,804 168
Other liabllities balance 131,704 182,542 103,556 156,989

Other liabilities are expected to be settled within 12 months after the date of the consolidated statement of financial position.

Share capital
31 Decemb 31 Decemb
Authorised 2014 2013
N 'millions N ‘millions
50 billion ordinary shares of 50k each (2013: 50 billion) - 25,000 25,000
Issued and fully paid
Movements during the year: Number of Ordinary
shares shares
In millions N 'millions
At 31 December 2013 32,632 16,316
Al 31 December 2014 32,632 16,316
Share premium and reserves
The nature and purpose of the reserves in equity are as follows:
Share premium: Premiums from the issue of shares are reported in share premium.
Retai i Retained ings comprise the undistributed profits from previous years, which have not been reclassified to the other

reserves noted below.

Statutory reserve: Nigerian banking regulations require the Bank to make an annual appropriation lo a statutory reserve, As slipulated by S16(1) of
the Bank and Olher Financial Institutions Act of 1991(amended), an appropriation of 30% of profit after tax is made if the statutory reserve is less
than the paid-up share capital and 15% of profit after tax if the statutory reserve is greater than the paid-up share capital.

Available For Sale (AFS) Fair value reserve: The AFS fair value reserve shows the effects from the fair value measurement of financial
instruments elected to be presented in other comprehensive income on initial recognition afler deduction of deferred taxes. No gains or losses are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

S5l reserve: This reserve is maintained to comply with the Central Bank of Nigeria (CEN) requi it that all i | banks set aside a portion of
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39

Share premium and reserves continued

Statutory credit reserve: The group determines its loan loss provisions based on the
provision as determined under IFRS and the provision as determined under Ni

Nigeria) is recorded in this reserve. This reserve is non distributable.

Foreign currency translation reserve (FCTR): Recards exchange movements on the Group's net investment in foreign subsidiaries.

Reconciliation of profit before tax to cash g from of

Profit before tax including discontinued aperations
Adjustments for:

- Depreciation and amorti

= Impairment on goodwill

— Profit from disposal of property, plant and equipment
- Forelgn exchange losses / (gains)

- Profit from disposal of investment in associate

- Profit/(loss) from disposal of investment securities

— Net gains/(losses) from financial assets classified as held for trading
~Impairment on loans and advances

— PPE written off

~ Change in provision in other assets

— Change In provision for impairment of investments
~Change in retirement benefit obligations

~ Share of loss/profit) from associates

~ Dividend income

- Net interest income

I f{d ) inop g assets:

—Cash and balances with the Central Bank (restricted cash)
—Loans and advances to banks

—Loans and advances to customers

— Financial assets held for trading

= Other assels

- Pledged assets

Increase/{decrease) in operaling liabilities:
- Deposits from banks

- Deposils from customers

- Financial liabilities

= Other liabilities

Cash flow used in operations

P

(asy

requirements of IFRS. The difference between the loan loss
Prudenti i by the Central Bank of

GROUP BANK
31D b 31D E 31D E 31D k
2014 2013 2014 2013
N ‘millions N 'millions N *millions N ‘millions
94,368 87,460 85,536 76,853
11,798 10,849 10,388 9,826
501 552 - -
(382) (284) (401) (302)
(9,927) (1.611) 26,707 (1.811)
- " (4,1786) -
(837) (1,383) (148) (2,931)
(541) 1,386 (541) 1,388
27,845 22,887 23,070 22,174
(401) - 333 -
17 264 (57) 281
- - 2,121 -
(1238) (14,377) 26 (15,325)
- (875) - -
(1,202) (905) (3,716) (2,079)
(239,555) (223,815) (215,449) (206,708)
(222,075) (146,674) (235,335) (137.288)
(35,732) (102,923) (9,562) {7,337)
(410,847) (253,020) (335,204) (184,453)
563 (3.319) (505) (840)
19,590 (3,433) 13,400 (2,087)
(10,877) (3,538) (10,752) (2,296)
84,924 (10,368) 7,853 (8,606)
36,212 514,467 {21,284) 398,118
1,963 (95) - 419
(21,411) 19,477 (24,062) 31,007
(676,144) (109,278) (691,756) (31,818)
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40 Commitments and Contingencies

40.1 Capital commitments

At the balance sheet date, the bank had capital commiltments amounting to N375 million (31 December 2013; N573 million) in respect of authorized

and contracted capital projects. The expenditure will be funded from the group's internal resources.

Aulhorised and contracted

Group
Bank

40.2 Operating lease rentals:

At 31 December 2014 the Group was committed to making the following future payments in res
Subsisting lease agreements are expecied to expire in June 2031 and February 2017 respectively.

31D b 31D
2014 2013
N 'millions N 'millions
375 573
375 573

pect of operating leases for land and buildings.

GROUP BANK

31D Ly D 31D b 3D
2014 2013 2014 2013
N 'milllons N 'millions N ‘millions N 'millions
Within one year 257 250 - -
Between two and five years 834 918 - -
More than five years 2,265 2173 - -
3,356 3,341 - -

40.3 Legal proceedings

The Group is a party to a number of legal actions arising out of its normal business operations

The Directors believe that, based on currently available information and advice of counsel, none of the outcomes that result from such proceedings
will have a material adverse effect on Ihe financial position of the Group, either individually or in the aggregate, Consequently, no provision has been

made in these financial statements.

40,4 Other contingent commitments

In the normal course of business the group is a party to financial instruments which carry off-balance sheet risk. These instrumants are issued to
meet the credit and other financial requirements of customers. The contractual amounts of the off-balance sheet financial instruments are:

GROUP BANK
31D E 1D b 31D E 31 D L:
2014 2013 2014 2013
N 'millions N ‘millions N 'millions N ‘millions
Performance bonds and guarantees 429279 459,723 420,805 475377
Letters of credit 272,718 233,802 221,946 197,168
701,997 693,615 642,751 672,545
40.5 Loan Commitments
GROUP BANK
31D M D k 31D 31D E
2014 2013 2014 2013
N ‘millions N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions
Undrawn irrevocable loan commitments 90,379 408,008 77,188 352,008

The tolal outstanding contractual amount of undrawn credit lines, letters of credit, and guarantees does not necessarily represent fulure cash
requirements, as these financial instruments may expire or terminate without being funded. The fair value of credit related commitments is disclosed

in note 3.7

40,6 C | with

The Group is subject to certain covenants primarily relating to its borrowings. Non-compliance with such covenants may result in negative
consequences for the Group including growth in the cost of borrowings and declaration of default. in the event of default, the lenders are entilied to
take various actions, including the acceleration of amounts due under the loan agreements and all actions permitted to be taken by a secured
credilor which would have a material adverse effect on the Bank's business, resulls of operations, financial condition, cash flows, liquidity and/or

prospects,

The Group and the Bank are subject to minimum capital requirements established by covenants stated in loan agreements, including capital
adequacy levels calculated in accordance with the requirements of the Basel Accord, as defined in the International Convergence of Capital
Measurement and Capital Standards (updated April 1998) and the Amendment to the Capital Accord to incorporate market risks (updated November
2005), commonly known as Basel Il, The Group complied with this loan covenant. See Note 4 for the calculation of the composition of the Group's
capital in accordance with the Basel Accord. Others covenants are a maximum nen performing loans (NPL) ratio, a maximum related party lending
ratlo,a minimum liquidity ratio,and minimum provisions for NPLs. Management believes that the Group Is in compliance with these covenants at 31

December 2014 and 31 December 2013.
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Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
“This information is shown for the bank as no other entity within the group has an offsetting arrangement.”

Financial instruments subject to offsefling, enforceable master netting and similar arrangements are as follows at 31 December 2014;

BANK Gross Gross Net A ts subject to master  Net amounts of
amounts amounts set after netting and similar exposure
before off in the offsettingin  arrangements not set off in
offsetting in  staty of the stat the stat of fi i
the financial of financial position
statement position position Financial Cash
of financial instruments  Collaterals
position recelved

(a) (b) (c)= (a) - (b) (d) &) (f) =(c) - (e)
N ‘millions N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions N ‘millions

ASSETS

- Financial assets held for trading 9,258 - 9,258 - 5,983 3,275

Total Assets subject to offsetting t 9,258 - 9,258 - 5,983 3,275

netting and similar arrangements

LIABILITIES

Financial derivatives 7,946 - 7,948 - - 7,946

Total liabilities subject to offsetting t 7,946 - 7.946 - - 7,946

netting and similar arangements

The amount set off in the statement of financial Position reported in column (b) is the lower of (i) the gross amount before offsetling reported in
column () and (ii) the amount of the related instrument thatis eligible for offsetting. Similarly, the amounts in columns (d) and () are limited to the
exposure reported in column (c) for each individual instrument in order not to understate the ullimate net exposure,

The Group has master netting arrangements with counterparty banks, which are enforceable in case of defaull. In addition, applicable legisiation
allows an enlity to unilaterally set off trade receivables and payables that are due for payment, denominated in the same currency and outstanding
wilh the same counterparty. These fall in the scope of the disclosure as they were set off in the statement of financial position. The Group also made
margin deposits with Merril Lynch and Goldman Sachs as collateral for its oustanding derivative positions. The counterparty may set off the Group's
liabilities with the margin deposit in case of default,

The disclosure does not apply to loans and advances lo customers and related customer deposits unless they are set off in the statement of financial
position.
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42 Restatement

The Group has restated its previously issued Consolidated Statements of Fin

ancial Position as at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012 to correct
for an error made in the reporting of the 'Held for Sale' property development

portfolio of a subsidiary, FBN Morigages.

The restatement in 2014 is to adjust for wrong classifications into the held for sale portfolios in 2012 and 2013. The restatement impacted on the following
balances: other assets,other liabilities,assets held for sale and liabilities held for sale.

The effect of the above errors is limited to the the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and as such the restatement has no impact on the
Income statement and Statement of changes in equity.

(i) Impact of restatement on consolidated statement of financial position.

(a) As at 31 December Restatement As at 31 December
2013 adjustment 2013
Previously reported Restated
N ‘millions N 'millions N "millions
ASSETS
Other assets 40,494 4,235 44,729
Asset held for sale 10,784 (6,235) 4,548
LIABILITIES
Other liabilities 182,795 (253) 182,542
Liabilities held for sale 1,747 (1,747) -
As at 31 December Restatement As at 31 December
(b} 2012 adjustment 2012
Previously reported Restated
ASSETS N 'millions N 'millions N 'millions
Other assets 33,984 5,740 39,725
Asset held for sale 12,978 (7.757) 5221
LIABILITIES
Liabilities held for sale 2,836 {2.017) 818
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43 Related party t .

The Group is controlled by FBN Holdings Ple. incorporated in Nigeria, which owns 99.9% of the ordinary shares,

FBN Holdings Plc. is the immediate parent company of FBN Nigeria Limited as well as the ultimate controlling party.

A number of banking transactions are entered into with rel

The outstanding balances at the year-end, and related expense and income for the year are as follows:

431 Loans and advances to related parties

ated parties in the normal course of business. These include loans and deposits.

The Bank granted various credit facilities to other companies which have common directors with the bank and those that are members of the Group.

BANK

31 December 2014

Loans and advances to customers
Loans outstanding at 1 January
Loans issued during the year

Loan repayments during the year
Loans outstanding at 31 December

31 December 2013

Loans and advances to customers
Loans outstanding at 1 January
Loans issued during the year

Loan repayments during the year
Loans outstanding at 31 December

Parent Enlities  Directors and
controlled by other key
Parentand  management
Associates of personnel
the Parent (and close A Subsidiari
family
members)
N ‘millions N 'millions N 'millions N *millions N 'millions
- 32,033 60,962 - -
- 11,719 12,548 - -
- (13,258) - -
- 43,752 60,252 - -
- 22,963 62,218 - -
- 9,070 17,055 - -
- - (18,311) - -
= 32,033 60,962 - -

The Ioans to directors and other key management personnel are repayable from various cycles ranging from monthly to annually over the tenor and

have average interest rates ranging from 0% to 24%,

43.2 Deposits from related parti

BANK
31 December 2014
Due to customers
Deposits at 1 January
Depasits received during the year
Deposits repaid during the year
Transfer to Subsidiary
Deposits at 31 December

31 December 2013

Due to customers

Deposits al 1 January

Deposits received during the year
Deposits repaid during the year

1,471 10,786 977 792 338

8,824 598,936 10,432 101,162 123,303

(10,287) (585,231) (10,357) (101,789) (118,873)
165 (165) ]

8 24,656 1,052 - 4,768

- 3,657 842 128 2113

38,379 1,007,058 6,122 50,068 247,997

(36,908) (999,929) (5.787) (59,304) (249,772)

1,471 10,786 977 792 338
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43.3

43.4

Related party t il continued

Other tra ions with rel i

31 December 2014

Interest income
Interest expense
Fee and commission income

31 December 2013
Interest income

Interest expense
Fee and commission income

Key g P

Entities  Directors and Associates Subsidiaries
controlled by other key
Parentand  management
Associates of personnel
the Parent (and close
family
members)
N 'millions N 'millions N *millions N ‘millions
5,573 8,522 . -
(427) (37) - (502)
53 3 - 17
4,168 7,081 = "
(76) (27) % (74)
116 3 7 2)

Key management includes Executive directors and members of the Management Committee. The compensation pald or payable to key mar

for employee services is shown below:

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

GROUP BANK
31D E 31D 31D 31D E
2014 2013 2014 2013
N ‘millions N 'millions N "millions N ‘millions
799 757 799 757
383 516 383 516
1,182 1,273 1,182 1.273
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Note 43.5 Related panty transactions continued
Direct credit assets 1o Directars

Reparting Mame ofthe ralated o " Ou

Mame ot Barrowers Instituton Interest P Perfarming (H) TOTAL (N)
ARIODUN ODUBOLA ED. AZI00UN OOUBDLA 71783333 LI
Abiru Adetahunbe Mukhal -3 Abiru Adetokunbo Mukhad 7,500,000 £7.500,000
Al Ade bhurbo Muthall ED Ak Adetolunbo MekFall 1837159 - 1237189
Abiru Adetokunbe Mukhall o Ablria Adetokunbo Mukhai 0218726 wamne
Abiry Adetsbunio Makhad & Ailru Adetokunbo Mukhed € &
ADESOLA ADEOLINTAN ED, ADTSOLA ADEDUNTAN MORTGAGE ACCOUNT 71,000,000 73,000,000
AWOSIEA LU ABIOOUN Non-£D AWDSIEA BUKUN ABIOOUN 4,883,172 488,322
BISHONASANYA ED BI5| OMASANYA 149,250 3491250
FELSE AMBAOSE ASULA Nen-ED FEISE AMBROSE ASULA 528682 - 2526801
AGUSTO & £O LMITED 0, Franci Shobe. 63155 603530
AGUSTO & €O LUMITED. EQ Francls Shobo ETéa018 8,768,016
IBRAHIM LAWAL KANKIA Non£D IDRAHIM LAVAL EANKIA 516,188 - S18.188
JOLACSO EBENEZER ADEWALE ALANI Man kD IDLADSD EBENETER ADEWALE ALAN TR 18358
LISTER FLOUR MILLS (NSGERIA) LMITED Non£D Whadja Also-Strash 514305824 514,505,824
ALFL Petroleum Company Ltd Horr£D Ehadia Alao-Hraub M088,179 1089179
LISTER FLOUR MLLS [MiG] 110 Han-ED s Mao-Stiash - 700,376,836 600,375,536
BORINIPROND & CO.LTD Nea-£D LAWAL RANKIYA IBRAHIM 658,058,448 . EELES AN
BOKINI FAONO & €O, LTD HNor-ED LAWAL KANEIYA 1 ILAHIM S6LTaRIT - seLMerT)
LAWAL KANKIYA IBRAHIM Han-0D LAWAL ANKR/A IBRAHIM 18794 25,7
LAWAL EANIIYA BRAHIM Nen-ED LAWAL KANKIYA IBRAHDA 3485700 - 235702
Macsido Bello Mohammsed [ B Macxick 5080508 - 5060508
LE GLOBAL OWAELD SENVICES LTD i e . 150350048 150,350,046
HONEYWELL GROUP LIMITED-NON CHECKING A/C Exgh b Ad £012310,784 02251474
oL ExCh £d b h 5313543708 5310948,705
mmmmmuﬂﬂlﬂﬂm L Oba Otudet Adedamed 4,153,704 686 - 4151204685
FU ‘Oba Otudek k 8.999,792502 . 2995,792522
FAN MILK PLC LOAN = E Adedamaiy 718,036,121 715,006,121
Phvst Englneering Ltd [CL) ok di 06,804,743 106,804,743
Fan Wl P b, - ULSH 0T
Hereywell 0l & Gas Ltsjor) E o d . 2WA04D00
Faneywell Oil & Gas Lid & Oba ded LIAET 57
HONDYWELL O, & GAS LIMITED Exch ob: Aded TAB5,956 - TAE5956
PR 0,170, 1 Exch o 1544535228 EEEE S
Pivot Enginering L1d Exch ] by 03051070 - WLAELIM0
Haneywell Fow Ml L1d farf) Extha [ Adedamal 5991535983 5991515508
Phvat Englemering Lid obs A 1079,291,515 - 1073291615
PROT ERGINEERING CO. LTOL-HON CHECKING 2 B E Adedamol 1469,822.768 1.465,822,768
HONETWELL FLOUR MALLS PLE] (5AF) Dfa 1 Ob: Adedamal. 1000,767,123 1,000,767,123
HONEYWELL FLOUR MILLS PLC-NON CHECKING ACEOUNT ExChalrman/Hen- [0 b2 Otudebo/Dbalem| Adedamals Dtstabo 1516721883 1516721883
Honeywell Flowr 11 L1d (1) E 211813338 1713818333

Ot Otuideka, Dbateml Adedumala Ctedeka/
Anchorage Liesure g Ex ) Al S88077.377 - 588,077,372
OTUBEKD AYODLA 0BA Neatd Chaleml Adedamala Otudeks CYED - 4348
Odubala Abledun o Ouduboda Atodun 2LEE1ATS ILes1ATs
OMASANYA S CLAND HLOUMA AND MRS amMa/ero Onatanys OStephen 179507 179587
Caasanys OStephen amMo/eio Crisanya O.Siephen 643,330 B43331
OTUBERD OBAFEMS ADEBAMOLA Man.Ed OTUDEKD DEAFEM ADEDAMOLA 4146948 . 4146948
Seawall Cilfield Sendeer Nea£0/ExNon-£0 Seawal! Ollleld Sevvices 1.606570,901 LE0E.STO AN
(103 o UK EKT 65,338,161 6,333,161
RAINDOW TOWN DEVELOP MENT LIMITED RALRBOW TOWN DIVELOFMINT LINTED 10,086.795,745 B 30,086,795,245
RAINBOW TOWH DEVELOPMENT LIMITED RAMEOW TOWN DEVELDPMINT L0ATTD BILI0E 167 8,131,206 362
RARMOOW TOWN DEVELOFMENT LMITED RAINBOW TOWM DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 524,454,795 5.234454,795
RANDOW TOWN DEVELOPMENT LINITED-
RAINBOW INTEREST CAPTALIZATION (11} 299,655,376 - 99,645,376
PREMIUM FOULTRY FARMS LIMTED Nonutd Mahey Rafindach Rasheed $80,335,347 . 680335347
PREMIUM POULTAY FARMS LIMITED MorLEd Mahey Pafindads Rasherd 70355069 710155063
PREMIUM POULTRY FARMS LIMTED Man[d Mahey Rafincsd Rasherd S0072,875 - S00TIATS
S3,59L,485,780 10.412,912, 846 104,004,399,640
Related and balances disch I ththe € | Nank of Nigeria ©
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Statun COLLATERAL
Ferkeraing  L/M OVER PRTY
Performing L/M BEING PERFECTED
Peslaiming L/M BEING PERFECTED
Perborming  L/M BEING PERFECTED
Perlorming L/M BEING PERFECTED
Peslarming LM OVER PPTY
Perksiming DOMICILIATION OF SALARY
Performing  DOMICILIATION OF SALARY
Peslarming DOMICRIATION OF SALARY
Perlerming =] INSURAMCE O# HASED
Perlormisg ol INSURANCE DN HASED
Perlarming DOMICILIATION OF SALARY
Perlorming mnmmmimw:mmmimmwn
MORTGAGE DEBENTURE ON LISTER FLOUR MILLSLEGAL
rnan-Performing MORTGAGE
ren-Performing CHARGE ON ASSET FINANCED.
% ON PROPERTY NLEBILLION
Ferkeming  SPO/DOMICILIATION
Perlorming ESPO/DOMICILIATION
Perlorming  L/M ON FTY FINANCED
Perferming DOMICILIATION OF SALARY
Performing.  DOMICILIATION OF SALARY
nonFerloming LM ON PPTY
LM ON PTY.CG OF PIVOT AND HONEYWELL ONL & GAS
Peiforming PEMWDNDGIOLIL(WDESU'HM
Pethorming  LIEN, DERENTURE, PG AND CG.
LM ON PTY.CG OF PIVOT AND HONEYWELL DL & GAS
Patlorming PG OF OBA OTUDEKD. ALL ASSET DEB OF HFM
LM ON PTY.CG OF PIVOT AND HONEYWELL OR & Gas
Fetborming NOFD!AO‘I‘UDEKD.MLASSE'UEIUFIIFM
Pelorming MORTG. DEB. OVER KAND & IBADAN FACTORY.
Perkarming CG OF HOMEYWELL FLOUR MILL, DEBENTURE
Perleamilng Mmmn:&mnmlmmnm.
Perlorming LIEN, DEBENTURE, PG AND CG,
Perfarming LIEN, DEBENTURE, PG AND CG.
Perfeersing  LIEN, DEBENTURE, PG AND CG.
Perlorming €5 OF HONEYWELL FLOUR MILL, DEBENTURE
Perlorming 6 OF HONEYWELL FLOUR ML, DEBENTURE
LM ON PTY.CO OF PIVOT AND HONEYWELL OIL & GAS
Petlorming PBMWU’IUBEKO.IU.WTBESUF HFfM
Petbarming €8 OF HOMEYWELL FLOUR MILL, DEBENTURE
Perfosming G OF HONEYWELL FLOUR MILL, DEBENTURE
M CN PTY.CG OF PIVOT AND HONEYWELL DR & Gas
Perfarming PG OF DBA OTUDEKD, ALL ASSET DEB OF HFM
LM ON PTY.CG OF PIVOT AND HONEYWELL OWL & GAS
Pevlorming PG OF C&A OTUDEKD, ALL ASSET DEB OF HEM
M on VI'Y.EGOFWDTWHM(\’WIUM Eoas
Performing PEDFOHWD“D.MIM!ETU!BO?HFM
Perfarming IIII..LMONFIT,DOMlﬂlIhTIUN,l!GNHDNH\H!ll BROUP
Perfosming CG OF HONEYWELL FLOUR MILL, DEBENTURE
Petlorming LEGAL MORTGAGE OVER PROPERTY
Performing DOMICILIATION OF SALARY
Perloeming  DOMICILIATION OF SALARY
Petlorming CGOF HONEYWELL FLOUR MiLL, DEBENTURE
ronPeriorming CHARGE OVER ASSET FINANCED
Peilorming LEGAL MORTGAGE OVER PROPEATY
MORTGAGE DEBENTURE TAUST DEED iy FAVOUR OF THE
SECURITY VENTURES (FIRST TRUSTEES LTD) ON BEMALF OF
NIGLTD OVER £ PORT
Perfarming HARCOURT, RIVER STATE
TRUST DEED N OF THE
SECURITY Fi RUSTEES 1ALF OF
FIRSTBANK NIGLTD OVER RAINEDW TOWN ESTATE, PORT
Perloeming HARCOURT, AIVER STATE
MORTGAGE DEBENTURE TRUST DEED N FAVOUR OF THE
SECURITY VENTURES (FIRST TAUSTEES LTD) ON BEHALF OF
NIG1L TOWH ESTATE, PORT
Performing HARCOLRT, RIVER STATE
TAUST DEED M F, THE
SECURITY VENTURES (FIRST TRUSTEES LTD) ON BEHALF OF
LTD OVER RAINBOW . PORT
Performing HARCOURAT, RIVER STATE
All assens deb. 1 Pr. vahsed a1
Perlrming  N13ASM
Al assets dabenture on assets of Premium Famms vakied a
Performing  N13B.5M
All assets debenture on assets of Prembam Farms vakied ar
Peclerming  N138.5M
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Employees

The average numbter of persons employed by the Group during the peried was as follows:

Executive directors
Management
Non-management

Seenote 15 for compensalion for the above staff

GROUP BANK
31Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
7 6 T ]
187 65 €6 57
9,474 9,127 8,103 7.840
9,668 9,198 8,176 7,903

The number of employees of the Group, other than directors, who received emoluments in the following ranges (excluding pension contributions and

ceriain benefits) were:

N300,000 - N2,000,000

N2,000,001 - N2,800,000
N2,800,001 - N3,500,000
N3,500,001 - N4,000,000
4,000,001 - N5,500,000
N5,500,001 - N6,500,000
ING,500,000 - N7,800,000
N7,800,001 - N9,000,000
9,000,001 and above

Directors' emoluments

Remuneration paid to the Group's directors (excluding certain allowances) was:

Fees and sitting allowances
Executive compensation
Retirement benefit costs
Other director expenses

Fees and other emoluments disclosed abave include amounts paid to;

Chairman

Highest paid director

108

1.140 1,006 28 33
691 65 546 18
410 624 388 586

8 6 - -

2,357 2,600 2,333 2,597

1,686 1,580 1,678 1,569
743 1,024 714 1,010
448 213 412 203

2,185 1,981 2,077 1,886

9,668 9,189 8,176 7.903

GROUP

31D E 31 D E
2014 2013
N 'millions N ‘millions
118 118
432 403
474 1,467
3,287 3,274
4,311 5,262
28 25
100 100
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Directors’ emoluments continued

The number of directors who received fees and olher emoluments (excluding pension contributions and certain benefit) In the following ranges was:

Number
GROUP
31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
NS5,500,001 and above 19 18
19 18

Compliance with banking regulation

- A penalty of NB8 million was paid by the Bank for inabllity to provide evidence on CBN's no objection letter to promotions/appointments of 28 senior
officers

-A penalty of N2 million was imposed on the Bank for failure to comply with the CBN directives on the issue of Eurcbonds

- The bank paid a penalty of N2m for failure to render suspicious franscations to NFIU within 72 hours of transaction

- A penalty of N2 million was imposed on the bank for failure to conduct due dilligence before opening a Politically Exposed Persons (PEPs)
- The bank paid a penalty of N2 million for Issuing a single draft of N30.5 million

- The bank pald a penalty of N2 million for contravening Section 25(2) of Banks and Other Financial Institutions Act LFN 2004 on rendition of
statutory retums through FINA application to CBN and NDIC.

- The bank paid N210 million penalty for opening / closing 62 cash centers and 32 branches without stipulated approval from the CBN

- The bank was charged a penalty of N74 million for mis reporting public seclor deposit.

- The bank paid N2 million penalty for failure to address all observations and recommendalions of extemal auditors (Year ended 31 December 2013)

- The bank paid N2 million penalty for failure to address all observations and recommendations of external auditors (Period ended 30 September 2014
- A penalty of N2.3 million was imposed on the bank for delay on unapplied funds

Events after statement of financial position date

The Bank has no events after the financial position date that will materially affect the financial position shown in these financial statements,

Dividends per share

A dividend of NO.3 kobo per share was proposed by the board of direclors on 24 December 2044.This Interim dividend amounts to N8,780 million. A
dividend of N32,632 million at N1.00 per share that relates to the year lo 31 December 2012 was approved at the AGM in May 2013 and paid In June

2013, In addition, an interim dividend of N39,158 million at N1.20 kobo per share proposed by the board of directors on 6th December 2013 was
paid on 9 January 2014,

Eamnings per share

Basic eamings per share s calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of the Bank by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year, excluding the average number of ordinary shares purchased by the members of the group and held as treasury
shares.

The company does nat have potential ordinary shares with convertible options and therefore there is no dilutive impact on the profit attributable to the
equity holders of the parent.

GROUP BANK
31D b 1D b 31D k 31D i
2014 2013 2014 2013
N ‘millions N ‘millions N 'millions N 'millions
Profit from continuing of ions attributable to owners of the
parent (N'millions) 84,928 65576 75,175 59,365
Profitiloss) from discontinued operations atiributable to owners
of the parent (N'millions) (84) 875 4176 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (in million) 32,632 32,632 32,632 32,632
Basic/diluted eamings per share (expressed in Kobo per share):
- From continuing operations 260 2m 230 1.82
-From discontinued operations (0.00) 0.03 0.13 0.00
2,60 2.04 243 1.82
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Statement of Value Added - Group
Year ended 31 December 2014

31 December 31 December
2014 2013
Group N'million % N'million %
Gross income 455,392 372,840
Interest expense (116,662) (91,857)
338,730 280,983
Administrative overheads:
- Local (134,108) (95,966)
- Foreign (5,238)
Value added 204,622 100 179,779 100
Distribution
Employees
- Salaries and benefits 72,726 36 60,456 34
Government
- Taxation 9,526 5 21,009 12
The future
- Asset replacement (depreciation)
- Local 10,530 5 9,279 5
- Foreign - 546 0
- Asset replacement (amortisation)
- Local 1,268 - 1,381 1
- Foreign - 136
- Asset replacement (provision for losses) 25,730 13 20,521 11
- Expansion (transfers to reserves) 84,842 41 66,451 37
204,622 100 179,779 100
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First Bank of Nigeria Limited

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

Statement of Value Added - Bank

31 December 31 December
2014 2013
Bank N'million % N'million %
Gross income 410,648 339,320
Interest and fee expense (103,061) (83,208)
307,587 256,112
Administrative overheads (127,727) (96,308)
Value added 179,860 100 159,804 100
Distribution
Employees
- Salaries and benefits 63,012 35 53,287 33
Government
- Company income tax 6,185 4 17,488 11
The future
- Asset replacement (depreciation) 9,741 5 9,164 6
- Asset replacement (amortisation) 647 0 662 0
- Asset replacement (provision for losses) 20,924 12 19,838 13
- Expansion (transfers to reserves) 79,351 44 59,365 37
179,860 100 159,804 100
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FIRST BANK OF NIGERIA LIMITED

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY - BANK

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As reported under IFRS
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
N'million N'million N'million N'million N'million
Assets:
Cash and balances with central bank 670,045 541,221 288,125 199,091 74,894
Loans and advances to banks 242,842 367,571 329,120 222,347 383,880
Loans and advances to customers 1,794,037 1,473,839 1,316,407 1,144,461 1,046,925
Financial assets held for trading 9,258 2,225 1,942 2,652 11,485
Investment securities 544,975 637,928 631,211 670,624 245,494
Assets pledged as collateral 63,158 52,406 50,109 72,129 122,009
Investment in associates - 2,224 2,224 14,099 14,099
Investment in subsidiaries 58,986 56,307 40,348 32,416 30,416
Other assets 29,173 36,067 32,459 43,734 33,344
Intangible assets 2,272 1,241 1,302 734 265
Property, plant and equipment 74,782 71,895 70,724 64,056 62,252
Deferred tax 1,343 3,655 6,703 5,195 12,146
3,490,871 3,246,579 2,770,674 2,471,438 2,037,209
Financed by:
Share capital 16,316 16,316 16,316 16,316 16,316
Share premium 189,241 189,241 189,241 254,524 254,524
Reserves 217,490 145,152 166,619 106,404 144,769
Deposits from banks 19,246 10,155 18,463 51,306 55,221
Deposits from customers 2,551,022 2,570,719 2,171,807 1,784,490 1,328,218
Financial liabilities held for trading 7,946 1,697 1,278 1,143 1,639
Borrowings 377,950 125,363 81,987 104,287 126,096
Retirement benefit obligations 1,546 1,111 18,156 14,676 11,075
Current income tax 6,558 29,836 19,768 21,354 15,118
Other liabilities 103,556 156,989 87,039 116,938 84,233

Deferred income tax liabilities - @ = - -

3,490,871 3,246,579 2,770,674 2,471,438 2,037,209
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FIRST BANK OF NIGERIA LIMITED

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY - BANK

INCOME STATEMENT

Gross Earnings

Net operating income

Gain from disposal of associate
Operating expenses

Impairment charge for credit losses
(Loss) on sale of assets to AMCON
Exceptional item

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit from continuing operations
Profit from discontinuing operations

Profit for the year

Earnings per share (basic)

As reported
under N-
As reported under IFRS GAAP
12 months 12 months 12 months 12 months 12 months
ended ended ended ended ended
31 Dec 2014 31Dec2013 31 Dec 2012 31 Dec2011 31 Dec 2010
410,648 339,320 313,822 251,312 209,187
303,410 256,112 258,554 220,706 163,142
- - 3,490 - -
(201,126) (159,421) (168,908) (133,368) (107,392)
(20,924) (19,838) (9,847) (32,165) (22,596)
- - - (15,501) -
- - - - 383
81,360 76,853 83,289 39,672 33,537
(6,185) (17,488) (12,145) (16,620) (1,414)
75,175 59,365 71,144 23,052 32,123
4176 - - - -
79,351 59,365 71,144 23,052 32,123
243 182 218 ¥ 98

In line with IFRS 1.22(d), the figures reported in the above income st
prepared using relevant IFRS guidelines and standards. In constrast

the
for years 2010 only has been prepared using relevant Nigerian GAAP gu

atement for years 2011 to 2014 have been
figures in the above income statement
idelines and standards.

Therefore,the numbers in the affected relevant areas listed below should not be compared when being used.

Income Statement

- Interest income

- impairment charge for credit losses
- Net operating income
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FIRST BANK OF NIGERIA LIMITED
FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY - GROUP

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As reported under IFRS
Restated Restated
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
N'million N'million N'million N'million N'million
Assets:
Cash and balances with central bank 697,601 593,973 298,024 199,228 75,517
Loans and advances to banks 430,053 415,210 394,173 463,328 575,467
Loans and advances to customers 2,193,563 1,797,935 1,562,695 1,252,153 1,160,293
Financial assets held for trading 10,708 4,743 2,565 5,964 16,636
Investment securities 598,904 734,690 684,359 697,001 254,708
Assets pledged as collateral 64,527 53,651 50,109 72,129 122,009
Inventory - - - 25,609 23,081
Managed funds - - - - -
Investment in associates - 6,225 5,609 7.489 8,996
Investment in subsidiaries - - - - -
Other assets 39,457 44,729 33,984 63,061 39,282
Investment property - - - 4,055 2,440
Intangible assets 8,103 8,594 3,417 1,008 494
Property, plant and equipment 83,404 78,489 74,474 65,889 63,634
Deferred tax 2,384 4,587 7,954 6,954 12,274
Assets held for sale 2,931 4,549 12,978 - -
4,131,635 3,747,375 3,130,341 2,863,868 2,354,831
Financed by:
Share capital 16,316 16,316 16,316 16,316 16,316
Share premium 189,241 189,241 189,241 254,524 254,524
Reserves 255,819 175,965 191,190 98,425 129,607
Non confroliing interest 1,641 1,626 1,353 964 1,148
Deposits from banks 163,710 77,481 87,551 183,500 148,352
Deposits from customers 2,989,735 2,942,782 2,405,035 1,951,011 1,447,600
Financial liabilities held for trading 9,913 1,701 1,796 2,857 1,639.00
Liabilities on investment contracts - - - 49,440 76,446
Liabilities on insurance contracts - - - 824 -
Borrowings 362,976 126,302 75,541 106,204 126,350
Retirement benefit obligations 2,012 1,776 18,648 15,081 11,426
Current income tax 8,530 31,633 22,536 24,328 20,052
Other liabilities 131,704 182,542 118,289 159,325 120,470
Deferred income tax liabilities 38 10 9 1,069 901
Liabilities held for sale - - 2,836 - -

4,131,635 3,747,375 3,130,341 2,863,868 2,354,831
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FIRST BANK OF NIGERIA LIMITED

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY -

INCOME STATEMENT

Gross Eamings

Net operating income

Operating expenses

Group's share of associate’s results
Impairment charge for credit losses
(Loss) on sale of assets to AMCON
Exceptional item

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit from continuing operations
Profit from discontinuing operations

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non controlling interest

Earmnings per share in kobo (basic/diluted

In line with IFRS 1.22(d), the figures reported in the above income
- prepared using relevant IFRS guidelines and standards. In constra

GROUP
As reported under IFRS As reported
under N-
Restated GAAP

12 months 12 months 12 months 12 months 12 months
ended ended ended ended ended

31 Dec 2014  31Dec2013 31 Dec2012 31 Dec2011 31 Dec 2010
N'million N'million N'million N'million N'million
455,392 372,840 338,921 265,580 232,079
338,814 280,107 280,410 230,853 178,062
(218,632) (173,001) (182,329) (136,668) (119,274)
- - 1,008 (1,507) (3,657)
(25,730) (20,521) (12,912) (38,011) (21,590)

- - - (15,501) -

- - - - 226

94,452 86,585 86,177 39,166 33,767
(9,526) (21,009) (14,918) (18,864) (4,590)
84,926 65,576 71,259 20,302 29,177

(84) 875 3,838 (1,666) -

84,842 66,451 75,097 18,636 29,177

84,827 66,344 75,040 19,520 27,244

15 107 57 (884) 1,933

84,842 66,451 75,097 18,636 29,177
260 204 230 57 89

year 2010 has been prepared usinng relevant Nigerian GAAP guidelines and standards.

statement for years 2011 to 2014 have been
st.the figures in the above income statement for

Therefore,the numbers in the affected relevant areas listed below should not be compared when being used.

Income Statement

- Interest income

- impairment charge for credit losses
- Net operating income
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